

Local Employer Health Insurance Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual

Department of Employee Trust Funds P.O. Box 7931 Madison, WI 53713

Employer Communications Center 1-877-533-5020

etf.wi.gov

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preface (revised 16/1/2022)

CHAPTER 1 - Background Information (revised 6/27/2023)

- 101 Applicable Policies, Statutes and Legislation
- 102 <u>Employer Agent Responsibilities</u>
- 103 Employer Training and Support
- 104 myETF Benefits System (MEBS)
- 105 ETF Ombudsperson Services
- 106 Employer Services Section (ESS) Contacts

CHAPTER 2 - Health Plan and Program Information (revised 5/13/2024)

- 201 Benefit Program Option Information
- 202 IYC Health Plans and HDHP (HMOs and PPOs)
- 203 <u>Access Plan</u>
- 204 State Maintenance Plan (SMP)
- 205 <u>Contribution Rates</u>
- 206 Employer Paid Annuitants
- 207 <u>Service Area</u>
- 208 Opt-Out Incentive
- 209 Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM) Navitus
- 210 Wellness and Disease Management Program Administrator WebMD
- 211 Health Plan Contacts
- 212 <u>Coordination of Benefits (COB)</u>
- 213 Administration of Benefit Maximums
- 214 Errors
- 215 Premium Refunds due to Errors are Limited
- 216 Limited Premium and Claim Adjustments
- 217 <u>Benefits Non-Transferable</u>

CHAPTER 3 - New Participating Employer Information (revised 12/18/2023)

- 301 Large Group (50+ employees) Underwriting and Surcharges
- 302 Groups with 40 to 49 Employees Underwriting and Surcharges
- 303 Initial Group Enrollment

CHAPTER 4 - Eligibility (revised 5/24/2023)

- 401 Employee, Annuitant and Continuant Eligibility
- 402 Dependent Coverage Eligibility
- 403 Employer Premium Contribution Eligibility
- 404 Determining Effective Dates for the Employer Premium Contribution
- 405 WRS Previous Service Check
- 406 Rehired Employee Coverage

CHAPTER 5 - Initial Enrollment (revised 12/18/2023)

- 501 Initial Enrollment and Effective Dates
- 502 Declining (Waiving) Coverage
- 503 <u>Enrollment Opportunities for Employees who Previously Declined or Canceled</u> <u>Coverage</u>
- 504 Applying for Coverage
- 505 Primary Care Provider or Primary Care Clinic

506 Insurance Cards

CHAPTER 6 - Changing Coverage (revised 5/13/2024)

- 601 Life Event Changes
- 602 Changing Plans Due to a Residential Move
- 603 Changing Health Plans
- 604 Changing from Single to Family Coverage
- 605 Changing from Family to Single Coverage
- 606 Adding Dependents
- 607 <u>Removing Dependents</u>

CHAPTER 7 – <u>Health Benefits Open Enrollment</u> (revised 12/18/2023)

- 701 Health Benefits Open Enrollment
- 702 Withdrawing/Rescinding Health Enrollment Elections
- 703 When a Health Plan is not Available at Open Enrollment
- 704 Late Open Enrollment Applications
- 705 Late Open Enrollment Review Sample Letter

CHAPTER 8 - Leave of Absence (revised 5/24/2023)

- 801 Definition of a Leave of Absence
- 802 <u>Coverage Does Not Lapse While on a Leave of Absence</u>
- 803 <u>Coverage Lapses While on a Leave of Absence</u>
- 804 Coverage During Layoff
- 805 Coverage During Appeal of Discharge

CHAPTER 9 - Cancellation and Termination of Coverage (revised 12/18/2023)

- 901 Individual Termination of Coverage
- 902 Ending Coverage
- 903 Changing From Active to Annuitant Coverage
- 904 <u>Cancellation of Coverage</u>

CHAPTER 10 - COBRA, Continuation and Conversion (revised 5/24/2023)

- 1001 Overview of COBRA, Continuation and Conversion
- 1002 Persons Eligible for Continuation (Qualified Beneficiaries)
- 1003 Employee Responsibilities
- 1004 <u>Qualified Beneficiary Responsibilities</u>
- 1005 Employer Responsibilities
- 1006 Notice Requirement Illustration Chart
- 1007 <u>Continuation Coverage Information</u>

CHAPTER 11 – <u>Retirement or Disability</u> (revised 12/18/2023)

- 1101 <u>Coverage Requirements to Continue</u>
- 1102 Medicare Enrollment
- 1103 Premium Payment
- 1104 Completing Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage

CHAPTER 12 - Rehired Annuitants (revised 4/20/2021)

- 1201 <u>Eligibility</u>
- 1202 <u>Coverage</u>
- 1203 Disability Annuitants

CHAPTER 13 - Medicare (revised 12/18/2023)

1301 Overview of Medicare

CHAPTER 14 – Employee Death (revised 12/7/2021)

- 1401 Report an Employee Death to ETF Immediately
- 1402 <u>Surviving Spouse and Dependents</u>
- 1403 <u>Surviving Spouse who is also a State Employee Eligible for Coverage</u>

CHAPTER 15 - Invoicing (revised 6/1/2022)

- 1501 Viewing Your Invoice
- 1502 Reconciling Your Invoice
- 1503 Accepting and Paying Your Invoice Automated Clearing House (ACH)
- 1504 Late Interest Charge
- 1505 Who to Contact for Assistance

CHAPTER 16 – <u>Terminating Employer Group Coverage</u> (revised 3/12/2019)

- 1601 Duration of Participation Prior to Termination
- 1602 Partial Termination of Group not Permitted
- 1603 Employer Group Termination
- 1604 <u>Disenrollment</u>

CHAPTER 17 – Glossary of Definitions (revised 12/18/2023)

Appendix A - Forms and Brochures (revised 12/10/2021)

Appendix B - Codes (revised 12/18/2023)

- B-1 Employee Type Codes
- B-2 Coverage Type Codes
- B-3 Individual Relationship Codes
- B-4 Program Option Codes
- B-5 Surcharge Codes
- B-6 Health Plan Codes

Appendix C - myETF Benefits (revised 5/24/2023)

- C-1 How to Log in to myETF Benefits
- C-2 Add Coverage
- C-3 Add Dependent
- C-4 Remove Dependent
- C-5 Change Health Plans
- C-6 Termination of Coverage
- C-7 Pending Transactions
- C-8 Enrollment Inquiry
- C-9 Dependent Inquiry
- C-10 Address Inquiry
- C-11 Employer Premium Inquiry
- C-12 Running Reports

Department of Employee Trust Funds Local Health Insurance Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual

Preface

The Local Health Insurance Employer Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual (ET-1144) is a reference source intended to aid your administration of and participation in the Wisconsin Public Employer Group Health Insurance Program. Its contents are based on state statute and administrative code. It includes group health contract language and instructions relevant to the administrative and reporting practices of the Group Health Insurance Program. Wisconsin statutes, administrative code, and group health contract language are reviewed on an ongoing basis and may be revised. This document will be updated regularly.

The Department of Employee Trust Funds will make every effort to communicate changes to employers via the ETF website and ETF E-mail Updates. This Employer Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual contains examples relevant to the administration of the Group Health Insurance Program but may not cover every eventuality. Specific program questions and situations will be considered with regard to current statute, administrative code, this document, and/or case law by ETF. The health insurance benefits are provided through the State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Program Agreement (<u>ET-1136</u>).

Consult this Employer Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual as a first-step resource when you encounter Group Health Insurance Program-related questions or concerns. If questions remain, contact the Employer Services Section (ESS). ESS provides a single point of contact to resolve issues regarding eligibility, enrollment, coverage and invoicing for ETF benefit programs. A central voice mail system handles calls when all ESS staff member lines are busy.

The voice mail system is monitored on a regular basis and all calls are returned within 24 business hours. The ESS telephone is 1-877-533-5020 or email at <u>ETFSMBEmployerInsurance@etf.wi.gov</u>.

Your efforts to accurately administer the provisions of the Group Health Insurance Program are appreciated. If you have comments on this edition or suggestions for the next edition of this Employer Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual, please contact ETF at 1-877-533-5020.

Chapter 1 — Background Information

101 Applicable Policies, Statutes and Legislation

102 Employer Agent Responsibilities

103 Employer Training and Support

104 myETF Benefits System (MEBS)

105 ETF Ombudsperson Services

106 Employer Services Section (ESS) Contacts

101 Applicable Policies, Statutes and Legislation

101 A) Wisconsin Statutory Authority: § 40.51, 40.02 (28)

The Wisconsin Public Employers (WPE) Group Health Insurance Program is authorized by Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7). The program is available to Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) employers and governmental employers who are not in the WRS but who meet the definition of employer under Wis. Stat. s. 40.02 (28), per 2011 Wis. Act 133. This program is administered under the authority of the State of Wisconsin Group Insurance Board (BOARD). The program offers employees and retirees the opportunity to choose between multiple health plan choices.

Statutes can be searched and read at the Wisconsin Legislature website. See <u>http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes</u>.

101 B) Group Insurance Board

The Group Insurance Board (BOARD) sets policy and oversees administration of the group health, life, and income continuation insurance programs for eligible state and local employees. The BOARD reserves the right to change to a fiscal year or to some other schedule that it deems appropriate. The BOARD can allow other types of insurers and third-party vendors to provide other insurance plans, if employees pay the entire premium. The BOARD may assess a Plan Stabilization Contribution to the Wisconsin Public Employers pool. This could be a per contract per month fee. The BOARD may also limit it to EMPLOYERS who have less than 50% of the participating EMPLOYEES enrolled in the IYC ACCESS PLAN coverage.

101 C) Department of Employee Trust Funds Administrative Code

Chapter ETF 40 of the ETF administrative code provides guidelines and policies used to administer health care benefits. Administrative rule can be searched and read at the Wisconsin Legislature website. See <u>https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/code</u>.

101 D) Contract for a Health Plan to Participate Under the Group Health Insurance Program

The program is offered by HEALTH PLANS who participate under the terms of this State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Program Agreement. The goals and objectives of the contract between the BOARD and the health plans are to:

- (1) Encourage the growth of health benefit plans that can deliver quality health care efficiently and economically.
- (2) Offer employees a choice between two or more health plans.

101 E) Act 10 and Act 32

2011 Wisconsin Act 10 and 2011 Wisconsin Act 32 contain a number of provisions that affect the Group Health Insurance Programs administered by ETF. For more information, please visit ETF's website at <u>etf.wi.gov</u>.

101 F) Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

HIPAA was enacted by Congress in 1996. The primary goal of HIPAA is to implement national standards that simplify and streamline the health-care claims and payment process.

- (1) The three components of this effort are:
 - (a) **Electronic Data Transaction Standards** Sets uniform methods for conducting electronic transactions.
 - (b) **Privacy** Limits how health information can be used and disclosed.
 - (c) **Security** Requires safeguards for health information maintained in electronic form.
- (2) ETF must comply with the following HIPAA regulations:
 - (a) When an employee does not apply for health insurance when first eligible, a new opportunity to apply occurs during the annual health benefits open enrollment period. Coverage is then effective January 1 of the following year.
 - (b) Certain qualifying events such as loss of other group coverage, marriage, or the birth or adoption of a child, permit an enrollment opportunity without restriction. For more information, see the *Life Events Guide* in the health benefits materials at etf.wi.gov or contact ETF's *Employer Communication Center* at 1-877-533-5020 (toll free) or 1-608-266-3285.

A Notice of Privacy Practices is posted on ETF's website (<u>etf.wi.gov</u>) and appears in the health benefits materials online under *Federal/State Notifications*.

101 G) Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) was signed into law on March 23, 2010. The law offers choices for consumers and provides new ways to hold insurance companies accountable. The law offers several benefits relating to the following health-care issues:

- (1) Rights and protections.
- (2) Insurance choices.
- (3) Full coverage for federally required preventive care services.

The consulting actuary to the BOARD has stated that all group health insurance plans offered to the employees and early (non-Medicare) retirees of participating WPE groups are considered MINIMUM ESSENTIAL COVERAGE.

For more detailed information about ACA provisions, visit <u>www.healthcare.gov</u> and <u>www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform/</u>.

102 Employer Agent Responsibilities

102 A) Designate a health insurance representative to:

- (1) Receive, respond, and forward as necessary ETF E-mail Updates, which contain important news and information from ETF. Your ETF case manager will automatically subscribe you to the appropriate topics for your agency. Contact your case manager with any questions.
- (2) Explain eligibility, cost, enrollment procedures and effective dates to employees.
- (3) Review original required documentation to validate births, marriages, divorces, deaths, and other life events. For births, marriages, divorces and deaths, send ETF the *Employer Attestation for Documentation Received* (ET-1908) form to verify your actions to benefit coverage eligibility. Employers should *not* send digital copies of vital records per Wis. Stat. § 69.21. See Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846).
- (4) Provide annual Health Benefits Decision Guides, either paper or electronic, to all new hires and current subscribers prior to the annual health benefits open enrollment period and track when each employee received one. The annual Health Benefits Decision Guides, available on the ETF website and updated annually (please see ET-2128, ET-2158, ET-2168, and ET-2169) provide information on what's changing, health insurance rates, uniform benefits and plan availability for the plan year.
- (5) Provide information upon initial enrollment, during health benefits open enrollment, continuation-conversion provisions, and when applicable, Medicare.
- (6) Secure, audit and maintain health insurance applications, audit and approve online enrollments and arrange payroll deductions.
- (7) Run reports to determine eligibility for dependents turning age 26 including those who are disabled.
- (8) Review, reconcile and pay monthly ETF invoices online by the 24th of each month. Refer to Chapter 15.

- (9) Refer employees to the appropriate health plan contacts for claim or benefit questions. Customer service contact information is available in the health benefits materials online under *Contact Info* for *Health Plans*. (Employers only are also provided contacts for more specific areas such as claims and complaints. The *Health Plan and Vendor Contact List* (ET-1728) is updated quarterly and provided in an employer bulletin. This list is not meant to be shared with employees, but as a tool for employers only.)
- (10) EMPLOYERs newly joining or leaving the program must notify insured ANNUITANTS of the availability or loss of this coverage.
- (11) EMPLOYERs newly joining or leaving the program must notify any COBRA/CONTINUANTS from the previous group plan of the change of coverage to or from this health insurance program. Notification and application should be sent to his/her last known address.
- (12) Refer annuitant health insurance questions to ETF's Employer Services Section, Retiree Health Insurance Unit.
- (13) Refer questions regarding this contract to ETF (Refer to subchapter 106).
- (14) Respond to health plan questions and audits in a timely manner.
- (15) Visit <u>etf.wi.gov</u> to obtain forms as needed to ensure you are using the most current version.
- (16) All documentation must be submitted to ETF in English.

103 Employer Training and Support

103 A) Training

Training for employers administering benefits under the Group Health Insurance con- tract is provided via the ETF website and the help tab on myETF Benefits.

103 B) Group Health Plan Questions and Technical Support

Questions about group health plans or benefits should be directed to the Employer Services Section (ESS) at 1-877-533-5020 (toll-free) or <u>ETFSMBEmployerInsurance@etf wi.gov</u>

104 myETF Benefits System

myETF Benefits System is a self-service benefits management system. The system has two applications:

104 A) myETF Benefits Administrator application for Employers (via Online Network for Employers - ONE).

104 B) myETF Benefits application for Members (via Online Network for Members - ONM).

- (1) The myETF Benefits Administrator Application for Employers allows employers to:
 - (a) Initially enroll new employees.
 - (b) View and update individual member health insurance eligibility and demographic data.
 - (c) Complete mass employee terminations.

- (d) View and update health insurance enrollment data.
- (e) Approve employee submitted changes to health insurance and demographic data.
- (2) The myETF Benefits Application for Members allows members and employers to:
 - (a) Initially enroll in the health insurance if the employer allows and has set up the employee on the myMembers screen.
 - (b) View individual health insurance eligibility and demographic data.
 - (c) Update health insurance enrollment data.
 - (d) Update demographic information.

The administrator (employer) application can be found at the ONE site and is accessed using the employer's ONE login and password. Access to myETF Benefits is granted via the *Online Network for Employers Security Agreement* (<u>ET-8928</u>).

Members will need to set up a login and password to access the system through Wisconsin Access Management System (WAMS). Employers will need to gain access by submitting the *Online Network For Employers Security Agreement*.

Appendix C contains more detailed instructions for employers to use the myETF Benefits System.

105 ETF Ombudsperson Services

The ombudsperson is a confidential resource for WRS and insurance program members and acts as a neutral party to work for equity, fairness and compliance with program policies and insurance contracts.

ETF offers ombudsperson services to assist members who remain dissatisfied after first having contacted the health plan and/or the Employer Services Section regarding a problem or complaint. Employers should direct employees in this situation to email, write or call ETF's ombudsperson at the following:

Department of Employee Trust Funds P O Box 7931 Madison WI 53707-7931

1-608-261-7947

Email ombudsperson@etf.wi.gov

ETF ombudspersons advocate for members and attempt to resolve complaints and problems on their behalf. If unsuccessful, the ombudsperson advises the member of subsequent avenues of appeal. If a member's issue cannot be resolved informally, formal written complaints should be made in writing, using the *Insurance Complaint Form* (ET-2405) if possible and should include an explanation of the issue the member is attempting to resolve. Additional information regarding ETF ombudsperson services can be found under the "Members" section at <u>etf.wi.gov</u> and searching Ombudsperson ET-1144 Chapter 1 (REV 6/27/2023)

106 Employer Services Section, Insurance Unit (ESS) Contacts

Employers can contact ESS for questions related to eligibility, enrollment, forms and other inquiries via the methods below.

106 A) Employee Trust Funds (ETF)

Mailing Address	P.O. Box 7931 Madison WI 53707-7931
Shipping Address	Department of Employee Trust Funds 4822 Madison Yards Way Madison WI 53705-9100
Telephone	1-877-533-5020 select option 2 (toll free)
ТТҮ	711
Fax	1-608-267-4549
Website	etf.wi.gov
Email	ETFSMBEmployerInsurance@etf.wi.gov If you are sending demographic or sensitive documentation to ETF via email, it must be sent secure. If you are unable to send secure, submit it securely through Box or fax it to ETF.
Secure Document Submission	Documents for demographic or sensitive information can be submitted securely to ETF through Box. Use this link to submit documents securely: <u>https://etf.app.box.com/f/7a3fc2c5ca3c45c3848c</u> <u>44d3f6dbafab</u>

Office Hours

7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday (except holidays)

106 B) Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM) Contact Information

	Navitus Health Solutions, LLC
Office Address	1025 West Navitus Drive
	Appleton WI 54913
	Navitus Health Solutions, LLC
Mailing Address	P.O. Box 999
	Appleton, WI 54912-0999
Telephone 1-866-333-2757 (toll free)	
Website	www.navitus.com

106 C) Wellness and Disease Management Program Administrator

Mailing Address	WebMD Health Services Group, Inc. 2701 NW Vaughn Street, Suite 700, Portland, Oregon 97210
Telephone	1-800-821-6591 (toll free)
Website	https://webmdhealth.com/wellwisconsin

Chapter 2 — Health Plan and Program Requirements and Information

201 Benefit Program Option Information 202 IYC Health Plans and HDHP (HMOs and PPOs) 203 IYC Local Access Plan or Local Access HDHP 204 State Maintenance Plan (SMP) and Health Plan Qualification **205 Contribution Rates 206 Employer Paid Annuitants** 207 Service Area **208 Opt-Out Incentive** 209 Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM) - Navitus 210 Wellness & Disease Management Program Administrator - WebMD **211 Health Plan Contacts** 212 Coordination of Benefits (COB) **213 Administration of Benefit Maximums** 214 Errors 215 Premium Refunds due to Errors are Limited **216 Limited Premium and Claim Adjustments**

217 Benefits are Non-Transferrable

The Wisconsin Public Employers Group Health Insurance Program offers two types of plans to participating EMPLOYEES and ANNUITANTS: IYC health plans and the IYC ACCESS Plan. Effective January 1, 2015, there are four different Program Options to choose from, including a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) option. The EMPLOYER may not offer group health insurance coverage to eligible EMPLOYEES from any health insurance carrier not participating in the health insurance program of the BOARD. If dental coverage is offered through this program, it is Uniform Dental Benefits.

201 Benefit Program Option Information

201 A) Local government employers have flexibility in choosing cost-sharing plan options under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program. Employers may offer up to four program options (POs) to different classes of employees (that is, collective bargaining units). Employers may also elect whether or not to offer Uniform Dental coverage. Program options vary based upon these choices.

Four different health benefit options are available, identified by the Program Option (PO) an employer selects. The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides*, available on the ETF website and updated annually provide information on what's changing, health insurance rates, uniform benefits and plan availability for the plan year. They are:

PO 2/12: Traditional Health Plan (ET-2128) PO 4/14: Deductible Health Plan (ET-2158) PO 6/16: It's Your Choice Health Plan (ET-2168) PO 7/17: High Deductible Health Plan (ET-2169) The EMPLOYER electing the Deductible Health Plan option coverage shall not pay the deductible on behalf of the EMPLOYEE/PARTICIPANT unless it is under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The EMPLOYER electing the High Deductible Health Plan option coverage shall not pay the deductible on behalf of the EMPLOYEE/PARTICIPANT unless it is under Section 125 Health Savings Account (HSA) or under Section 152 and 213(d) Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) of the Internal Revenue Code. The EMPLOYER is not required to offer an HSA or HRA with the High Deductible Health Plan.

S 	or HMOs and some PPOs: Represents benefits for in-network providers	Program Option 2 <u>*</u> /12 IYC Local Traditional Plan	Program Option 4*/14 IYC Local Deductible Plan	Program Option 6 <u>*</u> /16 IYC Local Health Plan	Program Option 7 [*] /17 IYC Local High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP)
	Deductible (Unless otherwise noted, it is an overall deductible)	No deductible	\$500 Individual \$1,000 Family Except as required by federal law. Does not apply to prescription drug copayments.	\$250 Individual \$500 Family Except as required by federal law. Does not apply to office visit and prescription drug copayments.	\$1,600 Individual \$3,200 Family Except as required by federal law. <i>Note:</i> Deductible must be met before coverage begins. For family coverage, full family deductible must be met. Deductible includes prescription drug coverage. Once met, office visit and prescription drug copayments apply up to OOPL.
nefits	Office Visit Copayment	None	None	\$15 Primary Care, \$25 Specialty Care. Applies to OOPL but not deductible.	After deductible \$15 Primary Care, \$25 Specialty Care. Applies to OOPL.
Uniform Benefits	Coinsurance	None except 20% for durable medical equipment, adult hearing aids and adult cochlear implants.	After deductible, none except 20% for durable medical equipment, adult hearing aids and adult cochlear implants.	After deductible you pay 10% except for office visit copayments.	After deductible you pay 10% except for office visit and prescription drug copayments.
	Annual out-of- pocket limit (OOPL): includes deductible and coinsurance	None except up to \$500 Individual for durable medical equipment and adult cochlear implants. Plan pays no more than \$1,000 for each adult hearing aid. See etf.wi.gov.	After deductible, none except up to \$500 Individual for durable medical equipment and adult cochlear implants. Plan pays no more than \$1,000 for each adult hearing aid. See etf.wi.gov.	\$1,250 Individual \$2,500 Family	\$2,500 Individual \$5,000 Family

Wisconsin Public Employees
Non-Medicare Medical Benefits/Program Options (POs)

Drug	Copayment/Coinsurance (For detail including prescription drug out-of-pocket limits, visit etf.wi.gov)		
ion efits	Level 1	\$5	
rescription I Benefits	Level 2	20% (\$50 max)	
reso	Level 3 40% (\$150 ma		
P	Level 4 Preferred	\$50	

* Program option includes dental coverage with no deductible and a \$1,000 per individual annual benefit maximum with 100% coverage of filings and specified diagnostic and preventive services; and 90% coverage for non-surgical extractions and 80% coverage of certain basic services. Also includes 50% coverage up to \$1,500 per child for orthodontia.

201 B) In addition to medical benefits, local employers have a choice to offer Uniform Dental or not. This is reflected in the PO code. For example, an employer who requests the Local Deductible Plan with dental would be coded P04. If the employer chose not to offer dental, the program option would be P14. Uniform Dental offers preventive, basic and some orthodontic coverage. It is not comprehensive dental coverage. For more information, see the health benefits local materials online.

201 C) Local employers may change POs or enroll under additional POs once a year, by submitting an *Existing Employer Option Selection Resolution* (<u>etf.wi.gov/</u><u>publications/et1152.docx</u>) with ETF before October 1. It must be signed by your governing body. Employers having questions about changing, adding, or deleting program options may call the Employer Services Section at 1-877-533-5020 or 608-266-3285.

An EMPLOYER may elect to enroll under additional program options only to collective bargaining units as approved by ETF. Individual EMPLOYEES and insured ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS cannot choose between POs. For example, an employer may offer PO2 for their police and firefighters and PO4 for all others. Therefore, all police and firefighters must only be offered PO2, and all others must only be offered PO4.

NOTE: Normally, local employers select one Program Option for all their employees. Rarely, a local employer might have different Program Options for different groups of employees. For example, a municipality might have different Program Options for their general employees and for their collectively bargained employees (such as protective category employees).

If a local employer has more than one Program Option, and an employee switches from one to the other due to a change in positions, the employer cancels their coverage in MEBS using the steps outlined in this manual:

- 1. Follow steps to cancel coverage outlined in Appendix C-6.
- 2. Under Step 4, when selecting options from the "Premiums are deducted" dropdown, select "Pre-tax: I (and all my dependents, if any) became eligible for and enrolled in other group coverage.

202 IYC Health Plans and HDHP (HMOs and PPOs)

IYC health plans are health maintenance organizations (HMOs) or preferred provider organizations (PPOs) that provide Uniform Benefits at a lower cost than the IYC ACCESS PPO Plan in exchange for some health care provider limitations. Most employees select an IYC health plan. PPOs may have different copayment and deductible schedules for out-of-network providers, except in the case of emergency, urgent care or when the service is not reasonably available from a plan provider.

All health plans participating in the Group Health Insurance Program offer the same level of coverage, called Uniform Benefits, with the exception of the Medicare Plus plan offered to

Medicare eligible retirees by UnitedHealthcare. Note that plans may have differing medical policies that impact coverage, for example, differences in what services are considered experimental.

Uniform Benefits, as detailed in the health benefits materials online, are designed to ease employee health plan selection and assist ETF's efforts to negotiate quality care at the lowest possible cost. Uniform Benefits permit employees to select a health plan based on cost, quality of services, and access to specific physicians or other health care providers.

While Uniform Benefit coverage levels are the same for IYC health plans, plans differ in other ways, namely premium amount, provider network, benefit determinations and administrative requirements. Uniform Benefits and premium amounts change on an annual basis. The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides*, available on the ETF website and updated annually (please see ET-2128, ET-2158, ET-2168, and ET-2169) provide information on what's changing, health insurance rates, uniform benefits and plan availability for the plan year. The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides* and the Certificates of Coverage and Schedules of Benefits (listed below) online are the most reliable resources for details.

Form # ET-	Title of Certificate of Coverage or Schedule of Benefits (Program Option)
2180	Uniform Benefits Certificate of Coverage [For Access Plans too]
2108sb	Local Traditional Plan and Health Plan Medicare Schedule of Benefits (P02/12/P06/16/P07/17/P08)
2131sb	Local Traditional Access Plan Schedule of Benefits (PO2, PO12)
2158sb	Local Deductible Plan Schedule of Benefits (PO4, PO14)
2162sb	Local Deductible Access Plan Schedule of Benefits (PO4/14)
2107sb	IYC Health Plan Schedule of Benefits (PO6/16/PO8)
2112sb	Access Plan Local Health Plan and LAHP Schedule of Benefits (PO6/16/08)
2107sbhd	High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) Schedule of Benefits (PO7/17)
2170sb	Access High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) Schedule of Benefits (PO7, PO17)
4113	Medicare Plus (Certificate of Coverage and Schedule of Benefits)
2100cc	Medicare Advantage without deductible (Evidence of Coverage)
2100ccd	Medicare Advantage with Deductible PO4/14 (Evidence of Coverage)

Note: Benefits generally differ for annuitants and their dependents enrolled in Medicare for example, deductibles do not apply.

Employers may choose to offer Uniform Dental Benefits. If they do, you will be enrolled in Program Option 2 (Traditional), 4 (Deductible), 6 (IYC Health Plan) or 7 (HDHP). See section 201 B) or more information on program options.

203 IYC Local ACCESS Plan and IYC ACCESS HDHP

The IYC Local ACCESS Plan (formerly the Standard Plan) is a statewide/nationwide Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) that is currently administered by Dean Health Plan. Participants enrolled in the IYC ACCESS Plan can see a provider of their choice without the network restrictions associated with an HMO. In exchange for this freedom to select the provider of their choice, the participants have different benefit levels depending on whether the provider selected is in-network (Uniform Benefits) or out-of-network (lesser benefit level). PPOs have different copayment and deductible schedules for out-of-network providers, except in the case of emergency or urgent care. Participants can review the *IYC ACCESS Plan* Certificate of Coverage online for more details:

> PO 2/12: Traditional Access Plan (ET-2131sb) PO 4/14: Deductible Access Plan (ET-2162sb) PO 6/16: Access Plan for Local Health Plan (ET-2112sb) PO 7/17: Access High Deductible Health Plan (ET-2170sb)

Members who choose this plan typically want the freedom of choice to see any provider, anywhere. They tend to be higher utilizers of care and thus the cost of this plan is typically greater than an IYC Health Plan.

Premium rates for the IYC Access Plan may vary based upon the geographic location of the municipality. The difference is to be determined annually by the BOARD's actuary.

204 State Maintenance Plan (SMP) and Health Plan Qualification

The State Maintenance Plan (SMP) offers the same Uniform Benefits package as the IYC health plans, but is available only in those counties that do not have a qualified Tier 1 IYC Health Plan as noted in the current health benefits materials. In those counties, the 88% or 105% formula is based on SMP rates. SMP is administered by Dean Health Plan.

Health Plan Qualification: Health plans are determined to be qualified on a county by county basis. Plans become "qualified" by meeting requirements for a specified number of providers. The Board reserves the right to make enrollment and eligibility decisions as necessary to implement this program, including whether to make a Tier 1 plan available in those counties in which otherwise no qualified health plan in Tier 1 exists and/or a Tier 2 plan available in any county. ETF may take such action as necessary to implement this intent.

205 Contribution Rates

205 A) Under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7) and Wisconsin Administrative Code ETF 40.10, participating employers have the choice of three structures available for establishing employer contribution toward premium. The 88% calculation method (see section 205B), the three-tiered premium structure (see section 205D) and the 105% formula method (see section 205C) that is only available to those groups identified in the law following passage of 2011 Wisconsin Act 10. See also section 403.

You may view a half hour webinar on contribution rates at etf.wi.gov under training in the employer's section.

Contributions can vary by employee groups. A group can be defined by:

- 1) start dates,
- 2) full-time equivalency,
- 3) coverage type (single or family),
- 4) collective bargaining agreements,
- 5) geographic location or
- 6) other breakdown approved by ETF.

The employer must apply the same adjusted contribution rate equally to all employees within the same group, regardless of the plan they select.

The rate tables ETF provides on-line indicate the maximum employer share following the restrictions below. If a health plan's premium is equal to or less than the employer's share, the employer pays the entire premium. The employer may adjust the employer contribution downward to require employees who select low-cost plans to pay some amount. If a health plan's premium is substantially higher than the employer contribution rate, the employee contribution will be the difference between the total premium rate and the employer contribution rate.

Locals may offer employees a health insurance opt-out incentive. See 208 and 503A 6 for more information.

In order to be qualified, health plans must have providers in the geographic area serving the majority of the employees in order to be considered in the employers' contribution formula; however, this does not limit the employee's choice of plans. Employees may select any plan offered by this program, as long as they are willing to receive health care from its respective network providers.

Health Plan Qualification: Health plans are determined to be qualified on a county by county basis. Plans become "qualified" by meeting requirements for a specified number of providers and years of operation. In order to be qualified in a county, the health plan must offer 5 PCPs, a hospital if one is in the county and a chiropractor. In certain large cities, greater amounts of providers are required. The Board reserves the right to make enrollment and eligibility decisions as necessary to implement this program, including whether to make a Tier 1 plan available in those counties in which otherwise no qualified health plan in Tier 1 exists and/or a Tier 2 plan available in any county. ETF may take such action as necessary to implement this intent (see 204D below).

205 B) 88% formula method:

The 88% rate tables ETF provides on-line indicate the maximum employer share following the restrictions below. The 88% calculation method aligns with the 105% calculation as required by the statutes.

(1) The EMPLOYER contribution toward PREMIUM for any EMPLOYEE shall be at least 50% but not more than 88% of the gross PREMIUM of the average cost Tier 1 qualified IYC health plan approved by the BOARD which is in the service area of the EMPLOYER.

(See 207 for more information on service area.)

(2) The minimum contribution for an EMPLOYEE who is appointed to work less than 1,040 hours per year shall be no less than 25% of the lowest cost qualified IYC health plan that is in the service area of the EMPLOYER and approved by the BOARD.

(3) If the amount of EMPLOYER contribution changes, a new enrollment offering may be made to its EMPLOYEES, as determined by ETF.

205 C) 105% formula method:

The 105% formula applies to those listed below (or a three tier structure that aligns with the 105% formula may be used):

- (1) Represented employees who are subject to a collective bargaining agreement that was in place before June 28, 2011.
- (2) Non-represented managerial law enforcement or managerial fire-fighting employees initially hired by a local employer before July 1, 2011. These employees are paid at the same percentage as represented law enforcement or fire-fighting personnel hired before July 1, 2011.
- (3) Represented law enforcement or fire-fighting employees initially hired before July 1, 2011 and who on or after July 1, 2011 became a non-represented law enforcement or fire-fighting managerial employee. These employees are paid at the same percentage as represented law enforcement or fire-fighting personnel hired before July 1, 2011.

The EMPLOYER contribution toward PREMIUM for any EMPLOYEE shall be:

- (1) At least 50% but not more than 105% of the gross PREMIUM of the low cost qualified IYC health plan approved by the BOARD which is in the service area of the EMPLOYER. (See 207 for more information on service area.)
- (2) The minimum contribution for an EMPLOYEE who is appointed to work less than 1,040 hours per year shall be 25% of the lowest cost qualified IYC health plan that is in the service area of the EMPLOYER and approved by the BOARD.
- (3) If the amount of EMPLOYER contribution changes, a new offering may be made to its EMPLOYEES, as determined by ETF.

205 D) Three Tier Premium Contribution Structure Available

 The 3 Tier Premium Structure is also available for employers to use in establishing the maximum employee contribution toward premium. Each year the Board and its consulting actuaries rank and assign each of the available health plans to one of three "tier" categories. An employee's premium contribution is determined by the tier ranking of the health plan selected.

The 3 Tier system is designed to foster competition between the health plans bidding to provide coverage through ETF while maintaining high-quality health care. All plans are assigned to one of the three tiers based on their cost effectiveness and the quality of care provided. The health plans offered by ETF are predominately Tier 1, although some plans may fall into Tiers 2 or 3.

- (a) Tier 1 plans Low cost.
- (b) Tier 2 plans Moderate cost.
- (c) Tier 3 plans High cost.
- EMPLOYERS who determine the EMPLOYEE PREMIUM contribution based on the tiered structure established for state EMPLOYEES must do so in accordance with Wis. Adm. Code § ETF 40.10. The criteria for a local employer to implement tiering is as follows:
 - (a) The employee portion of the monthly premium will increase for plans in higher tiers by at least \$20 for single coverage and \$50 for family coverage for each successively higher tier.
 - (b) The employee's single or family premium contribution must be the same for all plans in a given tier.
 - (c) A number of provisions affect the amount an employer may contribute toward the employee cost of health insurance. 2011 Wisconsin Act 10 requires that participating local employers not pay more than 88% of the average premium cost of the qualified tier one health plans. If a collective bargaining agreement remains in effect, the terms of that agreement regarding group health insurance apply. In addition, Administrative Code ETF 40.10 prohibits the employer from paying more than 105% of the least costly qualified health plan within the employer's county.
 - (d) The employer must pay at least 50% of the premium for employees who work 1,040 hours or more per year and can pay no less than 25% of the premium for employees who work fewer than 1,040hours per year.

206 Employer Paid Annuitants

ANNUITANTS for whom the EMPLOYER contributes toward the PREMIUM shall be treated as EMPLOYEES for the purpose of PREMIUM and coverage reporting.

207 Service Area

The county of the employer is considered the service area for local employers.

In rare circumstances, an employer may find that the lowest cost tier 1 qualified plan identified for their county in the 88% employer contribution tables does not represent the health plan chosen by most of their employees. This is usually caused by the employer's location in a county when compared to the provider service area offered by the health plan. In this case and at the request of a participating employer, ETF will review the service area used to determine the least / average cost qualified plan used for determining the employer's maximum premium contribution. (See section 205 for more information.) If ETF reviews the service area, the least / average cost plan will either be based on the zip code locations that include at least 80% of the covered employees of the participating employer, or, when an employer has offices in multiple counties, the least / average cost plan is determined by the

county office to which the employee reports to work. Once ETF has made such an assessment, that service area will determine the least / average cost plan until it is demonstrated that there has been a significant change in employee residency and the area no longer meets the 80% criteria.

208 Opt-Out Incentive

Local government employers have flexibility to offer a health insurance opt-out incentive similar to the State's policy. They may offer payments to employees in lieu of enrolling for health insurance coverage in the program.

209 Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM) - Navitus

A pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) is the third-party administrator of the prescription drug program and is primarily responsible for processing and paying prescription drug claims, managing the network of available pharmacies, and maintaining the preferred drug list, called the formulary. All participants in the Group Health Insurance Program receive their pharmacy benefits through the PBM, Navitus Health Solutions, regardless of the health plan they have chosen.

Medicare eligible retirees enrolled in the Group Health Insurance Program will be automatically enrolled in the Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan, which is underwritten by Dean Health Insurance Inc., a federally-qualified Medicare Part D prescription drug plan. In addition, these retirees will also have supplemental "Wrap" coverage that pays secondary to the Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan.

Retirees may choose to be enrolled in another Medicare Part D plan, but it is neither recommended nor required. Retirees who choose to enroll in another Medicare Part D plan will be disenrolled from ETF's Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan. However, they will still maintain the supplemental "Wrap" coverage, which will be secondary to the other Medicare Part D plan. There is no partial premium refund for enrolling in another Medicare Part D plan.

Pharmacy ID Cards

Subscribers receive separate ID cards from Navitus and must present that ID card to their pharmacist when filling a prescription. Please contact Navitus (refer to subchapter 106) for questions pertaining to the pharmacy benefit. In addition, retirees who maintain their enrollment in the Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan will receive a separate ID card specifically for the Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan.

210 Wellness & Disease Management Program Administrator -WebMD

WebMD is the third-party administrator of Well Wisconsin, the uniform wellness and disease management program. Well Wisconsin is available to all subscribers and spouses enrolled in the Group Health Insurance Program. Well Wisconsin participants who complete a health check, health assessment and a well-being activity are eligible to receive a \$150 incentive.

Some well-being activity options include: health coaching, disease management, wellness challenges and other online well-being programs.

All incentives earned by participants are considered taxable income to the subscriber and are reported to employers semiannually. COBRA participants will see some taxes withheld from their incentive.

WebMD offers onsite biometric screenings and flu vaccine clinics for employers to host at their location. There is a minimum of 20 participants for each event. Employers may request events directly through WebMD.

211 Health Plan & Vendor Contacts

Health plan and benefit vendor addresses and phone numbers are listed in the health benefits *materials online*. Your employees are encouraged to contact health plans using the resources listed on this page with specific questions regarding such topics as referral policies, benefits, filing of claims and/or provider networks.

Employers may use the contacts on the <u>Health Plan and Vendor Contacts (ET-1728)</u> to get answers to questions on membership, claims, grievances, supplies and other information. It is found on ETF's website under the *Employer Forms and Brochures* section for health insurance. This form should not be shared with employees.

212 Coordination of Benefits (COB)

For a variety of reasons, some individuals are covered under more than one group health insurance plan. When this occurs, insurance regulations are used to "coordinate" or determine the order in which the benefits are paid. The plan that pays first is called the "primary plan" and the plan that pays next is the "secondary plan." The insurance regulations for determining the order in which plans will pay benefits are described online at etf.wi.gov under the health benefits section. See the Certificates of Coverage (refer to section 202). Questions regarding COB should be directed to the health plans.

213 Administration of Benefit Maximums

213 A) If a PARTICIPANT changes HEALTH PLANS during a CONTRACT year (e.g., due to a change in residence), any annual BENEFIT maximums, deductibles, or out-of-pocket limits under the health benefit program will start over at \$0 with the new HEALTH PLAN as of the EFFECTIVE DATE of coverage with the new HEALTH PLAN with the exception of the prescription drug BENEFIT annual out-of-pocket maximum for the HEALTH PLAN. The deductibles and out-of-pocket accumulation will start over if the PARTICIPANT changes insurers. However, a change within the same HEALTH PLAN but with a different provider network, such as Quartz, would result in a continuation of the accumulated maximums.

213 B) If a PARTICIPANT changes the level of coverage (e.g., single to family), or has a spouse-to-spouse transfer resulting in a change of SUBSCRIBER, but does not change HEALTH PLANS, the annual BENEFIT maximums, deductibles, and out-of-pocket limits will

continue to accumulate for that year. NOTE: No accumulations transfer if an employee moves from state to local (or vice versa) coverage, or to another local employer, regardless if they remain covered by the same insurer.

213 C) The HEALTH PLAN shall provide the PARTICIPANT with medical BENEFIT accumulations upon request. This requirement can be satisfied through the mailing of a plan explanation of benefits.

214 Errors

214 A) No clerical error made by the employer, ETF or the HEALTH PLAN shall invalidate benefits of a participant otherwise validly in force, nor continue such BENEFITS otherwise validly terminated except for the constructive waiver provision below. See 901A 10.

214 B) If an employee or annuitant has made application during a prescribed enrollment period for either individual or family coverage and has authorized the premium contributions, benefits shall not be invalidated solely because of the failure of the employer or ETF due to clerical error, to give proper notice to the HEALTH PLAN of such employee's application except for the constructive waiver provision below.

214 C) Constructive waiver: Any enrolled employee in active pay status for whom the employee portion of PREMIUMS has not been deducted from salary by the employer for a period of 12 consecutive months, shall be deemed to have prospectively waived coverage upon a 30-day notice to the employee, unless all required back PREMIUMS are paid. Coverage then may be obtained only under the deferred coverage provisions of 701 G.

214 D) In the event that an employer determines an effective date under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (2) based on information obtained from ETF available at the time the application is filed, such application shall not be invalidated solely as a result of an administrative error in determining the proper effective date of employer contribution. No such error will result in providing coverage for which the employee would otherwise not be entitled, except as required by law.

214 E) If a person is erroneously omitted from participation under the Wisconsin Retirement System and the omission is corrected retroactively, including payment of all WRS required contributions for the retroactive period the MEMBER must submit an application within 30 days of notice from EMPLOYER of the error. Coverage will be prospective if the person would have been eligible for the coverage had the error never occurred.

215 Premium Refunds due to Errors are Limited

In the event an **employer** erroneously continues to pay the PREMIUM for an **employee** who terminates employment or is on a leave of absence, refunds of such PREMIUMS shall be limited to no more than two months of PREMIUMS paid prior to the current month of coverage. However, if the last dependent loses eligibility due to age, then retro adjustments to premiums may go back 6 months based upon the date the EMPLOYEE files the application. Also see 901G.

216 Limited Premium and Claim Adjustments

Except in cases of fraud, material misrepresentation, resolution of Board appeal, or when required by Medicare, retrospective adjustments to PREMIUM or claims for coverage not validly in force shall be limited to no more than six months of PREMIUMS paid. In cases where Medicare is the primary payer, retroactive adjustments to PREMIUM or claims for coverage not validly in force shall correspond with the shortest retroactive enrollment limit set by Medicare (currently 90 days) for either medical or prescription drug claims, not to exceed six months and in accordance with 1301 F. No retroactive premium refunds shall be made for coverage resulting from any application due to fraud or material misrepresentation. The HEALTH PLAN is responsible for resolving discrepancies in claims payment for all Medicare data match inquiries.

217 Benefits Non-Transferable

No person other than a PARTICIPANT, as recorded in the office of the HEALTH PLAN, is entitled to BENEFITS under this CONTRACT. The SUBSCRIBER or any of his or her DEPENDENTS who assigns or transfers their rights under the CONTRACT, aids any other person in obtaining BENEFITS or knowingly presents or causes to be presented a false or fraudulent claim shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor as prescribed under Wis. Stat. § 943.395, and subject to the penalties set forth under Wis. Stat. § 939.51 (3) (a).

Chapter 3 — New Participating Employer Information

- 304 Large Group (50+ employees) Underwriting and Surcharges
- 305 Groups with 40 to 49 Employees Underwriting and Surcharges
- 306 Initial Group Enrollment

301 Large Group (50+ employees) Underwriting and Surcharges

301 A) Effective January 1, 2009, large (50+ employees) local governments seeking to participate in the local group health insurance program are subject to group underwriting and may be assessed a surcharge based on their risk as recommended by ETF's actuary. The 90-day underwriting process that begins with receipt by ETF of all materials described on the checklist from the *How to Become a Participating Employer under the Wisconsin Public Employer's Group Health Insurance Program* (ET-1139). At least 40 days prior to the EFFECTIVE DATE, ETF must receive from the EMPLOYER all EMPLOYEE and ANNUITANT applications for which coverage will begin on the EFFECTIVE DATE.

This process has been approved by the BOARD. The surcharge is applied when a group's risk is determined to be detrimental to the existing pool. Surcharge rates are applied to all non-Medicare rates, including for retiree family contracts that contain a member who is non-Medicare. Surcharge rates are passed on to the health plan and prescription drug plan to cover anticipated claims.

Surcharge amounts are usually reduced for the calendar year following the group's initial period. For example, a group joining on January 1 with a 30% surcharge can expect to see their rate drop to 15% the second year and be eliminated at the start of the third year. However, surcharge amounts are reviewed annually by the BOARDS's actuary and the foundational rate may be increased at of the start of a calendar year. In the example above, this means that the second year surcharge amount may be greater than 15% due to the annual renewal process.

Administration of the underwriting process is done, and assessment of the surcharge is determined by the BOARD's actuary. The surcharge determination cannot be appealed. ETF reserves the right to separately rate underwritten groups larger than 2,000 total members, as recommended by the actuary.

Underwriting compares the claims experience of the employer's members over the last 2 to 3 years to the pool of currently insured employees in the local Group Health Insurance Program. If the claims experience (risk) is higher than the claims experience in the pool, the increased risk is off-set by a surcharge rate of up to 80% of the average cost of the local health plans. For information on codes, see Appendix B.

301 B) In order to participate (for large groups after underwriting) the governing body of an EMPLOYER shall adopt a resolution for an offered program option in a form prescribed by ETF. An EMPLOYER may elect to provide different program options (see 201) separately to collective bargaining units as approved by ETF.

301 C) The EFFECTIVE DATE of coverage shall be the beginning of the quarter (for large employers, following the 90-day underwriting process).

301 D) If the number of EMPLOYEE applications received does not represent the minimum participation level of at least 65% of the eligible EMPLOYEES or for small EMPLOYERS as defined under Wis. Stat. § 635.02 (7), the minimum participation level in accordance with Wis. Adm. Code § INS 8.46 (2), the resolution shall become void. Eligible employees who have other qualifying health insurance coverage are excluded when calculating the participation level.

302 Groups with 40 to 49 Employees - Underwriting and Surcharges

Employers interested in joining the WPE Group Health Insurance Program that have between 40 and 49 WRS employees are subject to the following procedure:

302 A) Will have a validated WRS employee roster generated by ETF staff to confirm WRS employees upon initial inquiry to ETF. This is recommended to occur 180 days prior to the group's anticipated effective date.

302 B) The employer must provide their resolution and all of their employee's completed health insurance applications a minimum of 60 days before the effective date. If ETF does not obtain these materials by the 60-day deadline, ETF will re-run the WRS roster. If the number of employees has increased to 50 or more, the employer will be considered a large group. The enrollment process will stop, and the group will not be able to join until the following quarter. The group will have to go through the underwriting process as seen in section 301, as they now are a large group. It is advised that the employer should retain their current health insurance if they expect to increase to 50 or more WRS employees and are not able to have all of their materials submitted to ETF correctly and completely by the 60-day deadline.

302 C) Any EMPLOYER who joins the program with a surcharge shall be required to remain in the program a minimum of three years effective when group participation begins.

303 Initial Group Enrollment

303 A) Eligible EMPLOYEES who are not insured under the EMPLOYER'S current group health plan at the time the resolution to participate is filed, or those insured for single coverage who are enrolling for family coverage, shall be subject to enrollment limitations.

- 1) Employees must choose the Access Plan during initial enrollment if:
 - a. The Employer does not currently cover its employees with group health insurance plans.
 - b. The employee is not insured under the Employer's current health insurance program.
 - c. The employee is insured for single coverage and wants to enroll in family coverage.
 - d. The employee is hired after the Resolution of Inclusion and before the effective date.

In addition, the deferred coverage provisions of section 701 G apply.

These limitations will not apply to PARTICIPANTS insured under another group health insurance plan administered by ETF. Those insured through the employer's group coverage at the time the resolution is filed who do not meet the definition of eligible employee under this

program may elect continuation coverage for up to 36 months or the length of time continuation coverage would be available under the previous insurer, whichever is less.

303 B) EMPLOYEES who are on a leave of absence and not insured under the EMPLOYER'S plan are eligible to enroll only under section 701 G if they returned to active employment. For ANNUITANTS and EMPLOYEES on leave of absence to be eligible under this section, they must be insured under the EMPLOYER'S current group health plan while on leave or as an ANNUITANT.

303 C) ETF may allow any EMPLOYER to offer a non-participating plan to a group of its EMPLOYEES if it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of ETF that:

- (1) collective bargaining barriers require such other coverage; and
- (2) there will be no adverse impact to the program; and

(3) that the minimum number of all of the EMPLOYER'S EMPLOYEES who are eligible under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7), including those who are in the non-participating health plan, become insured under the program of the BOARD to meet the required participation levels as defined in 301 above.

303 D) A Large EMPLOYER (more than 50 employees who are eligible under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7) may indefinitely retain a second plan, as described in 302 C) above, or temporarily retain a second plan for up to four years due to timing of collective bargaining or the merger or division of municipalities by executing the appropriate Resolution to Participate provided the EMPLOYER also meets the 65% participation requirement as described in 301 above. The EMPLOYER may later enroll the EMPLOYEES in the collective bargaining unit that did not enroll during the EMPLOYER'S initial enrollment period due to the EMPLOYER retaining a second plan or due to the timing of collective bargaining. The EMPLOYER must notify ETF, in writing, of this enrollment at least 30 days prior to the EFFECTIVE DATE of coverage for these EMPLOYEES. These EMPLOYEES may elect any available plan if they enroll with no lapse of coverage when their coverage under the other plan terminates.

303 E) An ANNUITANT shall be covered if a completed ETF application form is received as specified in section 301.

Chapter 4 — Eligibility

401 Employee, Annuitant and Continuant Eligibility

402 Dependent Coverage Eligibility

403 Employer Premium Contribution Eligibility

404 Determining Effective Dates for the Employer Premium Contribution

405 WRS Previous Service Check

406 Rehired Employee Coverage

401 Employee, Annuitant and Continuant Eligibility

401 A) EMPLOYEES, ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS shall become or be SUBSCRIBERS if they have filed with the EMPLOYER or ETF, if applicable, an application in the form prescribed by ETF, and are eligible in accordance with the State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Agreement, the law, the administrative rules, and regulations of ETF.

<u>NOTE: In the event an employee is hired, WRS eligible, and elected insurance</u> <u>coverage that is in force; and the employee terminates before completion of 30 days</u> <u>of service, the insurance remains in force and the employee **must** be offered COBRA.</u> <u>Coverage as an active employee will end as of the end of the month of termination.</u>

401 B) All Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) eligible employees, including part-time employees, retirees and survivors (see Chapter 14) are eligible for group health insurance and must be offered coverage if the employer elects to provide coverage under the Wisconsin Public Employers (WPE) Group Health Insurance Program. This includes:

- (1) Active WRS participating employees.
- (2) Any retired employee who:
 - a) was insured by an employer who was and continues to be in the program; and
 - b) who is on an immediate annuity, receives disability retirement, duty disability (see 1101B 2), or Long-Term Disability Insurance (LTDI) benefits, or who receives a lump sum payment under WRS which would have been an immediate annuity if paid as an annuity under Wis. Stat. § 40.25 (1). An immediate annuity means the annuity effective date is within 30 days of the termination date.
- (3) Rehired WRS annuitants who elect to return to active WRS coverage.

401 C) Non-WRS employers covered by a Section 218 agreement with the Social Security Administration who participate in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program must offer the coverage to the following eligible employees. Retirees and survivors are also eligible and must be offered coverage.

(1) Employees covered by any WRS employer before July 1, 2011 must be:

- (a) Expected to work 440 hours for teachers and educational support staff, and 600 hours for all others; and
- (b) Expected to work at least one year (365 consecutive days, 366 in leap year)

from their date of hire.

- (2) Employees who were never in the WRS or were covered by any WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011 must be:
 - (a) Expected to work 880 hours for teachers and educational support staff, and 1,200 hours for all others; and
 - (b) Expected to work at least one year (365 consecutive days, 366 in leap year) from their date of hire.

401 D) No employer contribution is required for retirees. Premiums are billed to retirees through ETF and are not the responsibility of individual employers. Employers may choose to contribute toward retirees' premium (employer paid annuitant). Employers participating in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program are responsible for notifying retired employees of the type and availability of coverage. Retired employees may remain covered as long as their former employer participates in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program are responsible for program and they pay the applicable premium.

401 E) Former employees on COBRA continuation (CONTINUANTS) may remain covered until their eligibility for COBRA ends, they cease to pay the premium or their former employer withdraws from the WPE Health Insurance Program, whichever occurs first. In addition, any retired or covered dependent eligible for Medicare must enroll when first eligible and must notify ETF.

If you have questions about whether an employee or group of employees are eligible for health insurance coverage, contact the Employer Services Section toll free at 1-877-533-5020 or locally at 608-266-3285.

401 F) Employers may provide payments to employees in lieu of coverage under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program. See section 208.

401 G) Double coverage, where an insured member is covered twice under a State and/or WPE contract, is not permitted. For example, a SUBSCRIBER cannot also be covered as a DEPENDENT and a DEPENDENT cannot be covered under two contracts. See 402 B) for more information.

401 H) Employees who chose coverage beginning as soon as possible have the option of changing health plans and/or coverage levels effective on the first of the month that the employer premium contribution begins. Employees canceling coverage prior to the date that the employer premium contribution begins may re-enroll with the coverage becoming effective on the first of the month that the employer contribution begins.

402 Dependent Coverage Eligibility

402 A) Single contracts cover only the eligible employee. Family contracts cover all eligible, listed dependents. A subscriber/employee cannot choose to exclude any eligible dependent from family coverage. Eligible dependents for family coverage include:

- (1) Spouse (must be legally recognized in the State of Wisconsin).
- (2) Children who include:
 - (a) Natural children.

- (b) Stepchildren.
- (c) Adopted children and pre-adoption placements. Coverage will be effective on the date that a court makes a final order granting adoption by the subscriber) or on the date the child is placed in the custody of the subscriber, whichever occurs first. These dates are defined by Wis. Stat.
 § 632.896. If the adoption of a child is not finalized, the insurer may terminate coverage of the child when the adoptive placement ends.
- (d) Legal wards that become the subscriber's permanent ward before age
 19. Coverage will be effective on the date that a court awards permanent guardianship to either the subscriber/employee or spouse.
- (e) Grandchild if the parent is a dependent child and under the age of 18. The grandchild ceases to be a dependent at the end of the month in which the dependent child (parent) turns 18.

Note:

- (i) Children, stepchildren, and legal wards may be covered until the end of the month in which they attain age 26 except for grandchildren. Their spouse and/or dependents are not eligible. Upon the child's loss of eligibility, the child may be eligible for COBRA Continuation.
- (f) Pertaining to divorce if a court orders the subscriber/employee to insure an exspouse, the order does not create eligibility for the ex-spouse to remain insured under the subscriber/employee. Ex-spouse eligibility is under COBRA Continuation (refer to Chapter 10).
- (g) Effective 2019, A dependent or subscriber cannot be covered at the same time by two separate subscribers of the state group health insurance program (including the Wisconsin Public Employers State Group Health Insurance Program). In the event it is determined that a dependent is covered by two separate subscribers, the subscribers will be notified and will have 30 days to determine which subscriber will remove coverage of the dependent and submit an application to remove the dependent. If the dependent(s) is to be newly covered by a subscriber that has single coverage, the contract may be converted to a family contract. The effective date will be the first of the month following receipt of the application. The health plan(s) will be notified.

402 B) Coverage for Spouse and Dependent

(1) If both spouses are ANNUITANTS or employed through the State of Wisconsin or a participating Wisconsin Public EMPLOYER and both are eligible for coverage, each may elect individual or family coverage, but if one spouse elects family coverage, the other eligible spouse may be covered as a DEPENDENT but may not have any other coverage. PARTICIPANTS can only be covered under one State Group Health Insurance Program (including Wisconsin Public Employers State Group Health Insurance Program) contract. As permitted by Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, two single contracts may be combined to one family contract, a family contract may be converted to two single contracts, or the family coverage may be changed from one spouse to the other without penalty effective the first day of the calendar month which begins on or after the date the EMPLOYER receives the application, or a later date as specified on the application. If the spouses have coverage with different HEALTH PLANS at the time of marriage or when two single contracts are combined to one family contract, they may elect family coverage with either HEALTH PLAN effective the first day of the calendar month which begins on or after the date the EMPLOYER receives the application. Should the spouses become divorced while carrying family coverage, the divorced spouse may elect coverage with any HEALTH PLAN without lapse if the EMPLOYER received the application within 30 days of the divorce. Upon an EMPLOYER'S request, ETF may approve at its discretion a special enrollment opportunity for affected employees due to a change in policy for coverage of spouses.

(2) A DEPENDENT or SUBSCRIBER cannot be covered at the same time by two separate SUBSCRIBERS of the State Group Health Insurance Program (including the Wisconsin Public Employers State Group Health Insurance Program). In the event it is determined that a DEPENDENT is covered by two separate SUBSCRIBERS, the SUBSCRIBERS will be notified and will have 30 days to determine which SUBSCRIBER will remove coverage of the DEPENDENT and submit an application to remove the DEPENDENT. If the DEPENDENT(S) is to be newly covered by a SUBSCRIBER that has single coverage, the contract may be converted to a family contract. The effective date will be the first of the month following receipt of the application. The health plan(s) will be notified.

403 Employer Premium Contribution Eligibility

Employer contributions must begin no later than the first of the month following the employee's completion of six months of qualified employment with the present employer or at an earlier date, if mutually agreed upon by the employer and employee. Employer premium contributions must be in line with one of the three health insurance premium contribution structures described in Chapter 2 (subchapters 204 and 205) of this manual.

In order to avoid penalties that may be assessed if coverage is found to be 'unaffordable' under federal health care reform, you may want employer contributions to begin no later than the first of the month preceding the employee's completion of 90 days of qualified employment.

404 Determining Effective Dates for the Employer Premium Contribution

404 A) Employees wishing immediate coverage upon becoming WRS eligible may submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) within 30 days of their hire date. Coverage is effective the first of the month following receipt of the application and the employee is responsible for the entire premium amount until such time as they are determined to be eligible for the employer contribution. See also 501B) (2)(b).

404 B) Employees wishing to wait until they are eligible for the employer contribution toward the health insurance premium must submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form,* or apply online, prior to the date they become eligible for the employer contribution. Coverage will be effective the first of the month on or following the date the employee becomes eligible for the employer contribution toward the premium.

404 C) Coverage effective dates for teachers (employment category 40) are based on the date WRS employment begins and the date a completed *Health Insurance Application/ Change Form* is received by the employer. Health insurance coverage is effective the first of the month in which WRS employment begins if the application is received on, or prior to, the first of that month. For applications received after the first of the month in which WRS employment begins is effective the first of the first of the submitted within 30 days of WRS eligibility.

Example: A teacher is hired (signs a contract) on June 27 and begins employment on August 29 (WRS begin date). In the event the employer receives the completed *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* on or prior to August 1, the coverage effective date is August 1. Should the employer receive the completed *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* after August 1 and on or prior to September 1, the coverage effective date is September 1.

Note: Employees failing to enroll when first eligible must wait until the next annual open enrollment period to enroll unless they experience a life event prior to that period. (Refer to Chapter 6 for other enrollment opportunities.)

405 WRS Previous Service Check

A WRS previous service check must be performed for each employee applying for health insurance to determine the effective date of the employer premium contribution.

ETF provides two methods for employers to use in determining whether an employee has previous WPE, state, and/or University of Wisconsin service:

A. Access the Previous Service Benefit Inquiry application on ETF's Online Network for Employers (ONE) site at: <u>https://etf.wi.gov/employers/wisconsin-retirement-</u> <u>system/etf-web-applications-employers</u>

Note: This is a password-protected site. To obtain access refer to Chapter 8, subchapter 801, of the *WRS Administration Manual* (<u>ET-1127</u>).

B. Call the Employer Services Section toll-free at 1-877-533-5020 or 1-608-266-3285 and request a previous service check.

406 Rehired Employee Coverage

406 A) Any insured EMPLOYEE who terminates employment with an EMPLOYER participating under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 and is re-employed by the same EMPLOYER within 30 days in a position eligible for health insurance or who terminates employment for a period of

more than 30 days that does not comply with Wis. Adm. Code § ETF 10.08 (2) and (3) shall be deemed to have been on leave of absence for that time and is limited to previous coverage.

406 B) Rehired ANNUITANTS who terminate their annuity and participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System may continue the same health insurance coverage by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 30 days following the Wisconsin Retirement System participation begin date. Also, see Chapter 12.

Local Health Insurance Employer Standards, Guidelines and Administration Manual

Chapter 5 — Initial Enrollment

- 501 Initial Enrollment and Effective Dates
- 502 Declining (Waiving) Coverage
- 503 Enrollment Opportunities for Employees who Previously Declined or Canceled Coverage
- 504 Applying for Coverage
- 505 Primary Care Provider or Primary Care Clinic
- 506 Insurance Cards

501 Initial Enrollment and Effective Dates

501 A) Immediately upon hire, employers must provide newly eligible employees with the:

- current annual <u>health benefits materials online</u> or the <u>Health Benefits Decision</u> <u>Guide</u> for the program option(s) you offer,
- *Health Insurance Application/Change* (<u>ET-2301</u>) form, if requested or your employees are not able to enroll online, and
- <u>Notice of Privacy Practices</u> and <u>COBRA: Continuation of Coverage for Group</u> <u>Health Insurance</u> notices (to meet federal COBRA and HIPPA notice requirements).

These are available on the ETF website and updated annually.

If the employee is a single parent (including divorced employees), they must provide documentation such as a birth certificate or paternity acknowledgement to add dependent children. If documentation is not on file for currently covered dependents, even if they were previously insured dependents, it will be requested and must be provided. A Social Security number or Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) is required for any dependent over the age of 1 for tax purposes. If the dependent does not have an SSN or ITIN, an employer developed affidavit should be completed by the member or parent and submitted to the employer.

All eligible employees must either enroll online via myETF Benefits or submit a completed Health Insurance Application/Change form, including those who do not wish to enroll and are choosing to waive/decline coverage (refer to subchapter 502).

Note: It is recommended to instruct the employee to add the Social Security numbers (SSNs) of all dependents as soon as possible. SSNs are needed for vendor reporting to the IRS annually, and if not entered, vendors will reach out to subscribers to gather that information.

When coverage becomes effective, multiple PREMIUM payments may be required initially to make PREMIUM payments current.

- **501 B)** Eligible EMPLOYEES and ANNUITANTS can enroll as described below:
 - (1) For EMPLOYEES who request coverage within 30 days of the employee's date of hire: An EMPLOYEE shall be insured if a completed ETF application form or electronic enrollment through ETF's enrollment system (MEBS) is received by the EMPLOYER within 30 days of the date of hire, coverage to be effective as of the first day of the month that occurs during the 30-day period. New WRS employees will be responsible for paying the full premium until employer contributions begin.
 - (2) For EMPLOYEES who request coverage when they become or before they become eligible for the employer contribution:
 - (a) An EMPLOYEE shall be insured if a completed ETF application form or electronic enrollment through MEBS is received by the EMPLOYER within 30 days of the date of hire, with coverage to be effective upon becoming eligible for EMPLOYER contribution. The effective date of the employer contribution shall not be later than the first of the month following the completion of six months service with the employer under the WRS. In order to avoid penalties that may be assessed if coverage is found to be 'unaffordable' under federal health care reform, you may want employer contributions to begin no later than the first of the month preceding the employee's completion of 90 days of qualified employment.
 - (b) Employees who chose coverage beginning as soon as possible have the option of changing health plans and/or coverage levels effective on the first of the month that the employer premium contribution begins.

501 C) Employees canceling coverage prior to the date that the premium contribution begins may re-enroll with the coverage becoming effective on the first of the month that the employer contribution begins, provided the application is received prior to the contribution date.

501 D) PARTICIPANTS may not be double covered in the State and/or WPE group health insurance program.

501 E) For employees whose spouse is also an eligible state or local employee or /annuitant, who does/did not work for/retire from the same local employer as the employee, there are several options available.

- (1) If their spouse is already enrolled with single coverage, the new employee can also elect single coverage or elect family coverage, in which case the spouse would have to submit an application to cancel their single coverage in order to go onto the new employee's family coverage.
- (2) If their spouse is already enrolled with family coverage, the new employee elects

family coverage, in which case the spouse would have to submit an application to cancel their family coverage in order to be added onto the new employee's family coverage.

(3) If the parents are divorced and the child moves from household to household (for example, for the summer), the parents may file an application to remove the child from one contract and to the other.

502 Declining (Waiving) Coverage

502 A) An employee declining to enroll in the Group Health Insurance Program when initially eligible must complete (mark appropriate box declining coverage, sign, and date) a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually). Employees should be reminded that once declined, election of coverage at a later date is limited to the onset of qualifying events creating enrollment opportunities (refer to subchapter 503), or during the annual health benefits open enrollment period for an effective date of January 1 of the following year.

502 B) An eligible employee may defer the selection of coverage if he/she is covered under another health insurance plan, or is a member of the US Armed Forces, or is a citizen of a country with national health care coverage comparable to the Access Plan as determined by ETF. If the EMPLOYEE or a DEPENDENT loses eligibility for that other coverage or the EMPLOYER'S contribution towards the other coverage ceases entirely, the EMPLOYEE may elect coverage under any plan by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 30 days of the loss of eligibility and by providing evidence satisfactory to ETF of the loss of eligibility. An EMPLOYEE enrolled for single coverage, though eligible for family coverage, may change to family coverage if any eligible DEPENDENTS covered under the other plan lose eligibility for that coverage or the EMPLOYER'S contribution towards the other coverage the other coverage ceases entirely. The unrestricted enrollment opportunity is not available if a person remains eligible for coverage under a plan from their employer that replaces the previous plan without interruption of that person's coverage.

502 C) If permitted by state or federal law, as determined by ETF, an eligible EMPLOYEE may defer or dis-enroll from coverage for themselves or a DEPENDENT if he/she is covered under medical assistance (Medicaid) (see 1-5 below), the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP), or TRICARE. A spouse may be dropped from family coverage if they are insured as an employee under an HDHP with a Health Savings Account (HSA) that does not permit other disqualifying health coverage, that is, coverage under this program that would pay out-of-pocket health care expenses before meeting the spouse's employer sponsored plan deductible. ETF must be provided a copy of the spouse's employer sponsored plan documentation from the HDHP and the HSA that says the spouse cannot have any other group health insurance in order to be eligible for his employer's plan. This may include the Certificate of Coverage for the HDHP and HSA information.

Termination may be retroactive to the effective date of the other coverage upon request by the subscriber. Family status changes under this provision remain subject to Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. If the EMPLOYEE or DEPENDENT loses eligibility for that coverage
or becomes eligible for a premium assistance subsidy for this program, the EMPLOYEE may elect coverage under this section by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 60 days of the loss of eligibility or the date it is determined the EMPLOYEE or DEPENDENT is eligible for premium assistance and by providing evidence satisfactory to ETF. For dis-enrollment due to CHIP or TRICARE, employee should provide proof of coverage.

For requested dis-enrollment due to Medicaid, the following must be provided for ETF review:

- (1) An explanation of why the SUBSCRIBER is requesting to drop the Medicaid enrolled DEPENDENT. If it is due to provider network and/or claim payment issues, that should be described in detail.
- (2) Documentation showing Medicaid coverage including effective dates, member number, monthly premium and plan coverage (for example BadgerCare).
- (3) A Health Insurance Application / Change form ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) requesting that the DEPENDENT's coverage be terminated.
- (4) An <u>Authorization to Disclose Medical Information (ET-7414)</u> that specifically authorized ETF to speak with Medicaid and/or Navitus. If a social worker is involved in the case, authorize ETF to speak with her/him and provide her/his contact information.
- (5) Note the child's relationship to the SUBSCRIBER, such as step-child or, legal ward.

503 Enrollment Opportunities for Employees who Previously Declined or Canceled Coverage

503 A) Employees who have declined coverage during a designated enrollment period can elect coverage during the next health benefits open enrollment period for an effective date of January 1 of the following year. An EMPLOYEE who deferred coverage may enroll if he or she has a new DEPENDENT as a result of birth, adoption, placement for adoption or marriage, provided he or she submits an application within 60 days of the birth, adoption or placement for adoption, or within 30 days of the marriage. Coverage for this shall be effective on the date of termination of the prior plan or the date of the event. A quick reference guide is available in the health benefits webpages, called the Life Events Guide.

Note: A full month's premium is due for the month if coverage or change in coverage level is effective before the 16th of the month. Otherwise, the new premium rate goes into effect the following month.

Under federal law and by this contract, the following constitute qualifying events that permit employees who previously declined or canceled coverage to enroll in any health plan without limitations:

(1) **Loss of Other Coverage:** Employees who declined coverage under the Group Health Insurance Program have an opportunity to enroll due to loss of other coverage when the following circumstances:

- (a) Coverage under another health insurance plan ends;
- (b) Coverage under medical assistance (Medicaid) ends;
- (c) Coverage as a member of the US armed forces ends;
- (d) Coverage as a citizen of a country with national/universal health-care coverage comparable to the Access Plan (non-HDHP) ends;
- (e) Complete loss of employer contribution for another health insurance program.
- (f) Divorce.
- (g) End of COBRA coverage.

Those who lose eligibility for the other coverage or the employer's entire premium contribution for the other coverage, may take advantage of a 30-day enrollment period, beginning on the date the other health-insurance coverage terminates. This does not include voluntary cancellation of the other coverage. For example, non-payment of premiums, including for COBRA, is considered a voluntary loss of coverage.

A Health Insurance Application/Change Form ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually), or online application via myETF Benefits, and other information documenting the loss of coverage or employer premium contribution must be received by the employer within 30 days of the date the other coverage or the employer premium contribution ended. If all documentation is not readily available, submit the application and other items within the 30-day window. Follow up as soon as possible with any additional, required documents. Coverage will be effective the first of the month following receipt of the application. Copies of the required documentation (described below) must be submitted to ETF for approval.

Note: The employee should complete and submit an application as soon as possible, even if they have not received the required documentation. The employer needs to receive the application within the 30-day window of loss. Many times the required documentation will be received outside of the 30-day enrollment window and the employee can secure the enrollment opportunity by submitting the application to the employer prior to receiving the required documentation.

Coverage is effective on the day following the last day of the other coverage if filed within 30 days of the event. For example, if coverage ended on May 13th with the other plan, coverage under the WPE plan would begin on May 14th. If the notice of coverage loss is provided to the member late, coverage will be effective the first of the month following the date of notice.

Documentation ETF requires includes the following items on letterhead from the previous insurer and/or the former employer where at least the insurer's document is dated and issued after termination of coverage. If separate parts of the information are provided from both the employer and the former insurer on different dates, (for

example, your employee who lost coverage through their spouse provides a COBRA form from the spouse's former employer stating why coverage ended that is dated prior to the termination date, and the former insurer issues a letter after the termination date stating that coverage terminated on a preceding date), that assortment of documentation is acceptable.

The documentation on letterhead must include:

- (a) Who was covered (must list the name of the member who is requesting this special, late enrollment)
- (b) Name of Health Insurer
- (c) Subscriber name
- (d) Date coverage was terminated
- (e) Reason for the cancellation (voluntary such as due to non-payment of premium (including for COBRA) vs. involuntary such as being laid off, fired, expiration of COBRA or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage)

Note: This enrollment period is not available if the employee and/or their dependents remain eligible for coverage under a health insurance plan that replaces the other plan without an interruption in coverage.

- (2) Marriage/Birth/Adoption/National Medical Support Notice/Paternity/Legal Custody Change: Employees who declined coverage under the Group Health Insurance Program have an opportunity to enroll in single or family coverage if they have a new dependent as a result of marriage, birth, adoption or placement for adoption, a court ordered National Medical Support Notice, or paternity. If documentation is required and not readily available, the employee should submit the application to the employer before receiving the required documentation to secure the effective date of the enrollment opportunity.
 - (a) For marriage You must terminate other coverage on the date of marriage or after. Coverage is effective on the date of marriage if an application is received within 30 days of that event date.
 - (b) For birth, adoption, placement for adoption, granting of permanent legal guardianship— coverage is effective on the date of birth, adoption, placement for adoption or when permanent legal guardianship is granted, if an application is received within 60 days of that event date.
 - (c) For paternity acknowledgement—coverage is effective on the first of the month following receipt of the application or if within 60 days of birth, retroactive to date of birth.
 - (d) For National Medical Support Notice coverage is effective on the first of the month following the receipt of the application by the employer or the date specified on the Medical Support Notice. The application should be received within 30 days of the court ordered support notice.

- (e) For legal custody change (joint, full or transfer) coverage is effective on the date of the event if an application is received, or online enrollment performed within 30 days of the event.
- (3) Increase in employer contribution for employees who change classification or appointment: Employees such as less than half-time employees who initially decline health insurance coverage, have a new enrollment opportunity each time their hours increase that results in an increase in employer contribution. These employees may enroll in any plan without restriction and have 30 days from the date the employer contribution increases to file online via myETF Benefits or submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* to the employer. Coverage is effective the first of the month following the employer's receipt of the application.

Employees who fail to enroll during this additional enrollment opportunity will only be eligible to elect health insurance coverage either during the next health benefits open enrollment period or if an enrollment opportunity arises (e.g., marriage, birth, adoption, etc.).

- (4) Eligible adult child loses employer contribution: A SUBSCRIBER who does not request coverage for an adult child when first eligible under Wis. Stat. § 632.885, will thereafter be limited to enrolling the child when the child becomes newly eligible due to the loss of eligibility for other coverage or the loss of EMPLOYER contribution for the other coverage. The SUBSCRIBER can add the DEPENDENT by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 30 days after the event and coverage for the DEPENDENT will be effective on the event date. If notice of loss of coverage is not timely, the SUBSCRIBER can add the DEPENDENT by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 30 days after receipt of the notice and coverage for the DEPENDENT will be effective on the first of the month following receipt of the application. This paragraph does not prevent a SUBSCRIBER from adding the eligible DEPENDENT during the IT'S YOUR-CHOICE open enrollment period for coverage effective the following January 1.
- (5) If an active employee (including on a leave of absence) deferred coverage and wants to preserve post-retirement EMPLOYER premium contribution for later use, they must enroll in the ACCESS Plan 30 days prior to retirement. If an employee wants to retire as of April 15, they need to be insured in the Access Plan as an employee as of April first, then their retiree coverage would begin as of May first. The application must be submitted no later than the first day coverage would be effective.
- (6) **Elimination of Opt-Out Provision:** EMPLOYEES who previously declined coverage for payment, have a special enrollment opportunity within 30 days of the employer's ceasing of the opt-out provision.

504 Applying for Coverage

Employer Responsibilities:

504 A) Verify the employee's eligibility for group health insurance coverage (refer to subchapter 401). See Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements ET-2846.

504 B) Provide the employee with the annual *Health Benefits Decision Guide* and the *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* (ET- 2301). The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides*, available on the ETF website and updated annually (please see ET-2128, ET-2158, ET-2168, and ET-2169) provide information on what's changing, health insurance rates, uniform benefits and plan availability for the plan year. Inform the employee of the deadline for submitting the application. Employees may also submit their application online via myETF Benefits within the same timeframe.

Employees should complete the application following the instructions included with the *Health Insurance Application/Change Form*. Each eligible employee must submit an application (paper or online) to the employer even if declining coverage (currently must submit paper form if declining coverage). It is important that there is written documentation indicating the employee declined coverage; employers should retain such documentation.

- If employees are enrolling using the paper *Health Insurance Application/Change Form*, direct employees to the ETF website at <u>etf.wi.gov</u> for the form.
- (2) If employees are enrolling online via myETF Benefits, direct employees to the ETF website at <u>etf.wi.gov</u>. Click on the Members tab, then select the myETF Benefits for Members link. The employee will need to have their Member ID (which the employer will need to share with the employee) and follow the steps outlined in the Instructions. If the employee does not already have a Wisconsin Account Management System (WAMS) ID, they will need to obtain one prior to using myETF Benefits.

504 C) After the employee submits their application (paper or online via myETF Benefits) the employer will review:

- (1) If submitted via myETF Benefits, the employer will go to myETF Benefits, myMembers/myMembers Requests, review and approve the update(s) submitted by the employee under Request Status: Pending. The employer can edit the member's transaction if there is a problem or deny the transaction and ask the employee to complete the enrollment again.
- (2) If submitted via a Health Insurance Application/Change Form ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually), the employer will have to process the enrollment in the myETF Benefits System for the member. The employer must review the completed form before approving the application by completing the Employer Section as follows. Note: the employee must sign the application. Failure to provide a signature is an incomplete application and will be rejected.
 - (a) Employer Identification Number (EIN) The EIN given to employers, beginning

with 69-036. Enter the last seven digits of the number (e.g., 69-036-0001-101).

- (b) Name of Employer.
- (c) Payroll Representative Email.
- (d) Five-digit Group Number The five-digit number assigned to local employers (e.g., 84535).
- (e) Employee Type Enter the appropriate code (refer to Appendix B).
- (f) Coverage Type Code Coverage code identifying single or family coverage (refer to Appendix B).
- (g) Health Plan Name or Suffix The full name or two-digit code identifying the health plan.
- (h) Business Unit (if applicable) State only
- (i) Employment Status Full-time, part-time, or LTE.
- (j) Employee Deductions Are the employee's health insurance premiums deducted pre-tax or post-tax.
- (k) Previous Service Complete Information Check the appropriate response for each question.
- (I) Date WRS Eligible Employment or Appointment Began or Hire Date The month, day and year the employee began WRS employment with the employer. For rehired employees, enter the rehire date.
- (m) Employer Received Date The date the employer received the completed application. It is important that this date be accurate in order to determine if the application was received timely.
- (n) Event Date The date the event took place (e.g., marriage date, birth date, loss of coverage date, etc.).
- (o) Prospective Date of Coverage The month, day and year the coverage should be effective.
- (p) WRS Participating Employer (if applicable) Local only
- (q) Previous Service Check
- (r) Source of Previous Service Check
- (s) Did Employee Participate in WRS Prior to be Hired by You
- (t) Payroll Representative Signature/Phone Number/Date Signed The signature acknowledges the date the employer received the application and that an audit of the application has been completed and the phone number of that representative.
- (3) Upon completion of the Employer Section, make copies of the application:
 - (a) Employer Copy retain original for your records.
 - (b) Employee Copy return a copy to the employee.
 - (c) ETF Copy if requested, submit with copies of any required documentation (e.g., contract in "Waiting for ETF Approval" status).

505 Primary Care Provider or Primary Care Clinic

In the event a SUBSCRIBER files an application during a prescribed enrollment period listing a plan and a primary physician or clinic that is not available in the plan selected, the HEALTH PLAN shall immediately notify the EMPLOYER. The SUBSCRIBER shall be allowed to correct the plan selected to one which has that physician or clinic available, upon notice to the EMPLOYER that the error occurred. The application shall be effective the later of first of the month following receipt of the application or the EFFECTIVE DATE of the original application. The HEALTH PLAN may not simply reassign a primary physician or clinic.

506 Insurance Cards

Subscribers will receive an ID card from the health plan for use in obtaining medical services and a separate ID card from the pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) for use in filling prescriptions. (Refer to subchapter 209 for further information about the PBM). Member identification numbers are different on each card. The eight-digit ID number appearing on the pharmacy ID card is the employee's myETF Benefits member ID.

Applications should be submitted/entered at least one month prior to the coverage effective date, whenever possible, to allow sufficient time for the health plan and the PBM to issue the ID cards to the subscriber prior to the effective date.

Subscribers can contact the health plan and the PBM directly to request additional ID cards. Phone numbers for the health plans and the PBM are listed in the online health benefits materials under the *Resources* tab at <u>etf.wi.gov</u>.

Chapter 6 — Changing Coverage

- 601 Status Changes
- 602 Changing Plans Due to a Residential Move
- 603 Changing Health Plans
- 604 Changing from Single to Family Coverage
- 605 Changing from Family to Single Coverage
- 606 Adding Dependents
- 607 <u>Removing Dependents</u>

601 Life Event Changes

601 A) There may be opportunities during the course of a year which allow employees to change coverage outside the initial enrollment opportunity. If there is a status change within the limitations imposed by this contract and statute, the employee may be able to change health plans, add dependents, remove dependents, or change from single to family coverage or family to single coverage.

Status change opportunities are provided via the health benefits webpages on the Life Events Guide include:

- (1) Move from service area (change health plan only).
- (2) Birth, adoption or placement for adoption.
- (3) Marriage (opposite or same sex).
- (4) Establishment of a permanent legal guardianship.
- (5) National Medical Support Notice (NMSN) or paternity acknowledgment.
- (6) Loss of other coverage for employee or dependents.
- (7) Divorce.
- (8) Spouse to spouse transfer.
- (9) Disability of dependent.
- (10) Open enrollment period.
- (11) Legal custody change

These status changes are explained and their limitations clarified in the following sections.

601 B) The difference in PREMIUM between individual and family coverage for that month shall be due only if the change is effective before the 16th of the month. ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS for whom the EMPLOYER makes no contribution toward PREMIUM shall submit the application to ETF.

601 C) Changing the participant's gender of record in myETF Benefits requires the participant to submit a copy of the *Address/Name/Gender Change* form (ET-2815) to the employer or ETF. The member must submit the request for any dependent under the age of 18. ETF

systems are currently only able to accept male and female for gender. ETF is typically able to process requests within 30 days of receipt of receipt.

Document Submittal Instructions: The participant may submit the ET-2815 as follows.

1. Active employees:

- a. Submit the document to human resources or benefits person at work. The employer will submit the information to ETF for processing.
- b. ETF may reach out to the employer to report the active employee gender change if the ET-2815 is received at ETF without indication that the employer has updated their own records.

2. Active employees' dependents:

- a. Submit the document to human resources or benefits person at work. The employer will submit the information to ETF for processing; **or**
- b. Submit the documents directly to ETF following the instructions for retirees below.
- 3. **Retirees and dependents:** Submit the documents directly to ETF using one of the methods below.
 - a. Securely via Box through ETF's website
 - U.S. Postal Service: WI Dept of ETF, P.O. Box 7931, Madison WI 53707-7931
 - In Person: WI Dept of ETF, 4822 Madison Yards Way, Madison, WI 53705-9100
 - d. Fax to 608-267-4549

602 Changing Plans Due to a Residential Move

When a SUBSCRIBER moves for a minimum of three months, they have an enrollment opportunity to change health plans, even if their current plan remains available in the county to which the SUBSCRIBER moved. (A move from one medical facility to another medical facility is not considered a residential move.) The relocating SUBSCRIBER must go online to myETF Benefits and submit a request to change health plans or submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to their employer (ETF for annuitants) within 30 days before or after the move. If the employee moved to a state that does not border Wisconsin, they should select the Access Plan. Coverage will be effective with the new plan the first of the month on or after either the submission of the electronic change by the employee in myETF Benefits or the receipt of the *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* by the employer.

If the application to change plans is not received within 30 days before or after the move, the SUBSCRIBER cannot change health plans until the annual health benefits open enrollment period or until they experience another qualifying event as outlined later in this Chapter.

A SUBSCRIBER not wishing to change plans due to the move may continue with their current plan. They should be aware they may have to drive to the former location in order to have providers that are in-network. The SUBSCRIBER should still go online to myETF Benefits and update their address or submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* to their employer within 30 days before or after the move.

603 Changing Health Plans

603A) The following SUBSCRIBERS may change HEALTH PLAN after the event if an application is submitted within 30 days of the event. Coverage with the new HEALTH PLAN will be effective the first day of the calendar month, on or after the date the EMPLOYER receives the application. See also 501B) (2)(b). An insured EMPLOYEE, ANNUITANT or CONTINUANT who is:

- 1. Adding one or more DEPENDENTS to the policy due to marriage, birth, adoption, placement for adoption, National Medical Support Notice, establishment of paternity, guardianship or legal custody change
- 2. Dropping one or more DEPENDENTS from a policy due to a divorce
- 3. Having an involuntary loss of other coverage (for example, being laid off, fired, or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage) or complete loss of EMPLOYER contribution for the other coverage (including loss of a dependent's coverage or employer contribution toward other coverage)
- 4. An EMPLOYEE gains a significant share of EMPLOYER PREMIUM contribution toward their coverage (for example, half time to full time).
- 5. An EMPLOYEE loses a significant share of EMPLOYER contribution toward their coverage (e.g. a decrease of 5% or more).
- 6. For ANNUITANTS only: obtaining Medicare Part A and/or B coverage. Also see 603B.
- 603 B) Retirees (existing or new) or their DEPENDENTS enroll in Medicare
 - 1. When a member on a retiree contract becomes enrolled in Medicare, the SUBSCRIBER may change health plans if an application is submitted within 30 days of the Medicare effective date (it may be up to 3 months in advance). Coverage in the new plan begins the first of the month following the date the SUBSCRIBER's application is received by ETF (but no earlier than Medicare's effective date).

For example, the member's Medicare is effective October 1, but the SUBSCRIBER does not submit the request to change health plans until October 5. The effective date for their selected plan, in this case Medicare Advantage, will be November 1. For the month of October, the member(s) will remain in their current plan. Their benefits will change to Medicare coordinated coverage for October. They will get ID cards for this coverage from their current plan. **Note:** To be permitted the October 1st enrollment date, a paper Health Insurance Application/Change for Retirees (ET-2331) must be submitted to ETF prior to the effective date. Once Benefitplace is operational, if the member cannot electronically submit an application in September, they should submit a paper application that month or earlier in order to have an October 1 plan change.

- 2. When an employee terminates employment and begins their coverage as an ANNUITANT, and they and/or their DEPENDENT(s) are age 65 or older, the following may happen as long as the member(s) eligible for Medicare enroll in Parts A and B to be effective the first of the month following their termination of employment:
 - a. The member(s) will remain with their current health plan but under Medicare coordinated coverage.
 - b. The SUBSCRIBER may change health plans when they or a family member

newly enroll in Medicare. Coverage in the new plan begins the first of the month following the date the SUBSCRIBER's application is received by ETF (but no earlier than Medicare's effective date).

For example, the member's Medicare is effective October 1, but the SUBSCRIBER does not submit the request to change health plans until October 5. The effective date, in this case Medicare Advantage, will be November 1. For the month of October, the member(s) will remain in their current plan. Their benefits will change to Medicare coordinated coverage for October. They will get ID cards for this coverage from their current plan. **Note**: To be permitted the October 1st enrollment date, a paper Health Insurance Application/Change for Retirees (ET-2331) must be submitted to ETF prior to the effective date. Once Benefitplace is operational, if the member cannot electronically submit an application in September, they should submit a paper application that month or earlier in order to have an October 1 plan change.

604 Changing from Single to Family Coverage

Documentation Guidelines: ETF has the responsibility to provide information as needed for federal, state and/or contractual requirements. The employer must exercise the same level of due diligence. The employer/employee relationship is the most effective way to gather the needed information. The employer should document their attempts in requesting the required information.

One example is the law requires SSNs to be reported on federal form 1095-B. Your health insurance company provides federal form 1095-B to your employees and to the Internal Revenue Service. The information from the form will be used by employees to prepare their individual income tax return. As necessary, ETF or the health plan will reach out to verify Social Security numbers of members.

A Social Security number or Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) is required for any dependent over the age of one for tax purposes. If the dependent does not have an SSN or ITIN, an employer developed affidavit should be completed by the member or parent and submitted to the employer.

Another example is if adding children and documentation such as a birth certificate is not on file for previously covered dependents, it will be requested and must be provided.

604 A) An EMPLOYEE can change from single to family coverage in several situations outside of the annual health benefits open enrollment period.

The following are qualifying HIPAA events or are otherwise permissible life events:

- (1) Birth.
- (2) Adoption.
- (3) Placement for adoption.
- (4) Marriage.
- (5) Receives a National Medical Support Notice or paternity acknowledgment.

- (6) Transfer or change of custody.
- (7) Establishes a permanent legal guardianship.
- (8) Involuntary loss of other coverage.
- (9) Loss of entire employer contribution for other coverage.
- (10) Has a previously covered dependent older than age 26 who is newly disabled.
- (11) An EMPLOYEE who enrolls for single coverage within 30 days following the date of hire, may change to family coverage during the enrollment period offered as a result of becoming eligible for EMPLOYER contribution toward PREMIUM.
- (12) An EMPLOYEE enrolled in single coverage who gains more EMPLOYER PREMIUM contribution may change to family coverage within 30 days following the increase in EMPLOYER contribution.

The SUBSCRIBER must either go online to myETF Benefits and add the new dependent(s) for the appropriate reason from the drop-down listing or submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to the employer.

604 B) The following guidelines describe the restrictions placed on the enrollment for these events and the conditions under which they may be restricted as follows.

1) **Marriage:** Online enrollment or application must be submitted within 30 days from the event date. An employee with single coverage may change to family coverage provided the application is received within 30 days of the marriage.

Upon marriage between parties who are both employed by or retired from a participating WPE or the state, both may retain or select single coverage with the current plan or one may retain or select family coverage under one of their current plans that will cover the other spouse and any eligible dependents. Double coverage of an individual in either or both the state and local group health insurance program is not permitted.

Cancellation of single coverage and the change to family coverage can be coordinated provided one of the applications is received timely. If the application to cancel the single coverage and/or the application to change to family coverage is not received timely, the change to family can only occur during the annual health benefits open enrollment period.

The SUBSCRIBER also has the opportunity to change health plans within 30 days of the marriage, provided their application is submitted within those 30 days. The change in health plan will be effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application to change health plans or the electronic submission of the request to change health plans.

2) Birth, Adoption or Placement for Adoption, or Establishment of Permanent Legal Guardianship: An application or online enrollment must be submitted within 60 days after the event.

If the application is received after 60 days, contact the Employer Services Section. Generally, a SUBSCRIBER with single coverage must submit the application to add a dependent and change to family coverage within a 60-day time frame to be effective on the event date. If an application is not submitted within this time frame, the SUBSCRIBER cannot change to family coverage until the annual health benefits open enrollment period unless another qualifying event occurs in the interim. **Note:** An application or online enrollment must be completed in a timely manner.

Effective January 1, 2022, if the subscriber is single (including divorced), documentation supporting the birth and any newly added dependents is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online. This applies even if the subscriber had previously insured the dependent(s). For single mothers, this documentation is generally a birth certificate and will be required for any children. For single fathers, this documentation is generally a paternity acknowledgement or birth certificate. Documentation for single fathers has been required for many years. Note that single fathers may be required to provide documentation of dependent status for children covered upon request from ETF to the employer.

Documentation supporting the adoption, placement for adoption or the establishment of permanent legal guardianship is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

The SUBSCRIBER has the opportunity to change health plans within 30 days of birth, adoption or placement for adoption (not establishment of permanent legal guardianship), provided the application to do so is submitted within 30 days of the event. The change in health plan will be effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application or electronic submission of the request to change health plans.

3) Involuntary Loss of Coverage or Complete Loss of Employer Contribution for other coverage: Application must be received within 30 days before or after a dependent has an involuntary loss of other coverage (such as being laid off, fired, expiration of COBRA or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage) or completely loses employer contribution for the other coverage. If the SUBSCRIBER'S dependent(s) lost other coverage or lost the entire employer contribution toward their coverage, the SUBSCRIBER may change from single to family coverage within the specified time frame.

Documentation supporting the loss of coverage or employer contribution is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

ETF requires documentation including the following items on letterhead from the previous insurer and/or the former employer dated and issued before or after termination of coverage. If separate parts of the information are provided from both the employer and the former insurer on different dates, (for example, your employee who lost coverage through his spouse provides a COBRA form from his spouse's former employer stating why coverage ended that is dated prior to the termination date, and the

former insurer issues a letter after the termination date stating that coverage terminated on a preceding date), that assortment of documentation is acceptable. The documentation on letterhead must include:

- (a) Who was covered (must list the name of the member who is requesting this special, late enrollment)
- (b) Name of Health Insurer
- (c) Subscriber name
- (d) Date coverage was terminated
- (e) Reason for the cancellation (that is voluntary such as due to non-payment of premium (including for COBRA) vs. involuntary such as being laid off, fired, expiration of COBRA or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage)

Note: The employee should complete and apply as soon as possible, even if they have not received the required documentation. Many times, the required documentation will be received outside of the 30-day enrollment window and the employee can secure the enrollment opportunity by submitting the application to the employer prior to receiving the required documentation.

4) Paternity Acknowledgment: When an acknowledgment of paternity is filed within 60 days of the birth, and an application is received or online enrollment performed within the 60-day time frame, family coverage is effective on the date of birth. Beyond the 60-day time frame, coverage is effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application.

Documentation supporting the paternity acknowledgment is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

5) National Medical Support Notice (NMSN): The NMSN is a federal requirement used to enforce medical support orders for minor children. It is to be used throughout the United States to enroll children in employment related health insurance coverage. NMSN occurs when a court orders the parent in question to provide coverage for their child(ren). Coverage is effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application or the date specified on the NMSN, if one is specified.

The NMSN is a qualified medical child support order; therefore, the employee does not have a choice to not enroll children named in the NMSN. If health care coverage is available and the employee is eligible, the employer is required to enroll the child or children as instructed in the notice. However, the employer must adhere to limitations imposed on withholding as mandated by withholding laws of the state where the employee is principally employed. This is described in the following paragraph.

The employee is required to enroll their eligible children named in the NSMN in any medical insurance the employer has available for them. When the employer gets the NMSN, they will have to determine whether the amount of the employee's child support order and the amount of the medical insurance premium, added together, will

be more than the percent they are allowed to withhold from the employee's paycheck under the federal Consumer Credit Protection Act. If the insurance and child support together equal more than this amount, the employer will not enroll the employee's child(ren) in medical insurance.

Employers should make a copy of PART A of the NSMN (two pages), keep the original for your files and return the copy to the Issuing Agency with the response page completed.

If an employee chooses to object, the employee must contact the issuing local child support agency as instructed in the NMSN he/she received. The employer must still comply with the NMSN regardless of whether an objection has been made by the employee. In addition to the NMSN (serving as required documentation), the employee must also file a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to add the children named in the order to coverage. The employer must file an application on behalf of the employee if the employee fails to comply with the NMSN. If the employee refuses to sign the application, the employer must indicate that on, the application.

6) Legal Custody Change: When a court order lists custody either full, joint or a transfer, coverage for the dependent(s) will be effective on the date of the event if an application is received or online enrollment performed within 30 days of the event.

Documentation supporting the custody change is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

7) Disabled Dependent (child age 26 or older): Coverage is effective the date the health plan approves the dependent's disabled status.

The SUBSCRIBER must submit an application or electronic request which ETF will forward to the health plan to have them complete their disability review process. When the health plan has reviewed the child's disability status, ETF will update the coverage accordingly.

Documentation to support the disability is required as outlined in the *Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.*

605 Changing from Family to Single Coverage

An employee can change from family to single coverage in several situations outside of the annual health benefits open enrollment period, provided they have experienced a family status change/event that allows the change under the plan or they have experienced a HIPAA qualifying life event. An employee can change from family to single coverage if they experience a HIPAA qualifying life event or a status change such as a divorce, their last dependent becomes ineligible for other coverage, all dependents become eligible for and enroll in other coverage, or their last eligible dependent becomes eligible for and enrolls in

other coverage. If an employee's premiums are deducted post-tax or they are an annuitant, they may change to single coverage at any time.

The SUBSCRIBER must either go online to myETF Benefits to remove their dependent(s) using the "change family to single coverage" reason from the drop-down listing or submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to their employer.

The following guidelines describe the restrictions placed on the enrollment for these various events and the conditions under which they may be restricted:

605 A) Divorce: Employees are required under the Patient Rights and Responsibilities section of the health benefits materials, to promptly notify their employer of a divorce in order to properly terminate coverage and offer COBRA continuation to the former spouse. (Retirees should notify ETF.) Claims paid for ineligible dependents may become the responsibility of the employee or retiree.

The employee or retiree must submit an application within 30 days of the divorce and single coverage is effective the later of the first of the month:

- (a) in which the employer provides notification of continuation rights (*Continuation - Conversion Notice* [ET-2311]). (Refer also to subchapter 1003.)
 - or
- (b) in which the date of entry of judgment of divorce is entered/final with the clerk of courts.

In the event of a divorce in conjunction with a change to single coverage, ETF does not require the submission of a *Continuation/Conversion Notice* (ET-2311), but one must be provided to any dependents.

Documentation to support the divorce may be required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online. The SUBSCRIBER, as well as the exspouse, has the opportunity to change health plans within 30 days of divorce provided their application is submitted within the 30-day time frame. The change in health plan will be effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application to change health plans or the electronic submission of the request to change health plans.

If ETF receives a Domestic Relations Order (DRO or QDRO) for an employee and does not have a Continuation/Conversion Notice (ET-2311) form on file for the ex-spouse, ETF will reach out to the employer by email and ask the employer to remove the ex-spouse and any dependents (if applicable) from the contract and provide ETF a copy of the Continuation/Conversion Notice (ET-2311) form that was sent to them within 5 business days. If ETF does not receive the Continuation/Conversion Notice (ET-2311) form vithin 5

business days, ETF will remove the ex-spouse and any dependents (if applicable) from the contract and issue the Continuation/Conversion Notice (ET-2311) form.

Note: If a SUBSCRIBER would like to enroll a new spouse that is different from the previous spouse, the new spouse must wait six months from the date of divorce before being eligible for coverage.

605 B) Last Dependent Becomes Ineligible for Coverage: This occurs when the last covered dependent reaches age 26, if not disabled. The employee must notify the employer within 60 days of the dependent losing eligibility. ETF automatically terminates the aging out dependent's coverage 90 days prior to the last of the month in which they turn 26.

If the employee does not notify the employer of the dependent's loss of eligibility within 60 days, or the employer does not utilize the 'Dependent Inquiry' available under 'Enrollment Reports' to track aging out dependents, there are invoice consequences. The employer will be limited to two months of premium refund paid prior to the current month of coverage for the difference between family and single coverage (refer to section 215).

Example: Dependent ages out February 23; employer is not notified or does not check the report until July 14; employer invoice can only be refunded for May, June, and July. The change to single coverage will be retroactive to the end of the month the last dependent lost eligibility. In the example, single coverage will be effective March 1.

Under federal law, if notification of the loss of eligibility is not reported to the employer within 60 days of the event that caused the loss of eligibility, or the date the coverage ended, the right to Continuation/Conversion Coverage (COBRA) is lost.

605 C) All Dependents or Last Eligible Dependent Become(s) Eligible for and Enroll(s) in Other Coverage: This occurs when the employee's dependents all enroll in other group coverage, such as insurance through a spouse's employer. The application to change to single coverage must be submitted within 30 days of the date the dependent(s) enrolled in other coverage. The new coverage will be effective the first of the month after the application is received. If the application is not received within 30 days, the employee is limited to the annual health benefits open enrollment period to remove these dependents.

Documentation to support the eligibility for the other coverage is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

605 D) Employer's contribution toward health insurance premium lowers significantly (5% or more):

An employee whose employer contribution is lowering due to a job appointment change may adjust coverage from family to single. The Health Insurance Application or electronic enrollment request must be submitted no later than 30 days following the appointment change. Coverage will be effective the first of the month following date of contribution change (unless change date is the first of the month, then coverage is effective the first of the month).

606 Adding Dependents

Dependents can be added to an existing family contract outside the annual open enrollment period for the following reasons. A Social Security number or Individual Taxpayer Identification Number (ITIN) is required for any dependent over the age of one for tax purposes. If the dependent does not have an SSN or ITIN, an employer developed affidavit should be completed by the member or parent and submitted to the employer.

If adding children and documentation such as a birth certificate is not on file for previously covered dependents, it will be requested and must be provided.

606 A) Marriage: When family coverage is already in place, the application to add a spouse and dependent children must be received within 30 days of the date of marriage, coverage for the new dependents will be effective on the event date. If the application was not received within 30 days and the marriage was not reported, but family coverage was in place, the spouse and any of their minor children will be added to coverage upon notice to ETF. Coverage will be effective the first of the month following receipt by the employer. Refer to "Eligible Dependent Left Off Original Application" below for exceptions.

The SUBSCRIBER also has the opportunity to change health plans within 30 days of the marriage, provided the application to do so is submitted within the 30-day time frame. The change in health plan will be effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application or electronic submission of the request to change health plans.

606 B) Birth or Adoption/Placement for Adoption or Establishment of Permanent Legal Guardianship: If family coverage is already in place, the application to add the child(ren) or ward(s) must be received within 60 days after the event. If the application is received after 60 days, contact the Employer Services Section.

Coverage will be effective the date of the event. If an application is not submitted within this time frame, generally the employee cannot change from single to family coverage until the annual open enrollment period unless they have another qualifying event occur and submit the application or online enrollment in a timely manner. Refer to "Eligible Dependent Left Off Original Application" below for exceptions.

Documentation supporting the loss of coverage or employer contribution is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

Effective January 1, 2022, if the subscriber is single (including divorced), documentation supporting the birth is required. This applies even if the subscriber had previously insured the dependent(s). For single mothers, this documentation is generally a birth certificate and will be required for any children. For single fathers, this documentation is generally a paternity acknowledgement or birth certificate. Documentation for single fathers has been required for many years. Note that single fathers may be required to provide documentation of dependent status for children covered upon request from ETF to the employer.

The SUBSCRIBER also has the opportunity to change health plans within 30 days of birth, adoption, or placement for adoption (not establishment of legal guardianship), provided the application to do so is submitted within those 30 days. The change in health plan will be effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application to change health plans or the electronic submission of the request to change health plans.

For employees who terminate after taking incomplete action to add a child (lacking a birth certificate or other required documentation), the former employee will have 90 days to submit the documentation or the change to add the child will be deleted and coverage will not be effective.

606 C) Dependent Involuntary Loss of Other Coverage or Complete Loss of Employer Contribution: If family coverage is in place, an application must be received within 30 days before or after a dependent has an involuntary loss of other coverage (such as being laid off, fired, expiration of COBRA or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage or after divorce, dependents who were insured as step-children by the former spouse) or completely loses employer contribution for the other coverage. Because an employee's dependent(s) lost other coverage or the entire employer contribution toward coverage, the employee may add their dependent to the existing family coverage within the specified time frame.

If an application is not submitted within this time frame, the employee cannot change to family coverage until the annual open enrollment period unless another qualifying event occurs in the interim. Refer to "Eligible Dependent Left Off Original Application" below for exceptions.

Documentation supporting the loss of coverage or employer contribution is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

ETF requires documentation including the following items on letterhead from the previous insurer and/or the former employer where at least the insurer's document is dated and issued after termination of coverage. If separate parts of the information are provided from both the employer and the former insurer on different dates, (for example, your employee who lost coverage through his spouse provides a COBRA form from his spouse's former employer stating why coverage ended that is dated prior to the termination date, and the former insurer issues a letter after the termination date stating that coverage terminated on a preceding date), that assortment of documentation is acceptable. The documentation on letterhead must include:

- (1) Who was covered (must list the name of the member who is requesting this special, late enrollment)
- (2) Name of Health Insurer
- (3) Subscriber name
- (4) Date coverage was terminated
- (5) Reason for the cancellation (that is voluntary such as due to non-payment of premium (including for COBRA) vs. involuntary such as being laid off, fired,

expiration of COBRA or someone who quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage). If loss of employer premium contributions, letter from employer indicating they no longer contribute towards their employee's premium.

606 D) Paternity Acknowledgment: If family coverage is already in place, coverage for the dependent(s) will be effective on the date of birth if an acknowledgment of paternity is filed and an application is received or online enrollment performed within 60 days of the birth. If more than 60 days have elapsed, coverage will be effective on the first of the month on or after receipt of the application.

Documentation supporting the paternity acknowledgment is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

606 E) National Medical Support Notice (NMSN): The NMSN is a federal requirement used to enforce medical support orders for minor children. It is to be used throughout the United States to enroll children in employment related health insurance coverage. NMSN occurs when a court orders the parent in question to provide coverage for their child(ren). Coverage is effective the first of the month on or after receipt of the application or the date specified on the NMSN, if one is specified.

The employee is required to enroll their eligible children named in the NSMN in any medical insurance the employer has available for them. When the employer gets the NMSN, they will have to determine whether the amount of the employee's child support order and the amount of the medical insurance premium, added together, will be more than the percent they are allowed to withhold from the employee's paycheck under the federal Consumer Credit Protection Act. If the insurance and child support together equal more than this amount, the employer will not enroll the employee's child(ren) in medical insurance.

The NMSN is a qualified medical child support order; therefore, the employee does not have a choice to not enroll children named in the NMSN. If health care coverage is available and the employee is eligible, the employer is required to enroll the child or children as instructed in the notice. However, the employer must adhere to limitations imposed on withholding as mandated by withholding laws of the state where the employee is principally employed.

Employers should make a copy of PART A of the NSMN (two pages), keep the original for your files and return the copy to the Issuing Agency with the response page completed.

If an employee chooses to object, the employee must contact the issuing local child support agency as instructed in the NMSN he/she received. The employer must still comply with the NMSN regardless of whether an objection has been made by the employee. In addition to the NMSN (serving as required documentation), the employee must also file a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to add the children named in the order to coverage. The employer must file an application on behalf of the employee if the employee fails to comply with the NMSN. If the employee refuses to sign the application, the employer must

indicate that on the application.

606 F) Legal Custody Change: If family coverage is already in place, coverage for the dependent(s) will be effective on the date of the event if an application is received or online enrollment performed within 30 days of the event.

Documentation supporting the custody change is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

606 G) Disabled Dependent (child age 26 or older): If family coverage is already in place, coverage is effective the date the health plan approves the dependent's disabled status.

The SUBSCRIBER must submit an application or electronic request which ETF will forward to the health plan to have them complete their disability review process. When the health plan has reviewed the child's disability status, ETF will update the coverage accordingly.

606 H) Eligible Dependent Left Off Original Application: If family coverage is already in place, spouses and minor children who were left off the original application can be added to coverage prospectively if the following requirements are fulfilled in compliance with the contract and statute.

The relevant contract and statutory provisions follow:

Any DEPENDENT eligible for BENEFITS who is not listed on an application for coverage will be provided BENEFITS based on the date of notification with coverage effective the first of the month following receipt of the subsequent application by the EMPLOYER, except as required under Wis. Stat. § § 632.895 (5) and 632.896 and as specified in chapter 503 A 4.

606 I) Coverage Beyond Age 26 and Not Disabled: A dependent who was a full-time, postsecondary student younger than age 26 at the time they were called to active duty with the military, can continue health coverage provided they apply to an institution of higher education as a full-time student within 12 months of the date they are discharged from active duty.

Documentation to support this status is required and would include a copy of the class schedule prior to deployment, a copy of their discharge papers (DD-214), and a copy of their current class schedule.

607 Removing Dependents

Dependents can be removed from family coverage for a limited number of reasons outside the annual open enrollment period. These include the following reasons:

607 A) Divorce: Upon divorce, either a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) or an electronic enrollment request must be processed before the ex-spouse or any stepchildren can be removed from coverage.

Ideally this should be submitted within 30 days of the date the judgment of divorce is entered/final with the clerk of courts.

In the event the employee reports the divorce beyond 30 days of it being finalized, the exspouse will be removed prospectively. Coverage for the ex-spouse and any stepchildren will not end until the end of the month of the divorce **or** the end of the month the COBRA *Continuation-Conversion Notice* (ET-2311) was provided to the former dependents, whichever is later.

Documentation to support the coverage end date due to divorce may be required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

607 B) Death of Dependent: In the event of a dependent death, a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* or report of the death online through myETF Benefits must be submitted. There is no limitation on how long the employee has to report the death of a dependent; however, if the death results in the coverage level changing to single, premiums for the difference in premium cost between family and single coverage will only be refunded to the employer for a maximum of six months.

Covered stepchildren can remain covered at the discretion of the surviving spouse in the event of the employee's death. If the surviving spouse files an application to drop the stepchildren, proof of other insurance must be provided.

607 C) Dependent No Longer Qualifies as Disabled: For disabled adult dependents who no longer meet the health plan requirements to be considered disabled, coverage ends at the end of the month in which the health plan makes that determination.

The qualifications to determine disability include a medical review and that the employee or their spouse are providing at least 50% of the child's support and maintenance. If the dependent no longer meets these qualifications, they must be sent a *Continuation Conversion Notice* by the employer.

607 D) Grandchild's Parent Turns 18: The employer can pull an enrollment report monthly from myETF Benefits (Dependent Inquiry) to determine if any employee's grandchild(ren)'s parent turns 18 years old at the end of the month. The employee must submit an application or go online to myETF Benefits and report that the grandchild is losing eligibility.

The employee must be sent a *Continuation Conversion Notice* for the grandchild within five days of the date coverage ends.

607 E) Minor Dependent No Longer a Permanent Legal Ward: When a court terminates the permanent legal guardianship of a minor child or replaces the guardian with a new party, coverage for the legal ward who is no longer dependent on the employee or their spouse will end at the end of the month of the order terminating the permanent guardianship. Expiration of legal guardianship due to the ward attaining age 18 does not necessitate the removal of the ward from coverage.

A copy of the court order documenting the termination of the permanent guardianship is required. A *Continuation Conversion Notice* for the ward must be sent.

Under federal law, if notification of the loss of eligibility is not reported to the employer within 60 days of the event that caused the loss of eligibility or the date the coverage ended, then the right to Continuation Conversion Coverage (COBRA) is lost.

607 F) Adult Dependent Child Eligible for Other Coverage: A dependent child over the age of 19 who becomes eligible for, and elects other coverage, requires that an application to remove this dependent be submitted within 30 days of the event (enrollment in other coverage). For example, if a child marries but obtains coverage through their spouse at a later date such as an open enrollment period, the event is the start of other coverage, not the marriage. A dependent's enrolling in Medicare does not qualify the subscriber to terminate coverage for the adult child outside of open enrollment.

Coverage will terminate at the end of the month following receipt of the electronic request or paper application. If not received within 30 days, the employee will not be able to remove their dependent until the annual open enrollment period, even if this would result in the employee dropping to single coverage as they are their last eligible dependent.

Documentation to support the eligibility for the other coverage is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

607 G) Adult Dependent Child gains a dependent: For effective dates beginning January 1, 2021. Adult Dependent Eligible for Other Coverage due to gaining a Dependent: A dependent child over the age of 19 who is eligible for, and elects other coverage due to birth, adoption, paternity or National Medical Support Notice, may be removed as of the date their other coverage begins. If not received within 30 days of the event or notice of the event, the employee will not be able to remove their dependent until the annual open enrollment period, even if this would result in the employee dropping to single coverage as they are their last eligible dependent.

Documentation to support the eligibility for the other coverage is required as outlined in the Life Change Events and Documentation Requirements (ET-2846) online.

607 H) Adult Dependent requests to be dropped from Parent/Subscriber's coverage:

For effective dates beginning January 1, 2021 when the subscriber refuses to submit application. A dependent child over the age of 19 who becomes eligible for, and elects other coverage, who does not live with the subscriber, and has concerns about private health insurance information being shared with the subscriber may request to be removed from their parent's plan. The child must provide documentation of the preceding items. The effective date will be the end of the month following date of request.

607 I) Dependent No Longer covered under a National Medical Support Notice (NMSN):

When a court terminates the NMSN of a child, coverage for the child will end at the end of the month of the order terminating the NMSN.

A copy of the court order documenting the termination of the NMSN is required. A *Continuation Conversion Notice (ET-2311)* for the child must be sent.

Under federal law, if notification of the loss of eligibility is not reported to the employer within 60 days of the event that caused the loss of eligibility or the date the coverage ended, then the right to Continuation Conversion Coverage (COBRA) is lost.

607 J) Dependent No Longer covered due to custody change: When a court orders custody of a minor child to a different party, coverage for the DEPENDENT will end at the end of the month of the custody order changing where the child lives. A copy of the court order documenting the custody change of the dependent is required.

608 Reenrollment of Certain Retirees

Retirees who are eligible for post-retirement benefits from their participating former local employer that allow for payment of health insurance premiums in retirement, may re-enroll mid-year in the group health insurance program if they have been continuously covered by their spouse in the State or Local Group Health Insurance Program. See 701 G) (6). If the member is insured by a spouse and they want to change to two singles in the program, they may under this provision.

Chapter 7 — Health Benefits Open Enrollment

- 701 It's Your Choice Open Enrollment Eligibility
- 702 Withdrawing/Rescinding It's Your Choice Enrollment Elections
- 703 When a Health Plan is not Available at Open Enrollment
- 704 Late It's Your Choice Open Enrollment Applications
- 705 Late It's Your Choice Open Enrollment Review Sample Letter

701 It's Your Choice Open Enrollment Eligibility

- 701 A) (1) The BOARD shall establish enrollment periods, called the health benefits open enrollment period, which shall permit eligible EMPLOYEES, ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS to enroll for or transfer coverage to any plan offered by the BOARD as required by Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7). Unless otherwise provided by the BOARD, the enrollment period shall be held once annually in the fall of each year with coverage effective the following January 1.
 - (2) It's Your Choice Open Enrollment provides an annual opportunity for uninsured employees to apply for new health insurance coverage and currently insured subscribers to change from one health plan to another, drop or add an adult dependent (age 19 or older) or a dependent who does not qualify as a tax dependent, transfer the coverage from one spouse employee to the other, transfer a dependent's coverage from one divorced employee parent to another, or change from single-to-family or family-to-single coverage without limitations.
 - (3) If a SUBSCRIBER has not received an enrollment opportunity as determined by ETF, an enrollment opportunity may be offered prospectively.
 - (4) An EMPLOYEE who returns from leave of absence (as defined under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40)) during which coverage lapsed and which encompassed the entire previous open enrollment period will be allowed an enrollment provided an application is filed during the 30-day period which begins on the date the EMPLOYEE returns from leave of absence.
 - (5) An eligible EMPLOYEE who is insured as a DEPENDENT child on another policy in this program can enroll for coverage by submitting an application during the annual IT'S YOUR CHOICE enrollment period for coverage effective the following January 1.

701 B) Health Benefits Open Enrollment Period:

The Board sets the It's Your Choice Open Enrollment period, normally a four-week period in October. Changes in coverage take effect January 1 of the following year.

701 C) Participation in the Health Benefits Open Enrollment Period:

Two requirements must be met to make a change or enroll during open enrollment:

- (1) To enroll, the employee must be eligible for and be enrolled in the WRS or be an employee of a non-WRS employer enrolled in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program for Non-WRS Employers. To make a change, the employee must be currently insured in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program; and
- (2) If the employee is enrolling for the first time and a single parent (including divorced employees), they must provide documentation such as a birth certificate or paternity acknowledgement to add dependent children (if documentation is not on file for currently covered dependents, even if they were previously insured dependents, it will be requested and must be provided) and
- (3) (a) The employee must enter the change request online into the myETF Benefits system or provide the *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* (ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually to the employer within the designated health benefits open enrollment period.

(b) Applications from ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS changing plans during the enrollment period must be received by ETF postmarked no later than the last day of the enrollment period, unless otherwise authorized by ETF. Members with duty disability are not eligible to newly enroll during open enrollment.

701 D) Distribution of health benefits materials:

The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides,* available on the ETF website and updated annually (please see ET-2128, ET-2158, ET-2168, and ET-2169) provide information on what's changing, health insurance rates, uniform benefits and plan availability for the plan year. The guides are forwarded to local employers that participate in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program prior to the open enrollment period for distribution to all eligible employees, insured and uninsured (including those on leave of absence and layoff). ETF has guides mailed directly to ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS. There is a limited supply of paper annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides* available; employers are encouraged to direct employees to the health benefits webpages that include the electronic version of the guides found on ETF's website at: eff.wi.gov/publications/insurance.htm. The annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides* must be distributed in a timely manner.

701 E) Employees Initially Eligible for Coverage on November 1 or December 1:

Employees initially eligible for coverage on November 1 or December 1, who wish to change to a different health plan or coverage type effective January 1, **must file two** online applications or *Health Insurance Application/Change Forms* during their regular enrollment period. The first application will cover the period from the date of initial coverage through December 31. The second application will change to whatever health plan or coverage type is selected effective January 1, and must have the Annual health benefits enrollment box

checked as the reason for submitting the application.

701 F) Employees who will retire during or after Open Enrollment:

Active employees who will retire between September and December should submit their open enrollment elections directly to ETF as they will be a retiree effective January 1st of the following year. Applications can be submitted to ETF via Box, email, fax, or by mailing.

701 G) Employee's employment and/or health coverage ends after submitting an enrollment election:

- If coverage ends on or prior to December 31, on the Continuation Conversion Notice (<u>ET-2311</u>), list the health plan that coverage is with as of the coverage end date unless COBRA begins January 1. Then the open enrollment health plan election applies
- (2) List the elected health plan on *Continuation Conversion Notice* if current coverage ends after December 31.

701 H) Deferred Coverage Enrollment

- (1) Any EMPLOYEE actively employed with an EMPLOYER participating under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 who does not elect coverage during the enrollment period provided under section 501 or who constructively waives coverage under section 214 C or who subsequently cancels coverage elected under chapter 5 or 602, 603, 803 B, 703 B and 701 A (1), (3) (4) and 701 C (2) (b)., may be insured only by electing coverage during the IT'S YOUR CHOICE open enrollment period as provided in section 701 A (1).
- (2) An EMPLOYEE or ANNUITANT enrolled for individual coverage, though eligible for family coverage may only elect family coverage during the open enrollment period, except as provided in chapter 5 or 602, 603, 703 B and 701 A (1), (3) (4) and 701 C (2) (b).
- (3) An insured EMPLOYEE or ANNUITANT is permitted to change among IYC HEALTH PLANS during an open enrollment period offered under sections 602, 603, 703 B and 701 A (1), (3) (4) and 701 C (2) (b).
- (4) An eligible EMPLOYEE or EMPLOYEE on leave of absence under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40) who is not enrolled for coverage, may enroll in the ACCESS PLAN 30 days prior to retirement for the purpose of using post-retirement EMPLOYER premium contribution. If an employee wants to retire as of April 15, they need to be insured as an employee in the ACCESS PLAN as of April first, then their retiree coverage would begin as of May first. The application must be submitted no later than the first day coverage would be effective.
- (5) Retirees who were insured as an employee immediately prior to termination of employment and who canceled their health insurance upon retirement or later, may return to coverage with their former, participating employer and enroll for coverage during the open enrollment period with an effective date of the first of the next calendar year if, within 30 days of termination of employment they:
 - (a) began receiving a monthly annuity or
 - (b) took a lump sum benefit which would have been an immediate annuity if paid as an annuity under Wis. Stat. § 40.25 (1).

- (6) Retirees in 701 G) (5) who are eligible for post-retirement benefits from their participating former local employer that allow for payment of health insurance premiums in retirement, may re-enroll mid-year in the group health insurance program as follows if they have been continuously covered by their spouse in the State or Local Group Health Insurance Program:
 - a) When their spouse involuntarily loses employer contribution (for example, due to being laid off, fired, or quit and isn't eligible to keep group coverage) for State or participating Local group health insurance coverage and the application is filed within 30 days of the event, or
 - b) In anticipation of their spouse exhausting their State sick leave credits. If so, the local retiree may file an application during the open enrollment period for delayed enrollment, to be effective on a date specified for the future. This date would coincide with the exhaustion of the spouse's State's sick leave credits. For example, if sick leave credits were going to be exhausted ending in May, the local retiree would file an application with a future effective date of June 1.

702 Withdrawing/Rescinding Open Enrollment Elections

Entry of an employee's request to withdraw/rescind an open enrollment election in MEBS must be completed by ETF. Employees may withdraw/rescind an election by notifying their employer in writing (letter or email) prior to the January 1 effective date.

702 A) If the employee submitted their open enrollment election on a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) or online, upon receipt of the written request to withdraw/ rescind:

- (1) Either forward one copy of the application with "Rescind" written across the top or a copy of the employee's written request to withdraw/rescind the application to ETF.
- (2) Retain the original copy of the rescinded application for the employer's records.
- (3) ETF will update myETF Benefits by deleting the initial open enrollment request and reinstating the employee's coverage that was to end on December 31.

Note: No application or on-line request for coverage may be withdrawn/rescinded on or after the effective date of coverage. After the coverage effective date, the subscriber can only cancel coverage prospectively *if* premiums are paid with post-tax dollars (refer to subchapter 904) or through the late enrollment process, also prospectively (refer to subchapter 704).

703 When a Health Plan is not Available at Open Enrollment

When a plan is no longer available for the upcoming year, subscribers enrolled in that plan **must** make an open enrollment change online **or** submit a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) during the It's Your Choice Open Enrollment period to enroll in a new plan. Subscribers are notified by letter from the departing plan at the onset of open enrollment. Information on plans no longer available will also be included in the "What's Changing" section in the annual *Health Benefits Decision Guide*.

703 A) In some instances, such as a health plan service area merger, applications are not required and subscribers are switched automatically to a new plan. In that event, a new application is not required, annual employer news via ETF E-mail Updates, and the annual *Health Benefits Decision Guides* will include instructions.

703 B) If the HEALTH PLAN offers more than one network to PARTICIPANTS and the service areas of those networks change on January 1st, a SUBCRIBER who failed to make an open enrollment election to change networks in order to maintain access to his or her current providers may still change to the appropriate network within that same HEALTH PLAN. The effective date of the change in networks is effective on January 1st or the first day of the month after the EMPLOYER receives the SUBSCRIBER'S request to change networks, whichever is later.

Subscribers whose plan will no longer be available and who fail to submit an application selecting an available plan during the health benefits open enrollment period are deemed to have canceled coverage and must apply through the late application process to select a new health plan to continue coverage. Coverage is usually effective the first day of the calendar month on or after the date ETF receives the application.

704 Late Open Enrollment Applications

SUBSCRIBERS may request a review if they believe they were not offered an enrollment opportunity and they feel that their *Health Insurance Application/ Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) should be accepted after the designated open enrollment period. Employers may key late open enrollment requests as long as the open enrollment reason remains available in myETF Benefits without submitting to ETF for review. Please note that a late application does not guarantee approval. The steps included in this process are as follows:

- A. Employee submits application after the end of the open enrollment period.
- B. Employer rejects and returns late application to employee with instructions on requesting a review. A sample letter informing an employee of this process is found in subchapter 705.
- C. Employee submits a written request (letter or email) for ETF to review to the employer no later than April 15 following the open enrollment period. Approved requests prior to January 31st will be retroactively effective to January 1. Requests approved after January 31st will be effective prospectively to the first of the following month.
- D. Employee includes in the letter or email the facts or circumstances relating to the reason(s) their application is being filed late and the remedy being sought.
- E. After January 1, the employer develops a cover memo, letter or email addressed to ETF detailing the process used to distribute health benefits materials and information to employees, the date of receipt of the employee's health benefits application, and any pertinent facts that either supports or does not support the employee's request.
- F. Employer sends a copy of the employee's late *Health Insurance Application/Change Form*, the original employee's letter or email requesting a review, and the employer cover memo, letter or email to:

EMPLOYER SERVICES SECTION DEPT OF EMPLOYEE TRUST FUNDS P.O. BOX 7931 MADISON WI 53707-7931

These materials and information can also be scanned and emailed to: <u>ETFSMBEmployerInsurance@etf.wi.gov</u>.

Emails must be sent encrypted to comply with HIPAA standards; if you cannot send encrypted email, please mail or fax only. The subject line should be titled "Late Health Application".

G. ETF reviews the materials submitted and issues a letter within 30-60 days to the employee, copying the employer, that the request was either approved or denied. Generally, coverage will be prospective if approved.

705 Late Open Enrollment Review Sample Letter

Below is a sample letter from the employer informing an employee of the review process for a late *health* application.

(DATE)

(EMPLOYER NAME AND ADDRESS IF NOT ON THE LETTERHEAD) Dear (EMPLOYEE NAME):

Your Open Enrollment health insurance application is being returned to you by our office because it was not received timely. You may request a review of your late application by the Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) through the following process:

- (1) Prepare a written request detailing the circumstances and facts surrounding the reason for your late application and the remedy you are seeking.
- (2) Submit your written request and your application to our office at the address noted above by January 31. Do not submit your request directly to ETF.
- (3) We will review your request for completeness and attach any pertinent documentation.
- (4) We will submit your request, your health insurance application, and other documentation to ETF for review.
- (5) ETF will review the materials and issue you a letter either approving or denying your request. Generally, coverage will be prospective if approved.

If you have questions, please contact (NAME) at (TELEPHONE NUMBER).

Chapter 8 — Leave of Absence

- 801 Definition of a Leave of Absence
- 802 Coverage Does Not Lapse While on a Leave of Absence
- 803 Coverage Lapses While on a Leave of Absence
- 804 Coverage During Layoff
- 805 Coverage During Appeal of Discharge

801 Definition of a Leave of Absence (LOA)

801 A) Under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40), "Leave of absence" means any period during which an employee has ceased to render services for a participating employer and receive earnings and there has been no formal termination of the employer–employee relationship.

801 B) A return from a leave of absence under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40) is deemed to be the first day the employee *returns to work* if the employee resumes active performance of duty for 30 consecutive calendar days for at least 50% of the employee's normal work time. If the employee does not complete 30 consecutive calendar days of duty, the employee is not deemed to have returned from leave and coverage will continue as an employee on leave of absence.

801 C) An employee on LOA is subject to the same eligibility and enrollment provisions as an active employee. The amount of EMPLOYER contribution toward PREMIUM for EMPLOYEES on approved leave of absence or LAYOFF shall be at the discretion of the EMPLOYER.

802 Coverage Does Not Lapse While on a Leave of Absence

802 A) Insured employees on an unpaid leave of absence (LOA) choose whether to continue health insurance coverage during their LOA. Employee coverage remains active as long as premiums are paid when due. After any EMPLOYER contribution, the insured EMPLOYEE is responsible for payment of the full PREMIUM that must be paid in advance. Each payment must be received by the EMPLOYER at least 30 days prior to the end of the coverage period for which PREMIUMS had previously been paid.

Retroactive EMPLOYER refunds resulting from termination for non-payment of PREMIUM by the EMPLOYEE are not allowed. For example:

- If the employer has paid for May coverage, we do not let failure to collect the employee's share invalidate that month's coverage.
- If not collected, the following month's coverage (June) should be terminated due to failure to pay.
- If the employer pays the month before coverage starts and they have not been able to collect the employee's contribution in advance of coverage, coverage should cancel for the first full month they received no payment from the member. Retroactive

terminations are not accepted.

802 B) The following applies to employees continuing their coverage during an approved LOA:

- (1) The maximum length of time coverage can be continued for an employee on LOA is 36 months per Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40). After that, coverage may be continued beyond 36 months if the approved leave is due to a union service leave provided by Wis. Stats. § 40.02 (56) and 40.03 (6) (g) and/or under COBRA. (Refer to Chapter 9 for information on COBRA.)
- (2) Employer contributions made toward premium payment while an employee is on a LOA is at the discretion of the employer.
- (3) Regardless of if the employee is paying the entire premium or an employee share, premiums must be paid in advance of the coverage month. This can be done by either a deduction from the last payroll check or by direct payment to the employer, e.g., personal check. Again, the employer must receive premium payments in advance of the coverage month. Also see 802A.
- (4) Employees on a LOA remain active on the employers' invoice. Employers will be billed the premiums on their monthly invoice for each respective coverage month the employee remains on a LOA. Payments received from an employee on a LOA are to be made payable to the employer.
- (5) Employers must provide open enrollment information to employees on a LOAprior to the beginning of the designated open enrollment period. This includes an employee on a union-service leave (see 802A 1).
- (6) Employees continuing coverage while on LOA are not required to complete a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) upon return to work.

803 Coverage Lapses While on a Leave of Absence

803 A) Insured employees on an unpaid leave of absence (LOA) can choose to allow their health insurance coverage to lapse during their LOA. An employee may choose to allow their coverage to lapse by not paying the premium when due. If they do so, they may regain eligibility for coverage upon return to work.

If the employee files an application to cancel coverage they are not eligible to enroll upon return to work. This is considered a voluntary termination. EMPLOYEES who cancel coverage cannot re-enroll until the next open enrollment period or when a life event occurs (e.g. marriage, birth, etc.), whichever occurs first. Refer to Chapter 4, subchapter 403 for other enrollment opportunities.

803 B) Any insured EMPLOYEE for whom coverage lapses, or who allows family coverage to lapse during the leave of absence but continues individual coverage (as a result of non-payment of PREMIUM), may reinstate coverage by filing an application with the EMPLOYER within 30 days after the return to work. Coverage is effective the 1st day of the month on or after the date the EMPLOYER receives the application. The EMPLOYEE becomes eligible for the EMPLOYER contribution toward PREMIUM for the coverage month the leave of absence ends.

803 C) If an employee allowed their health insurance coverage to lapse while on an approved LOA, the following applies upon returning to work and the employee chooses to reinstate coverage:

- (1) Military leave: Employee must resume employment within 180 days after release from active military service, and complete and submit an application to their employer within 30 days after returning to employment to enroll in coverage. Coverage is effective upon the date of re-employment. This is sooner than return to work. A full month's PREMIUM is due for that month if coverage is effective before the 16th of that month. Otherwise, the entire PREMIUM for that month is waived.
- (2) Non-military leave: The employee's coverage effective date is the first of the month on or following receipt of the application by the employer. The application must be filed within 30 days of the return to work. A full month's PREMIUM is due for that month if coverage is effective before the 16th of that month. Otherwise, the entire PREMIUM for that month is waived.
- (3) The employee is limited to the same health plan and level of coverage they were enrolled in prior to their LOA. See the three bullet points that follow for exceptions to this requirement.
 - (a) Employee may change coverage level if a qualifying life event occurred during their LOA (e.g. marriage, birth, etc.). Refer to Chapter 4, subchapter 403 for information about other enrollment opportunities.
 - (b) Employee who moved while on a LOA may change health plans upon return to work.
 - (c) Employee who returns from a LOA that encompassed the entire previous open enrollment period and files an application within 30 days of returning to work, may make changes to the coverage they had prior to their LOA.
- (4) Employee who did not file an application within 30 days of returning to work cannot re-enroll in coverage until the next open enrollment period or when a qualifying life event occurs (e.g. marriage, birth, etc.), whichever occurs first. Refer to Chapter 4, subchapter 403 other enrollment opportunities.
- (5) The coverage effective date for employees returning from Family Medical Leave of Absence (FMLA) in accordance with federal law, is the date the employee returns to work provided an application is filed with the employer within 30 days of the employee's return to work. A full month's premium is due for that month if coverage is effective before the 16th of that month. Otherwise, the entire premium for that month is waived.
- (6) EMPLOYEES shall also have enrollment opportunities if the EMPLOYEE or a DEPENDENT loses eligibility for another health insurance plan or the EMPLOYER's contribution toward it while on leave of absence. Other coverage may be as a member of the US Armed Forces, or as a citizen of a country with

national health care coverage comparable to the Access Plan. EMPLOYEES must file an application and provide evidence satisfactory to ETF of the loss of eligibility. A full month's premium is due for that month if coverage is effective before the 16th of the month. If coverage is effective on the 16th or later, the entire premium is waived for that month.

804 Coverage During Layoff

804 A) The following apply to employees on layoff status who do not allow health insurance coverage to lapse. Coverage may be continued during layoff with the following conditions:

- (1) Employer contributions toward premium payment during layoff are at the discretion of the employer.
- (2) Any insured EMPLOYEE may continue coverage during any EMPLOYER approved leave of absence or LAYOFF for up to 36 months. Insurance coverage may be continued beyond 36 months if the approved leave as provided for union service leave under Wis. Stats. § 40.02 (56) and 40.03 (6) (g) and/or under COBRA.
- (3) Premiums, whether the entire monthly premium or the employee share payment must be received by the EMPLOYER at least 30 days prior to the end of the coverage period for which PREMIUMS had previously been paid. Premium payment can be either by deduction from the last payroll check or by direct payment to the employer, e.g., by personal check. Also see 802A.
- (4) Employees on layoff are included on the employer's monthly invoice along with active employees and employees on LOA. Any payments received from employees on layoff should be made payable to the employer and included in your monthly premium remittance to ETF.
- (5) Employees on layoff during an entire open enrollment period must be given an Open Enrollment opportunity. This includes an employee on a union-service leave (see 804A 2). Open Enrollment information should be sent to those employees who are on layoff prior to the beginning of the designated Open Enrollment period.
- (6) Employees are not required to complete a *Health Insurance* Application/Change Form((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) upon their return to work.

804 B) The following applies to employees on layoff status who allow health insurance coverage to lapse and choose to reinstate coverage:

- (1) Upon return to work, the employee is limited to the same health plan and level of coverage they were enrolled in prior to their LOA. See (a), (b) and (c) that follow for exceptions to this requirement.
 - (a) Employee may change coverage level if a life event occurred during their LOA (e.g. marriage, birth, etc.). Refer to Chapter 5, subchapter 503 for information about other enrollment opportunities.
 - (b) Employee who moved while on a LOA may change health plans upon return to work.
 - (c) Employee who returns from a LOA that encompassed the entire

previous open enrollment period and files an application within 30 days of returning to work, may make changes to the coverage they had prior to their LOA.

(2) The EMPLOYEE who did not file an application within 30 days of returning to work cannot re-enroll in coverage until the next open enrollment period or when a life event occurs (e.g. marriage, birth, etc.), whichever occurs first. Refer to Chapter 5, subchapter 503 other enrollment opportunities.

805 Coverage During Appeal of Discharge

805 A) An insured EMPLOYEE who has exercised a statutory or contractual right of appeal of removal or discharge from his or her position, or who within 30 days of discharge becomes a party to arbitration or to legal proceedings to obtain judicial review of the legality of the discharge, may continue to be insured from the date of the contested discharge until a final decision has been reached.

805 B) An insured employee appealing an employment discharge may continue to be insured from the date of the contested discharge until a final decision is made. The following apply:

- (1) The employer must receive the first premium payment within 30 days of discharge.
- (2) Future premium payments must be made through the employer and must be received in advance of the coverage month.
- (3) The employee must pay both the employee and employer share of premium due each month until the appeal is resolved.
- (4) The employee must continue to be reported along with active employees on the employer's monthly invoice. Any payments received from employees appealing a discharge should be made payable to the employer and included in the employer's monthly premium remittance to ETF.

805C) In the event the appeal is decided in favor of the employee and the employee is made whole (as if the discharge did not occur), the employer must reimburse the employee for all employer shares of premiums paid by the employee during the course of the appeals process. The employer is not required to return the employer share in cases where the employee is not made whole but returns to work under the terms of the final agreement.

In the event an appeal reinstates an employee who allowed coverage to lapse during the appeal, the employee may reinstate coverage provided the employee re-applies for coverage within 30 days of the return to work.

805D) If the final decision is adverse to the employee, the date of termination shall, for purposes of health care coverage, be the end of the month in which the decision becomes final. This may include by expiration without appeal of the time within which an appeal might have been perfected, or by final affirmation on appeal.

If the discharge is for reasons other than gross misconduct, the employee is eligible to continue health insurance for the balance of 18 months from the original termination date

(the balance of the continuation period). If the discharge is for gross misconduct, the employee is only eligible for conversion coverage and should contact the health plan for information on benefits, rates and policy provisions. (Refer to Chapter 10 for information about continuation and conversion.) In either case, a *Continuation-Conversion Notice* (ET-2311) must be provided to the employee using the original discharge date.
Chapter 9 — Cancellation and Termination of Coverage

901 <u>Individual Termination of Coverage</u>
902 <u>Ending Coverage</u>
903 <u>Changing From Active to Annuitant Coverage</u>
904 <u>Cancellation of Coverage</u>

901 Individual Termination of Coverage

ETF offers a resource to help employers advise employees who are terminating employment, including retirees. It is the <u>Termination Checklist for Local Employees (ET-2500I)</u>.

901 A) A PARTICIPANT'S coverage shall terminate at the end of the month on the earliest of the following dates:

- (1) The effective date of change to another HEALTH PLAN through the BOARD approved enrollment process.
- (2) The expiration of the period for which PREMIUMS are paid when PREMIUMS are not paid when due.

Note: As required by federal law, if timely payment is made in an amount that is not significantly less than amount due, that amount is deemed to satisfy the HEALTH PLAN'S requirement for the amount that must be paid. The HEALTH PLAN may notify the PARTICIPANT of the amount of the deficiency and grant a reasonable time period for payment of that amount. Thirty days after the notice is given is considered a reasonable time period.

- (3) The expiration of the 36 months for which the SUBSCRIBER is allowed to continue coverage while on a leave of absence or LAYOFF, as provided in sections 801 B, 802 A, 803 B and C (4) and 804 A 2.
- (4) The end of the month in which a notice of cancellation of coverage is received by the EMPLOYER or by ETF in the case of an ANNUITANT or CONTINUANT for whom the EMPLOYER has no reporting responsibilities, or a later date as specified on the cancellation of coverage notice. If the ANNUITANT or CONTINUANT contacts the HEALTH PLAN directly to cancel coverage, the HEALTH PLAN is to reject the cancellation and immediately notify the ANNUITANT or CONTINUANT to submit a written cancellation notice to ETF.
- (5) The definition of PARTICIPANT no longer applies (such as a DEPENDENT child's marriage, divorced spouse, etc.). As required by Wis. Stat. §632.897, if family coverage remains in effect and the EMPLOYEE fails to notify the EMPLOYER of divorce, coverage for the ex-spouse ends the last day of the month in which notification of continuation of coverage rights occurs (see 1001A). The

EMPLOYER may collect PREMIUM retroactively from the SUBSCRIBER if the divorce was not reported in a timely manner and there were no other eligible DEPENDENTS for family coverage to remain in effect. The ACA requires that an employee receive a full month of coverage before coverage is terminated unless there is fraud or gross misconduct in order for the employee to find other coverage.

- (6) The expiration of the continuation period for which the PARTICIPANT is allowed to continue under 901 C) below, as required by state and federal law.
- (7) The effective date of coverage obtained with another employer group health plan of PARTICIPANT who continues under 901 C) below. Terminations due to enrollment in medical assistance (Medicaid), the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP), or TRICARE may be retroactive to the effective date of coverage upon request by the subscriber and determination by ETF.
- (8) The earliest date federal or state continuation provisions permit termination of coverage for any reason.
- (9) The end of the month in which the SUBSCRIBER terminates employment.
- (10) The first day of the month following ETF's written notice to a SUBSCRIBER who is ineligible for coverage but, due to EMPLOYER or ETF error, was enrolled for coverage. The ACA requires that an employee receive a full month of coverage before coverage is terminated unless there is fraud or gross misconduct in order for the employee to find other coverage. Also see 901 G) below.
- (11) The effective date of the termination of EMPLOYER participation for all PARTICIPANTS for whom coverage was secured as a result of the EMPLOYERS participation.
- (12) Upon date of death. No refund of PREMIUM may be granted for the month in which the coverage ends. If deceased subscriber has covered dependents, see 1402 A) and C) regarding continued coverage of surviving dependents.
- (13) Upon a significant reduction in employer's contribution toward health insurance (5% or more). An employee whose employer contribution is lowering due to a job appointment change may cancel coverage. The event is the first of the month on or following the appointment change. The Health Insurance Application or electronic enrollment request must be submitted no later than 30 days following the appointment change.

Note: If the employee's spouse is an eligible Local or State employee, the couple may change the listed subscriber to the spouse who is getting a greater share of employer contribution. This event does not permit a change of health plans.

901 B) No refund of any PREMIUM under 901 A) (5) may be made unless the EMPLOYER, or ETF if applicable, receives a written request from the SUBSCRIBER by the last day of the month preceding the month for which PREMIUM has been collected or deducted. Except that when coverage ends because of termination of employment, refunds shall be made back to the end of the month in which employment terminates.

901 C) A PARTICIPANT who ceases to meet the definition of EMPLOYEE, ANNUITANT, or DEPENDENT may elect to continue group coverage as required by state and federal law. Application must be postmarked within 60 days of the date the PARTICIPANT is notified of the right to continue or 60 days from the date coverage ceases, whichever is later. The HEALTH PLAN shall bill the continuing PARTICIPANT directly for the required PREMIUM.

901 D) No person other than a PARTICIPANT is eligible for health insurance BENEFITS. The SUBSCRIBER'S rights to group health insurance coverage is forfeited if a PARTICIPANT assigns or transfers such rights, or aids any other person in obtaining BENEFITS to which they are not entitled, or otherwise fraudulently attempts to obtain BENEFITS. Coverage terminates the beginning of the month following action of the BOARD. Re-enrollment is possible only if the person is employed by an EMPLOYER where coverage is available and is limited to the ACCESS PLAN.

Change to an IYC HEALTH PLAN is available during a regular IT'S YOUR-CHOICE enrollment period, which begins a minimum of 12 months after the disenrollment date.

ETF may at any time request such documentation as it deems necessary to substantiate SUBSCRIBER or DEPENDENT eligibility. Failure to provide such documentation upon request shall result in the suspension of BENEFITS.

901 E) In situations where a PARTICIPANT has committed acts of physical or verbal abuse, or is unable to establish/maintain a satisfactory physician-patient relationship with the current or alternate primary care physician, disenrollment efforts may be initiated by the HEALTH PLAN or the BOARD. The SUBSCRIBER'S disenrollment is effective the first of the month following completion of the grievance process and approval of the BOARD. Coverage may be transferred to the ACCESS PLAN only, with options to enroll in IYC HEALTH PLANS during subsequent health benefits enrollment periods. Re-enrollment in the HEALTH PLAN is available during a regular enrollment period, which begins a minimum of 12 months after the disenrollment date.

901 F) In the situation where the EMPLOYER violates the terms of the CONTRACT, coverage for all its PARTICIPANTS, including ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS, terminates the first of the month following notification from ETF of 30 days or more.

901 G) Except in cases of fraud or where an individual makes an intentional misrepresentation of material fact, under federal law, an EMPLOYER must not retroactively cancel (also called rescind) coverage, except to the extent attributable to a failure to pay timely premiums towards coverage. This rule also applies to ANNUITANTS. It is not considered a rescission where, due to administrative delay in record-keeping, the EMPLOYER retroactively cancels coverage back to the date of termination of employment as limited by section 215.

902 Ending Coverage

The coverage end date for the employee is entered by the employer in myETF Benefits. After logging into myETF Benefits, from the Health tab select the *Termination of Coverage* option.

Active coverage may be ended for an employee based upon an employee's request to:

• complete a spouse-to-spouse transfer,

- death of the subscriber,
- disability approval (non-ICI),
- termination of employment or
- employee's request to cancel coverage.

Refer to the chart below for specific limitations and requirements surrounding these termination scenarios.

The ending of an employee's coverage will be reported on the Monthly Employer Invoice. (Refer to Chapter 15 regarding instructions and information on the Monthly Employer Invoice.)

Reason	Coverage End Date	Comments
Cancel Coverage	Refer to subchapter 904	Employee is voluntarily ending coverage. Refer to subchapter 803 regarding Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 125 pre-tax and post-tax requirements. For example, when SUBSCRIBER and all eligible DEPENDENTS are newly eligible for, and enrolled in, other coverage or the employee premium share has increased significantly. If employee does not pay required premiums while out on a leave of absence (LOA), this is a cancellation, voluntarily ending coverage.
Termination of Employment	End of the calendar month in which the employee terminates employment.	Employee's coverage is an involuntary loss of coverage. If employee is terminating employment because they are retiring (refer to Chapter 11), going on an unpaid LOA or layoff and are starting an immediate annuity.
Termination of Employment prior to effective date of coverage	The application is void and any premiums paid or deducted will be refunded.	
Cancel Spouse-To-Spouse Employment	Refer to subchapter 904	Employee voluntarily ending coverage. Cannot complete a cancellation mid- year without an allowable status change under the plan language (contract) or HIPAA qualifying life event if premiums are deducted pre-tax.
Disability Approval (Non-ICI)	Coverage is continued as an annuitant without lapse upon approval of a disability benefit.	This is an employer entry in myETF Benefits. No application to end coverage is required from employee. ETF will coordinate coverage between active employment and annuitant status so that no lapse or duplication of coverage occurs. Refer to subchapter 903.
Death of Subscriber with Single Coverage	End of the calendar month in which the death occurred.	Refund any premiums paid in advance for coverage beyond the end of the month in which death occurred.
Death of Subscriber with Family Coverage	Coverage under the employee's contract continues through the last day of the month for which the premium has already been deducted.	Do not refund any premiums unless authorized by ETF.

903 Changing from Active to Annuitant Coverage

Retiring insured employees are eligible to continue health coverage if they receive an immediate annuity upon retirement (monthly or lump sum benefit), WRS disability retirement, or duty disability benefits (Refer to Chapter 11).

When an employee retires, the employer should leave their coverage active in myETF Benefits. ETF staff will end the contract when the Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage (ET-4814) is received.

- A. When a retiring employee qualifies for health insurance coverage and the employer continues to pay all or part of the monthly health insurance premium, for example, through conversion of unused sick leave or some similar employee benefit agreement, the retiring employee is considered an Employer-Paid Annuitant. (Refer to Chapter 11)
- B. Other retirees who wish to continue coverage may make premium payments through their annuity or with payments directly to the plan.

Employees on an unpaid leave of absence immediately prior to retirement whose coverage lapsed due to non-payment of premiums can reinstate coverage if an immediate WRS annuity is taken and a health insurance application is filed with ETF by the date of their first annuity payment.

In all cases, they must also complete the *Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage* (<u>ET-4814</u>).

904 Cancelation of Coverage

When an employee wishes to cancel coverage for any of the voluntary reasons listed in subchapter 901, they cannot complete their request mid-year without an eligible status change that is allowed under the plan language (contract) or under HIPAA if the employee premium is being deducted on a pre-tax basis under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 125.

If the employee premium is being deducted post-tax, coverage can be canceled at any time throughout the calendar year. If an event has occurred that is not listed in the following table, contact ETF for review and guidance.

Event	Eligibility Requirements	Coverage End	Comments
Pre-Tax Employee Terminating Employment	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted no later than the month employment terminates. The event date is the date employee terminates employment.	End of the month following receipt of the application/myETF Benefits request or the event date, whichever is later.	The coverage end date for a cancelation request is always the end of a month. Retroactive cancelations are not allowed.
Pre-Tax Employee Going on an Unpaid LOA	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted no later than the month employee goes on a LOA. The event date is the date employee begins a LOA. An affirmative choice to cancel coverage by submitting an application invalidates the right to re-enroll at the end of the LOA. To retain re-enrollment rights the employee should allow coverage to lapse due to non-payment. At the time the employee ceases paying their contribution or the entire premium while on unpaid LOA, the employer must terminate their coverage in myETF Benefits. No application is required and none should be requested for a lapse.	End of the month following receipt of the application/myETF Benefits request or the event date, whichever is later. For lapses, coverage termination should be entered at the time payment is not received from the employee. Coverage ends the end of the month for which payment was received.	An employee who continued coverage during a LOA is eligible to receive the employer share of the monthly premium for the current coverage month plus for three additional months. Once the employee is paying the employer share of the premium or the entire premium post-tax, coverage can be canceled at the end of any month following receipt of an application/request, but this invalidates the right to re-enroll upon return from LOA. Coverage end date for a cancelation request is always the end of a month. Retroactive cancelations are not allowed.

Event	Eligibility Requirements	Coverage End Dates	Comments
Pre-Tax Family Status Change (e.g., spouse to spouse)	An allowed family status change under the plan language (contract) or under HIPAA must occur to allow cancellation to	End of the month following receipt of an application/myETF Benefits request or the event date, whichever is later.	Refer to Chapter 6 for status changes allowed under the plan language (contract) and HIPAA.
	enroll under spouse's coverage as an employee. <i>Health Insurance</i> <i>Application/Change</i> <i>Form</i> or myETF Benefits request must be submitted within 30 days of the IRC Section 125 status change, the event.		Documentation may be required. If an allowed family status change has not occurred, an employee can submit an application in October, November or December requesting coverage to be canceled effective December 31.
			Coverage end date for a cancelation request is always the end of a month. Retroactive cancellations are not allowed.

Event	Eligibility Requirements	Coverage End Dates	Comments
Pre-Tax Employee Premium Contribution Has Increased Significantly	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted within 30 days of the date premiums significantly increased, the event date.	End of the month following receipt of an application/myETF Benefits request or the event date, whichever is later.	When the employer share of the premium contribution decreases by at least 5% and the employee share increases, this is considered a significant increase in the employee premium contribution. Coverage end date for a cancelation request is always the end of a month.
			Retroactive cancelations are not allowed.
Pre-Tax Employee (and all dependents, if applicable) Became Eligible for and Enrolled in Other Group Coverage	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted within 30 days of the date the other coverage becomes effective.	End of the month following receipt of an application/myETF Benefits request or the event date, whichever is later.	Documentation is required: proof of enrollment in other group insurance that displays the date coverage began such as a copy of an insurance ID card or enrollment acknowledgment which shows the effective date of coverage. Coverage end date for a cancelation
			request is always the end of a month. Retroactive cancellation are not
Pre-Tax Annual Open Enrollment Period	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted during the open enrollment Period.	Coverage end date is December 31.	Based on plan language (contract), coverage can be canceled at the end of a calendar year regardless if employee premiums are deducted pre-tax or post-tax.

Event	Eligibility Requirements	Coverage End Dates	Comments
Premiums Deducted Post Tax	Health Insurance Application or myETF Benefits request must be submitted.	Coverage end date is the end of the month following the application received date or the myETF Benefits request date, whichever is later. If the application received date or the myETF Benefits request date is the last day of a month, coverage ends on the receipt/request date.	An application can be submitted requesting a future cancelation date other than the end of the month following receipt of the application. Coverage can be canceled mid-year. Coverage end date for a cancelation request is always the end of a month. Retroactive cancelations are not allowed.

Chapter 10 – COBRA, Continuation and Conversion

1001 Overview of COBRA, Continuation and Conversion

- 1002 Persons Eligible for Continuation (Qualified Beneficiaries)
- 1003 Employee Responsibilities
- 1004 Qualified Beneficiary Responsibilities
- 1005 Employer Responsibilities
- 1006 Notice Requirement Illustration Chart
- 1007 Continuation Coverage Information

1001 Overview of COBRA, Continuation and Conversion

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), insured participants and their eligible dependents covered under the Wisconsin Public Employers Group Health Insurance Program have options available to them for the continuation or conversion of health insurance coverage in the event eligibility for group coverage ends. COBRA requires that the WPE Group Health Insurance Program offer subscribers (employees/ members) and their covered dependents (qualified beneficiaries) temporary extension of identical coverage at the group rate for a maximum of 18 months (36 months under certain circumstances) following specific events, referred to as "qualifying life events" (refer to subchapter 1002). The following provides an overview of Continuation and Conversion.

1001 A) Continuation:

Wisconsin statutes (Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (3-4), § 632.897) incorporate and extend the federal COBRA benefit noted above. Under this subsection, authority is given to the BOARD to reinforce and broaden continuation rights under certain circumstances.

Note: Where Federal (COBRA) and State (continuation) laws differ, the law most favorable to the participant will apply. When used in this Chapter, "COBRA continuation" refers to the State or Federal legislation resulting in the most favorable outcome to the participant, unless otherwise specified.

Note: One commonly encountered distinction between federal and state law occurs in latereported divorce. Under federal law, divorcees are entitled to 36 months of COBRA following the divorce event. (For example, a divorce reported on month 34 after the event would only leave the ex-spouse with a balance of 2 months.) However, state law guarantees a minimum of 18 months' continuation regardless of event date. As a result, state law rules are followed and the ex-spouse would be entitled to continuation for months 34 through 51.

For example: If divorce is more than 36 months in the past, the ex-spouse must still be offered 18 months of continuation coverage.

1001 B) Conversion:

Conversion coverage is available to participants who have been covered under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program under terms negotiated with the health plan. Participants may elect to convert to a Marketplace or individual (non-group) coverage upon loss of eligibility for group coverage, i.e., when they reach the maximum length of continuation of group coverage or in lieu of continuation coverage. Participants electing conversion coverage do not need to provide evidence of insurability but must apply directly with the health plan through the process established by the health plan. The benefits and rates for conversion coverage are different than the benefits and rates for continuation coverage.

Such PARTICIPANT may also elect to convert to individual coverage or a Marketplace plan without underwriting if application is made directly to the HEALTH PLAN within 30 days after termination of group coverage as provided under Wis. Stat. §632.897. The PARTICIPANT shall be eligible to apply for the direct pay conversion contract then being issued provided coverage is continuous and the PREMIUMS then in effect for the conversion contract are paid without lapse.

1002 Persons Eligible for Continuation (Qualified Beneficiaries)

Under federal and state laws, when group health insurance coverage would otherwise end because of a life event known as a "qualifying life event," employees and their covered dependents become "qualified beneficiaries" and must be offered continuation coverage (refer to subchapter 1005 for employer responsibilities).

Qualified beneficiaries must be treated the same as "similarly situated active employees." That means qualified beneficiaries are entitled to the same benefits, choices, and services as active employees. For example, the employee's spouse may elect COBRA even if the employee does not. COBRA may be elected for only one, several, or all dependent children who are qualified beneficiaries. A parent may elect continuation coverage on behalf of any dependent children. The employee or the employee's spouse (if the spouse is a qualified beneficiary) can elect continuation coverage on behalf of all qualified beneficiaries.

1002 A) Insured employees must be offered continuation coverage in the event coverage is lost due to either of the following events:

- Termination of employment (for reasons other than gross misconduct), including retirement. The exception is when an employee retires and elects to take an immediate annuity <u>and</u> to continue health insurance. (Refer to Chapters 11, 12, and 13). COBRA should be offered to insured employees even if they terminate before 30 days of work have passed.
- 2) Completion of the maximum prepayment periods of 36 months while on a leave of absence or layoff. (Refer to Chapter 8).

1002 B) The spouse of an employee with family coverage in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program becomes a qualified beneficiary as a result of any of the following qualifying life events:

- Death of spouse (employee). Employers do not need to provide a *Continuation Conversion Notice* [ET-2311] as the survivor's coverage will automatically continue. (Refer to Chapter 14 on Employee Death.)
- 2) Divorce. Coverage as a dependent spouse continues until the later of:
 - a) The end of the month in which the employer provides notification of continuation rights (*Continuation - Conversion Notice* [ET-2311]). (Refer to subchapter 903.)

or

- b) The end of the month in which the divorce is entered/finalized.
- Spouse (employee) loses coverage for reasons listed above under section 1002 A.

1002 C) Each eligible dependent child of an employee with family coverage in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program becomes a qualified beneficiary as a result of any of the following qualifying life events:

- Death of parent/stepparent. Employers do not need to provide a *Continuation Conversion Notice* [ET-2311] as the survivor's coverage will automatically continue. (employee; refer to Chapter 14 on Employee Death).
- 2) Dependent eligibility status ceases under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program (Refer to the chart in subchapter 1006 for examples).
- 3) Parents become divorced resulting in loss of eligibility.
- 4) Parent (employee) loses coverage for reasons listed above in A.

1002 D) An eligible dependent of a minor dependent (grandchild) of an employee with family coverage in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program becomes a qualified beneficiary when losing eligibility as a result of the minor dependent (parent) turning age 18. Coverage for the dependent of a minor dependent terminates at the end of the month in which the dependent child turns 18.

1002 E) An eligible disabled dependent, over age 26, of an employee with family coverage in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program becomes a qualified beneficiary upon loss of disabled status. Coverage terminates at the end of the month in which it is determined the disabled status ceases.

1002 F) If an employee, within the initial 18 months of COBRA coverage, is granted a SSA disability, they may be eligible for an extension of COBRA for up to 29 months. The employee must provide ETF with a copy of the SSA letter that states they have been found to be disabled, within 60 days of the date of the letter.

1002 G) In the event an employee is hired, WRS eligible, and elected insurance coverage that is in force and the employee terminates before completion of 30 days of service the insurance remains in force and the employee **must** be offered COBRA. Coverage as an

active employee will end as of the end of the month of termination.

Note: When a voluntary change in coverage from a family plan to a single plan is done in anticipation of a divorce, the spouse and dependent children are eligible for continuation coverage when the divorce is final. The effective date for continuation coverage in this case is the date of the entry of the judgment of divorce.

This is usually when the judge signs the divorce papers and the Clerk of Courts datestamps them. In all other cases, voluntary cancellation does not create a continuation enrollment opportunity.

1003 Employee Responsibilities

Employees (refer to subchapter 1002) are responsible for informing the employer of a qualifying life event in which a dependent loses eligibility for coverage under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program. Qualified beneficiaries should notify ETF of these changes.

Application must be received by ETF postmarked within 60 days of the date the participant is notified by the employer of the right to continue or 60 days from the date coverage ceases, whichever is later. The HEALTH PLAN shall bill the continuing participant directly for required PREMIUMS. COBRA continuation coverage ends when coverage is canceled, premiums are not paid when due, or coverage is terminated as permitted by state or federal law. Under Federal COBRA law, if the employer is not notified within 60 days of the:

- 1) event that caused the loss of coverage, or
- 2) end of the period of coverage, whichever is later, the right to continuation coverage is lost. Under state continuation law, separate requirements may allow notification after the 60-day period in limited divorce circumstances.

In the event of a divorce, if an employee does not notify their employer of their divorce, coverage for the ex-spouse and any stepchildren continues if the family premium continues to be paid. The ex-spouse must then be given the right to continue coverage even if notice is given beyond 60 days following the divorce.

Should the employee fail to advise the employer of divorce within 60 days of the event, the employer must provide notice to the ex-spouse and stepchildren that they are ineligible to continue coverage independently as a qualified beneficiary of the employee as soon as possible. Coverage terminates the end of the month in which the employer provides the notice of the right to continue coverage (*Continuation - Conversion Notice* (ET-2311) to the ex-spouse and any stepchildren or children of minor stepchildren. In this situation, employers must check with ETF on the length of continuation coverage that is available.

Note: The ex-spouse is eligible to continue coverage under a single contract or a family contract with eligible dependents. The stepchildren or children of minor stepchildren are not eligible to continue coverage under a single contract of their own because notice of the divorce was not given to the employer within 60 days of the divorce. If the stepchildren meet the criteria of being an eligible dependent and the exspouse applies for family coverage as a continuant, the stepchildren can be included

as covered dependents on the ex-spouse's family contract.

CONTINUANTS may not add (to their family coverage or change from single to family) persons who were not originally insured when group health insurance ended, unless a child was born or adopted (or placed for adoption) while the employee is continuing group coverage. A CONTINUANT with single coverage must elect family coverage within 60 days of the birth or adoption.

COBRA coverage ends for all qualified beneficiaries when the maximum COBRA duration has been met.

Note: If a CONTINUANT is enrolled in family coverage and gets married, the new spouse is not eligible to be added to the family contract.

1004 Qualified Beneficiary Responsibilities

When electing continuation or conversion coverage, qualified beneficiaries are responsible for the following:

- Submitting the Continuation Conversion Notice (ET-2311) and the Health Insurance Application/Change Form ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) to ETF. Both forms (an employee need only submit a Continuation - Conversion Notice unless requesting a change in coverage) must be sent to ETF (that is, postmarked) no later than 60 days from the termination of their coverage or within 60 days of the date they were notified by their employer, whichever is later. If qualified beneficiaries do not elect continuation coverage within the 60-day period, they lose eligibility to enroll under continuation.
- 2) Paying premium to the health plan when billed by the health plan.
- Reporting any changes affecting coverage, for example, address change, birth or adoption. If continuation coverage is elected, changes must be reported to ETF; if conversion coverage is elected, changes must be reported to the health plan.
- 4) Subscribers and their insured dependents continuing coverage must enroll in Medicare Parts A and B when initially eligible. A copy of the Medicare card must be submitted to ETF. If a qualified beneficiary is eligible for Medicare:
 - a) prior to or on the effective date of COBRA coverage, they are eligible for Medicare reduced rates.
 - *b) after* COBRA coverage begins, COBRA coverage ends for the subscriber or dependent when they enroll in Medicare Parts A and B.
 - i) Qualified beneficiaries not eligible for Medicare remain eligible for COBRA coverage.
 - ii) If Part B becomes effective after the continuation begins, the continuation period ends at the end of the month prior to when Medicare Part B becomes effective.

1005 Employer Responsibilities

1005 A) Within five days of being notified of the "qualifying life event," the employer is responsible for notifying qualified beneficiaries of their right to continue group coverage or convert to individual coverage by providing them with the following documents:

- 1) Continuation Conversion Notice (ET-2311), with the employer sections completed.
- 2) Health Insurance Application/Change Form ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually). This form is needed to enroll in continuation or conversion. The employee does not need to complete the application if continuing the coverage already in effect. The employee must still complete and return the Continuation Conversion Notice. The employer should not complete any information on this form.

Note: A continuation notice must be provided within the five-day period even when it is determined the qualified beneficiary is not entitled to continuation coverage, for example, notice of the qualifying life event was not provided to the employer within the required time period (refer to subchapter 1006 for information on providing notice).

The employer must indicate on the continuation notice that the qualified beneficiary is not eligible for COBRA by marking the correct fields.

In the case of divorce, confirm the address of all qualifying beneficiaries.

1005 B) The employer is responsible for informing qualified beneficiaries of the following:

- If electing continuation coverage, the completed *Continuation Conversion Notice* and *Health Insurance Application* forms must be sent to ETF (i.e., postmarked) no later than 60 days after the date of the notice or 60 days after coverage ends, whichever is later.
- 2) If electing continuation coverage, the health plan will bill the continuant(s) directly.
- 3) If electing continuation coverage and the continuants are moving for more than three months, they are eligible to change to another health plan without restrictions, provided the application is received within 30 days after the move. The application must be returned to the employer if the change would be effective before the termination of coverage paid through the employer; otherwise, the application must be returned to ETF. If the qualified beneficiary lives in a county different from that of the subscriber, they are also eligible to change plans at the time they begin continuation coverage.
- 4) See section 603 for other reasons to change carriers.

Note: When entering a coverage end date in myETF Benefits for the employee's coverage or the end date for any specific dependent on the employee's contract through 'Remove Dependent', enter an end date that is the end of the month following the event. There is an exception to this when removing the subscriber's spouse due to divorce (refer to subchapter 903).

1006 Notice Requirement Illustration Chart

The following chart illustrates a sample timetable for providing notices related to continuation coverage for common scenarios:

Event	Occurs	Coverage Continues Until	Employee or Beneficiary Must Notify Employer By	Employer Must Provide Continuation Notice By	To Elect Continuation, Application Must Be Submitted To ETF By
Child or stepchild turns 26 and is not disabled.	3/15	3/31	N/A*	5 days after receipt of notice	The later of 60 days after coverage terminates or 60 days after employer issues <u>ET-2311.</u>
Dependent of Minor Dependent Eligibility Ends as Dependent turns 18	03/15	03/31	N/A*	5 days after receipt of notice	The later of 60 days after coverage terminates or 60 days after employer issues <u>ET-2311.</u>

*Employer must check for aging out dependents monthly. See Appendix.

Event	Occurs	Coverage Continues Until	Employee or Beneficiary Must Notify Employer By	Employer Must Provide Continuation Notice By	To Elect Continuation, Application Must Be Submitted To ETF By
Disability Status Terminates for >26 Year Old Dependent	03/15	03/31	05/31	5 days after receipt of disability status change letter	The later of 60 days after coverage terminates or 60 days after employer issues <u>ET-2311.</u>
Divorce Decree is Entered	03/15	End of the month in which continuatio n notice is given	05/31 But, if continuation notice is given late, check with ETF.	5 days after receipt of notice	The later of 60 days after coverage terminates or 60 days after employer issues <u>ET-2311.</u>

Employee Terminates Employment	03/15	03/31	N/A	5 days after receipt of notice	The later of 60 days after coverage terminates or 60 days after employer issues <u>ET-2311.</u>

1007 Continuation Coverage Information

The benefits and limitations of coverage under continuation are identical to those provided to active employees. Participants enrolled in continuation coverage (continuants) must select the health plan already in effect at the time of termination of active coverage unless another life event occurs at the same time. Should the qualified beneficiary not reside in the same county as the subscriber or be moving, the qualified beneficiary may elect a health plan in their county of residence when enrolling in continuation coverage, even if the subscribers' health plan is available in the qualified beneficiary's county. Continuants are allowed to change health plans during the annual open enrollment period or following a residential move.

Continuation coverage may be in effect for up to 18 months following termination of employment (36 for divorce, death and dependent loss of eligibility). However, continuation coverage may be terminated early for any of the following reasons:

- 1) The premium for continuation coverage is not paid when due.
- 2) The subscriber becomes covered under another group health plan; a subscriber who refuses health insurance offered by another employer will not be affected.
- 3) A member who was not eligible for Medicare when continuation began, becomes eligible for and enrolled Medicare.
- 4) A spouse is divorced from a covered employee and subsequently remarries and is covered through the new spouse's group health plan.
- 5) Qualified beneficiary voluntarily cancels continuation coverage.

If COBRA coverage is terminated early for any reason, it may not be reinstated. Voluntary termination of coverage is effective prospectively from the date notice is provided to ETF.

Continuants may elect to convert to individual coverage (conversion at non-group rates) upon reaching the maximum continuation coverage period. Continuants are responsible for knowing when group continuation coverage ends and must contact their health plan directly to make application for conversion coverage set forth in Wis. Stat. §632.897 and/or Marketplace plan as provided by the health plan.

Chapter 11 — Retirement or Disability

- 1101 Coverage Requirements to Continue
- 1102 Medicare Enrollment
- 1103 Premium Payment
- 1104 Completing Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage (ET-4814)

1101 Coverage – Requirements to Continue

Coverage under the Local Group Health Insurance Program may be continued when an employee receives a WRS retirement or disability benefit (upon termination of employment). This excludes Income Continuation Insurance (ICI). In addition, subscribers and their insured dependents who are continuing coverage must enroll in Medicare Parts A and B when first eligible. This is required by state statute, as the State Group Health Insurance Program is designed to integrate with, rather than duplicate, Medicare benefits. The group health insurance coverage will be converted to a plan that is integrated with Medicare effective on the first of the month in which the member is required to be enrolled in Medicare. The amount of the monthly premium will be reduced accordingly. Retrospective adjustments to premiums are limited to the shortest retroactive enrollment limit set by Medicare (90 days), in accordance with the WPE Group Health Insurance Program contract.

Note: Active employees (non-annuitants) reported on the monthly invoices are not required to enroll in Medicare when first eligible and do not receive the Medicare reduced premium rate in the event they do enroll in Medicare.

1101 A) Retirement Benefit

When an employee retires, the employer should leave their coverage active in myETF Benefits. ETF staff will end the contract when the Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage (ET-4814) is received stating that the subscriber wants to cancel coverage.

If the retiring employee does not wish to continue health insurance coverage after retirement and wants to cancel coverage, *ETF must receive that notification in writing with the member's signature or email with electronic signature PRIOR to their active employee coverage ending.* A *Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage* (<u>ET-4814</u>) must be submitted to ETF, signed by the employer, indicating whether the employee elects to cancel health coverage.

Group health insurance coverage will automatically be continued if the employee retires with an *immediate annuity* under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (38) and the EMPLOYER submits verification

of insured status. An immediate annuity is defined as a benefit that begins within 30 days after the employee terminates employment. This benefit can be a monthly benefit or a lump sum annuity.

A person who canceled coverage but is otherwise eligible for insurance and who is eligible and applies for an immediate annuity under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (38), may have their WPE group health insurance coverage reinstated even if, during any period preceding retirement:

- 1) insurance has not been in effect while no earnings were received, or
- 2) insurance has been continued under COBRA continuation through the WPE's health insurance program.

An application for health insurance must be received by ETF within 30 days after the date of ETF's notification of eligibility for health insurance. Coverage shall be effective the first day of the calendar month which occurs on or after the date the application for health insurance has been received.

1101 B) Disability Benefit

Coverage for an insured EMPLOYEE shall be continued if the EMPLOYEE:

- 1) Receives a disability annuity (disability retirement) under Wis. Stat. §40.63 and remains continuously covered under the group health insurance program or
- 2) Receives a duty disability benefit under Wis. Stat. §40.65 and remains continuously covered under the group.

Insured employees applying for a WRS disability retirement or duty disability benefit must pre-pay premiums through their employers until their disability benefit is approved by ETF, or else coverage will lapse.

Employees on an unpaid leave of absence immediately prior to termination, who are eligible for WRS disability retirement under Wis. Stat. § 40.63, or duty disability benefits under Wis. Stat. § 40.65, may have their coverage reinstated even if, during the period preceding the benefit approval:

- 1) no insurance was in effect while no earnings were received, or
- 2) insurance has been continued under COBRA continuation through the Local health insurance program.

This provision does not apply if the employee files a *Group Health Insurance Application* to terminate health insurance coverage.

Once the WRS disability retirement or duty disability benefit is approved, the previously insured EMPLOYEE whose coverage lapsed or who was covered under COBRA will be offered a new opportunity to enroll. ETF will notify the employer. (Refer to Chapter 8.) ETF will also send the employee a letter and a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form Retirees & COBRA Continuants* (ET-2331) offering coverage under the Local Group Health Insurance Program. The application for health insurance must be received by ETF within 30 days after the date of ETF's notification of eligibility for health insurance. Coverage shall be effective the first day of the month on or after the date the application for health insurance has been received.

1102 Medicare Enrollment

Active employees and their insured dependents eligible for coverage under the Federal Medicare program may defer enrollment under Medicare Part A (hospital) and Part B (medical) until the employee terminates employment or health insurance coverage as an active employee ceases.

Annuitants and insured dependents who are eligible for coverage under the Federal Medicare program must enroll in Parts A and B when first eligible due to age or disability per Wis. Stats. § 40.51(7) and 40.52(2). Annuitants and insured dependents failing to enroll in Medicare will be held responsible for the portion of claims that Medicare would have covered, had they been enrolled in Medicare.

A *Medicare Eligibility Statement* (ET-4307) is used to inform ETF of the Medicare effective dates. ETF will mail the Medicare Eligibility Statement to the retiree for completion. A sample of the Medicare Eligibility Statement appears at the end of this subchapter. Please provide ETF with a copy of the retiree's Medicare card, when available.

1103 Premium Payment

Annuitant premium payments are made through one of the following methods:

1103 A) Employer Paid Annuitant - Premiums are paid to ETF by the employer when the employer pays any portion of the premium for the annuitant.

1103 B) Annuity Deduction - Premiums are paid from a monthly retirement or disability retirement benefit annuity Wis. Stat. §40.63 if the annuity is sufficient to cover the entire premium.

1103 C) Direct Pay - When the annuity is not sufficient to cover the entire premium or the member only receives duty disability or Long-Term Disability Insurance (LTDI) benefits, the health plan will directly bill the annuitant, and the annuitant will pay premiums directly to the health plan.

Note: ETF may authorize PREMIUM payments to be made directly to the HEALTH PLAN where circumstances require such without member notification. Failure to make required PREMIUM payments by the due dates established by the HEALTH PLAN and approved by ETF shall cause the health care coverage to be canceled.

1103 D) Group Life Insurance Conversion - This program, governed by Wis. Stat. § 40.72 (4r) and Wis. Admin. Code ETF 60.60, allows eligible employees to convert their group life insurance to pay health insurance premiums. For more information, refer to the *Converting Your Group Life Insurance to Pay Health or Long-Term Care Insurance Premiums* brochure (ET-2325).

1104 Completing Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage

A Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage (ET-4814) must be submitted to ETF for each employee, even when the employer is paying all or part of an annuitant's monthly health premium. The form is also required for a surviving spouse/dependent of a deceased insured employee or employer-paid annuitant.

To complete this form, the employer fills out Part A of the form. The employee or survivor then completes Part B of the form and submits to ETF.

If the employer has paid the annuitant's premium (see 1103 A), but will no longer do so, Part C will need to be completed as well. The employer should fill out Part C on the original ET-4814 submitted to ETF. Contact ETF if a copy of the original in needed. Submit the completed ET-4814 to ETF at least two months prior to premium contributions ending.

It is the responsibility of the annuitant to submit a written request to ETF if they wish to cancel health insurance coverage when the employer contribution ends.

Chapter 12 — Rehired Annuitants

1201 <u>Eligibility</u> 1202 <u>Coverage</u> 1203 <u>Disability Annuitants</u>

1201 Eligibility

A Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) annuitant's return to **non-eligible WRS** employment does not affect their WRS annuity or ETF administered annuitant health insurance benefits. Eligibility, under this Chapter, means the annuitant has met the requirements of a minimum break-in-service, as explained in Chapter 15 of the *WRS Administration Manual* (ET-1127), and returns to an **eligible WRS** position, either as an employee or an independent contractor.

Note: A WRS annuitant returning to their former employer, *without meeting the required minimum break-in-service*, would be considered returning to a WRS eligible position regardless of the number of hours or duration of employment; therefore, their WRS annuity and ETF administered annuitant insurance benefits would be void.

Under the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 40.26 (1), a WRS annuitant returning to WRS eligible employment may elect to terminate the annuity and return to active WRS participation or will be required to return to active WRS participation and have their WRS annuity suspended, depending on the WRS annuitant's final WRS termination date. (Refer to Chapter 15 of the *WRS Administration Manual.*) In both scenarios, the WRS annuitant must complete a *Rehired Annuitant Form* (ET-2319).

Annuitants returning to active WRS participation are immediately eligible to apply for any ETF administered insurance program the employer participates in and their annuity and annuitant benefits are suspended under the following conditions:

- If their last termination date was *prior to July 2, 2013* and if the annuitant elects to participate in the WRS, the annuity is suspended effective the first of the month following ETF's receipt of the *Rehired Annuitant Form.* If the annuitant does not elect WRS participation, their WRS annuitant status continues uninterrupted.
- 2) If their last termination date was **on or after July 2, 2013**, the annuity is suspended effective the first of the month following their rehire date.
- If the minimum break in service has not been met, the annuity is invalid and considered a benefit paid in error; the annuitant would be re-enrolled in the WRS with no break.

The annuitant remains enrolled in the WRS until they again retire and reapply for an

annuity and annuitant benefits they are eligible for as a result of their most recent position worked.

Note: WRS annuitants returning to WRS eligible employment as independent contractors will have their WRS annuity suspended effective the first of the month following their hire date, but will not be WRS eligible for their active employment, nor will they be eligible for active ETF-administered insurances through their employer.

A rehired annuitant returning to active WRS participation is only eligible for health insurance coverage through the active employer. There is no option to continue the group health insurance coverage they held as a WRS annuitant.

Regardless of whether an employer participates in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program or not, an annuitant returning to active WRS coverage is no longer eligible for annuitant health coverage while employed as a rehired annuitant.

An annuitant rehired by a WRS participating employer not offering health insurance to its employees will lose group health insurance coverage as an annuitant even after they retire again.

Eligibility for annuitant health coverage under the WPE Group Health Insurance Program is not retained unless a rehired annuitant does not elect to return to active WRS participation or the position is not expected to require two-thirds of full-time hours (880 hours for teachers and school district educational support personnel; 1,200 hours for all others) and last at least one year, i.e., their WRS annuity is not suspended due to returning to work.

1202 Coverage

Upon receipt of the *Rehired Annuitant Form* (<u>ET-2319</u>), ETF will determine both the WRS participation begin date and the WRS annuity suspension date; notification will be sent to both the annuitant and employer. For an employee who was insured as an annuitant, WPE health insurance coverage, if any, becomes effective the day after their coverage as an annuitant lapses.

Note: WRS annuitants returning to WRS eligible employment as an independent contractor will have both their WRS annuity and annuitant health insurance coverage suspended, but are not eligible for WRS coverage for their work as independent contractors, nor are they eligible for active ETF-administered health insurance coverage.

As premiums paid through the annuity are deducted one month in advance, insurance is paid for one month beyond the annuity suspension date. ETF will assist the employer in determining the date the rehired annuitant should be added to active coverage. A *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually), or online enrollment through myETF, electing coverage must be received by the employer within 30 days following the WRS participation begin date. When the employee retires again, refer to Chapter 12 for instructions on continuation of health insurance coverage, as the former annuitant is now considered an active

employee.

A rehired annuitant electing to return, or statutorily required to return, to active WRS participation, but not electing to enroll in health insurance through the active employer ceases to be eligible for annuitant health coverage.

1203 Disability Annuitants

Participants Under Normal Retirement Age

A WRS participant who is receiving a disability retirement benefit under Wis. Stat. §40.63 and who has not reached normal retirement age cannot actively participate in the WRS until they are no longer eligible for the disability annuity (i.e. the participant is medically certified as no longer disabled). However, if the participant is re-employed, their disability annuity will be suspended if they earn more than a set "earnings limit" during a calendar year. Eligibility for annuitant health and/or life insurance coverage continues during the period of annuity suspension.

A disability annuity will be terminated if it is determined that the re-employed individual has recovered from their disability and can be gainfully employed. Following termination of the disability annuity, annuitant health insurance coverage ceases and, if in a WRS eligible position, the employee is immediately eligible for health insurance offered by their employer.

ETF notifies both the employee and the employer of the WRS coverage begin date, defined as the first of the month after the disability termination date. Employers are notified of their obligation to provide the employee with a Health Insurance Application/Change ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) form.

ETF will coordinate between ending annuitant coverage and beginning active coverage if the individual elects coverage. New applications must be filed with the employer within 30 days after the date the employee resumes active status under WRS.

Participants Over Normal Retirement Age

A WRS participant who is receiving a disability retirement benefit under Wis. Stat. 40.63 and who is over their normal retirement age will have their disability annuity suspended if they are re-employed in a WRS eligible position. They must complete a *Rehired Annuitant Form* (ET-2319). See 1101 and 1102 for more information about the process.

Chapter 13 - Medicare

1301 Overview of Medicare

1301 A) Employer responsibility:

When an employee is planning to retire and is age 64 and 9 months or older, the employer should inform the employee to begin contacting Medicare to enroll in Medicare Part B three months before the employee retires.

Note: Employees age 65 and older are automatically enrolled in Medicare Part A coverage when they sign up for their social security benefit.

1301 B) myETF Benefits:

On the covered individual screen, you and your employees may see whether or not ETF has Medicare eligibility information for them and their dependents (see below). For active employees, ETF collects this information for coordination of benefits with Medicare. Please ask employees older than age 65 to provide the information.

The employer or employee can enter the information into myETF Benefits. Please have the employee provide a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually).

Medicare eligibility information may also be provided to ETF by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) through Voluntary Data Sharing Agreement (VDSA) between ETF and CMS, Navitus, or the health plan. If your employees have concerns about the accuracy of the data, first carefully verify all fields with them, including expiration dates, then contact ETF.

Medicare Eligibility Reason:	Medicare A Effective Date:	Medicare B Effective Date:
ealth Insurance Claim Number:	Medicare A Expiration Date:	Medicare B Expiration Date:
litional Medicare Info: Medicare C Effective Date:	Medicare D Effective Date:	ESRD Start Date:
litional Medicare Info: Medicare C Effective Date: Medicare C Expiration Date:	Medicare D Effective Date: Medicare D Expiration Date:	ESRD Start Date: ESRD End Date:

1301 C) Premium Rates:

 Active employees (non-annuitants) and their dependents are not required to enroll in Medicare Part B when first eligible and do not receive the Medicare reduced premium rate in the event they do enroll in Medicare. The coverage types of Medicare Single, Medicare Family - Some and Medicare Family - All are not listed for active employees because they are not eligible for the Medicare reduced rates, as the WPE Group Health Insurance Program pays primary on claims for these employees.

2) Each insured ANNUITANT, their DEPENDENTS or surviving DEPENDENTS, who become insured under federal plans for hospital and medical care (Medicare) may continue to be insured, but at reduced PREMIUM rates as specified by the BOARD. The employer can subsidize different amounts for different classes of retirees, provided such classes are reasonable and based on objective business criteria, such as years of service, date of retirement, business location, job category, and nature of compensations (e.g. salaried versus hourly). The employer cannot vary the premium subsidy for retirees within a given class of retirees.

The reduction in PREMIUM shall be effective on the first day of the calendar month, which begins on or after the date the PARTICIPANT is eligible for the Medicare hospital and medical care benefits (Parts A and B) as the primary payor and coverage is provided under an annuitant group number, or under an employer group number in the case of an employer paid annuitant. See also 1301 F.

1301 D) Employees age 65 and older may be automatically enrolled in Medicare Part A coverage. This can happen when an employee signs up to receive social security benefits. Enrollment under the federal plans for hospital and medical care for the aged (Medicare) by SUBSCRIBERS and their DEPENDENTS who are eligible for those programs is waived if the SUBSCRIBER remains covered as an active EMPLOYEE of the participating EMPLOYER. The reduction in PREMIUM is available only when the coverage is provided under an ANNUITANT group number.

Enrollment in Medicare Part B is required for the EMPLOYEE or DEPENDENTS at the first Medicare enrollment period after active employment ceases. If an ANNUITANT, or an ANNUITANT'S spouse is covered under an active employee's group health insurance policy with another employer and that policy is the primary payor, the ANNUITANT or the ANNUITANT'S spouse covered under that policy may also defer enrollment in Medicare Part B (to the extent allowed by federal law) under this provision and shall pay the Medicare reduced PREMIUM for coverage under this program.

If an active EMPLOYEE over the age of 65 defers enrollment, they have a special enrollment period for Medicare Part B that starts when their employment ends. The Social Security Administration (SSA) may ask for verification of their employment and health insurance coverage. SSA will provide form #L564 to the EMPLOYEE and it is the EMPLOYER's responsibility to complete the form.

See also 1102 for information about deferring Medicare Enrollment.

1301 E) Medicare due to disability:

If you have an employee who is eligible for Medicare due to disability, such as End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD), we recommend they speak with their local Social Security Administration office or call 1-800-772-1213. They should discuss their enrollment options and any potential late enrollment penalties. Medicare reduced rates are only available for retirees.

1301 F) Annuitants:

1) Annuitants and their insured dependents eligible for coverage under Medicare must enroll and remain enrolled in Parts A and B when first eligible due to age or disability per Wis. Stat. § § 40.51(7) and 40.52 (2). Annuitants and their insured dependents failing to be enrolled in Medicare will be held responsible for the portion of claims that Medicare would have covered, had they been enrolled in Medicare, in accordance with Uniform Benefits IV., A., 11., b. However, retrospective adjustments to PREMIUM or claims for coverage not validly in force shall be limited to the shortest retroactive enrollment limit set by Medicare for either medical or prescription drug claims, not to exceed 90 days. They must enroll in Medicare Part B at the next available opportunity.

In the event that a PARTICIPANT is enrolled in regular coverage, ETF will direct the HEALTH PLAN to refund any PREMIUM paid in excess of the Medicare reduced PREMIUM for any months for which BENEFITS are reduced in accordance with Uniform Benefits IV., A., 11., b. In such cases, the HEALTH PLAN will make claims adjustments prospectively. However, PREMIUM refunds for retroactive enrollment on a Medicare reduced contract will correspond with the retroactive enrollment limits and requirements established by Medicare for medical prescription drug coverage. This may limit the amount of PREMIUM refund for the SUBSCRIBER.

- 2) Enrollment under the federal plans for hospital care (Medicare Part A) by EMPLOYEES, ANNUITANTS and their DEPENDENTS who are eligible for those programs is waived if the insured EMPLOYEE, ANNUITANT or DEPENDENT is required to pay a premium to enroll in the hospital portion of Medicare (Part A). However, if Part A is not elected, the reduced PREMIUM rate is not available.
- 3) If a Medicare coordinated family PREMIUM category has been established for a family, and one or more family members enrolled in both parts of Medicare dies, the family PREMIUM category in effect shall not change solely as a result of the death.

A *Medicare Eligibility Statement* (ET-4307) and a copy of the Medicare card is used to inform ETF of the Medicare effective dates. ETF will mail the *Medicare Eligibility Statement* to the retiree for completion. Please provide ETF with a copy of the retiree's Medicare card, when available. A copy of the *Medicare Eligibility Statement* is available in Appendix A.

4) U.S. residents, retired employees and their spouses and/or dependents participating in the WPE Group Health Insurance Program who are Medicare enrolled, will be automatically enrolled in the Medicare Pharmacy Part D plan, which is offered by Navitus Health Solutions and underwritten by Dean Health Insurance Inc., a federally qualified Medicare contracting prescription drug plan.

The prescription drug coverage under this program is Medicare Part D coverage. In addition, supplemental "Wrap" coverage, which pays secondary to the Medicare Part D plan, is also provided. A retiree's monthly health insurance premium includes a portion that applies to this program's coverage. Retirees may choose to enroll in another Medicare Part D plan, but it is not recommended or required. Retirees who choose to enroll in another Medicare Part D plan will be dis-enrolled from ETF's

Medicare Pharamcy Part D plan. However, they will still maintain the supplemental "Wrap" coverage, which will be secondary to the other Medicare Part D plan. There is no partial premium refund for enrolling in another Medicare Part D plan.

1301 G) Medicare Data Match:

The Medicare Secondary Payer (MSP) provisions of the Social Security Act state that Medicare may seek to recover a mistaken primary payment from "any entity which is required or responsible" to pay for medical services under a primary plan. The Medicare Data Match Project is a federal program administered by Coordination of Benefits & Recovery (COB&R), that requires employers and health plan HEALTH PLANs (HEALTH PLANs) to provide information about specific current or former employees covered under the employer's health insurance program.

ETF has established a Voluntary Data Sharing Agreement (VDSA) with Medicare that transfers Medicare information on insured members multiple times a year. The VDSA has eliminated the need for most Medicare Data Match activities.

If Medicare paid a claim(s) as the primary carrier, when in fact, the employer's group health plan was the primary carrier, the HEALTH PLAN is responsible for reimbursing Medicare for the claim(s) and COB&R will contact the HEALTH PLAN and employer. If these inquiries are not handled timely, employers may receive collection notices issued by the Department of Treasury (Treasury) or an entity at the direction of the Treasury for repayment of claims.

Employers may need to submit information to COB&R or another entity regarding the employment status of the employee or former employee. The HEALTH PLAN is responsible for resolving discrepancies in claims payments for all Medicare Data Match inquiries. In certain situations, HEALTH PLANs may inform COB&R or another entity that they are not responsible for payment under the terms of their contract. Occasionally the employer or HEALTH PLAN may not have been specific enough in their explanation, resulting in Medicare or another entity pursuing the employer for repayment of a benefit paid. You should receive documentation of any HEALTH PLAN's response to Medicare.

ETF strongly recommends keeping full documentation of any correspondence with COB&R or another entity regarding Medicare Data Match requests. It is the employer's responsibility to keep complete records, including copies of the HEALTH PLAN's response to Medicare.

Medicare does have the right under federal law to collect the money paid in error from the employer. However, it is our view that the employer should not have to pay the amount owed if the matter is properly referred to and handled by the appropriate HEALTH PLAN. Reasons the employer should not have to pay include:

- 1) The claim has already been paid
- 2) The claim is the responsibility of the HEALTH PLAN
- 3) Medicare is the primary payer

If you receive a letter from a Medicare intermediary or a collection agency on behalf of the Treasury, indicating that money is due and/or that money will be taken from your agency's federal funding, please follow these steps:

1) Verify that the employee was identified to COB&R or other entity through a data match request and review your records concerning each individual to make sure that

you have all the documentation and copies of the documentation from the HEALTH PLAN. *HEALTH PLANs are to respond to COB&R or other entity following the federal procedures.*

- 2) Contact the HEALTH PLAN's representative to reach their current Coordination of Benefits (COB) person. Make sure that COB person has a copy of the documents and they are working on this with Treasury as a priority. Follow up with the HEALTH PLAN if the matter is not resolved in a timely manner.
- 3) Contact your legal counsel for assistance.
- 4) You may need to prepare a letter to the requestor. Talk about this with the HEALTH PLAN's COB person. You may use the attached Sample Letter.

Sample Letter

I am writing in regard to Debt Identification Number _____, which is addressed in the enclosed copy of your letter, dated ______.

I challenge the assertion that the (*Employer Name*) owes Medicare \$. It is my belief that all claims are payable, or have been paid, by (*HEALTH PLAN's name*), the health plan with whom (*employee's name*) had health insurance coverage, or, the claims are not covered as a primary benefit under the State of Wisconsin group health plan.

(*Name of individual and Health Plan*), is processing all appropriate claims. You may contact (*him/her*) at: (*Health Plan Contact Name Plan Name Plan Address*)

(*Name of Plan Contact*)'s phone number is (*plan contact's phone number*). If you have any questions, please contact (*Plan contact's name*); otherwise, she/he will respond, as soon as is practicable, to specific requirements in your (*date*) letter.

Sincerely,

Enclosure

cc: (*Plan Contact Name/Plan*) Arlene Larson, ETF

Chapter 14 — Employee Death

1401 <u>How to Report an Employee Death</u>
1402 <u>Surviving Spouse and Dependents</u>
1403 <u>Surviving Spouse who is also an Employee Eligible for Coverage</u>

1401 Report an Employee Death to ETF Immediately

In the event that an employee dies, please contact the Department of Employee Trust Funds immediately to report the death. Contact ETF via phone at 1-877-533-5020 or by visiting ETF's website at <u>etf.wi.gov</u> and using the 'Contact ETF' function.

The employer is responsible for entering the health insurance coverage end date in myETF Benefits. Please use the termination reason "Death of Subscriber" when entering this end date and enter the date of death as the event date. For single coverage, the end date is the end of the month of the employee's death (a payroll refund may be required). For family coverage, it is the end of the month through which premiums have been paid (no payroll refund will be required).

Employers must pay health insurance premiums for insured, eligible survivors of a law enforcement officer, as defined in Wis. Stat. 66.0137 (1) (am), who dies in the line of duty, per 2019 Wisconsin Act 19. If such an employee dies, contact ETF for assistance.

1402 Surviving Spouse and Dependents

1402 A) In the event an employee or annuitant with family health coverage dies, the surviving spouse and/or eligible dependents will continue coverage as required by Wis. Adm. Code § ETF 40.01, except as provided for in 1402 D. Coverage shall be effective on the first day of the calendar month following the date of death of the insured ANNUITANT. The surviving spouse may continue coverage indefinitely; dependent children (as defined in 402) may continue coverage as long as they remain eligible under the program.

1402 B) Employers must submit a *Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage* (ET-4814) to ETF before processing the continuation of health insurance for eligible survivors. There will be no required employer contribution towards the monthly premium, although the employer has the option of offering to cover the survivor as a local paid annuitant if they would have done so for the employee or were doing so for the annuitant, except as provided for in 1402 D.

1402 C) If the surviving spouse and dependents **do not** wish to continue coverage, ETF must receive a signed written request or the *Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage* (ET-4814), indicating they do not want coverage, can be submitted. Should the surviving spouse (or annuitant) and dependent(s) not elect to continue coverage, coverage will end the last day of the month for which premiums have been paid.

Upon notification of the death of an employee or annuitant who has family coverage, ETF will send the surviving spouse and dependents information about continuation rights. Premiums are due no later than the first of the month following the last month through which the decedent's premiums are paid. Premiums will be deducted from any WRS annuity the dependent may be receiving or, if employer paid, the employer will indicate this on the *Verification of Health Insurance Coverage and Local Employer Paid Annuitant Transfer Report.* If there is no WRS annuity, or the annuity is insufficient to allow for the deduction of the premium, the survivor must pay the premium directly to the health plan.

Survivors may not add persons to the policy who were not covered at the time of death, unless:

- 1) the individual was previously insured under the contract of the deceased employee and regains eligibility or
- a child of the EMPLOYEE or ANNUITANT who was in the process of being adopted by the deceased EMPLOYEE or ANNUITANT prior to death and is subsequently adopted by the surviving spouse or
- 3) or is a child born within 9 months of the death of the employee or annuitant.

These DEPENDENTS will be eligible for coverage under the survivor's contract until such time that they are no longer eligible.

1402 D) In the event a law enforcement officer employee with family health coverage dies in the line of duty, the employer must continue to pay health insurance premiums for the surviving spouse and/or eligible dependents as required by 2019 Wisconsin Act 19. Contact ETF for assistance.

1403 Surviving Spouse who is also a State Employee Eligible for Coverage

When an employee with family coverage dies, and the surviving spouse is also an eligible employee, the insured surviving spouse has two options:

- 1) Enroll as an employee and receive the employer contribution share toward premium. This allows the surviving spouse/dependents the right to lifetime coverage even if the spouse does not meet the retirement eligibility requirements.
- 2) Enroll as the surviving spouse and retain coverage indefinitely as indicated in subchapter 1302. Premiums may be paid through the employer as local employer-paid, through a WRS annuity or directly by the surviving spouse to the health plan.

Chapter 15 — Invoicing

1501 <u>Viewing Your Invoice</u>
1502 <u>Reconciling Your Invoice</u>
1503 <u>Accepting and Paying Your Invoice - Automated Clearing House (ACH)</u>
1504 <u>Late Interest Charge</u>
1505 <u>Who to Contact for Assistance</u>

1501 Viewing Your Invoice

Reports and remittances from employers required in the administration of the group health insurance program shall be submitted to ETF no later than the 24th day of the calendar month for the current month's coverage. The remittance by the employer shall be the amount invoiced by ETF.

Each month, ETF invoices employers for coverage one month in advance based on all active health insurance contracts in the myETF Benefits system. myETF Benefits is the system of record for health insurance eligibility, premium invoicing to employers, premium payment to ETF by employers and premium payment to health plans and the program's pharmacy benefits manager (Navitus) by ETF. Employers view their monthly invoice in the myETF Benefits system. Access to the myETF Benefits System is through the On-Line Network for Employers (ONE).

CURRENT	PROCESS (2017)			
	Coverage Month	ETF Generates Employer Invoices	Premiums due from Employers to ETF	820 Files loaded to the ftp site for Health Plans	Premiums Due from ETF to Health Plans
Local Active	January 2017	December 1-24, 2016	December 27, 2016	December 27, 2016	January 3, 2017
Local Annuitants	January 2017	December 1-10, 2016	December 27, 2016	December 27, 2016	January 3, 2017

1501 A) Invoice Generation

During the evening on the first day of every month, the myETF Benefits system initially generates an invoice for health insurance premiums for all local employers. An email is sent to all authorized employer agents and insurance contacts to alert them that an invoice is available for their review. An example of such an email is below:

		Directly designed in Densery Density the la	ng 1814 - ANSE IN - Message (Plan	(let)	
Source X Conception To Assess	Magenta Est a Moniger ⊒ Trons transi ≪ form S Trade & Dente ♥ Cours New Get them	Mar Dents	engener in States States States States States	Q Zom	
Technique par no ETF Health Insurance Invoice Sys Health Insurance Invoice Ready for May, 2014 5: "Thesis, for 1	100557	r.state.wr.us>			
Ind ⁴⁴⁴⁴ PLEASE OR NOT RESERVED TO TRESERVAL. ⁴ Tour performany May XO24 leadth froumance insolo through the normal solidate process. An suddenlin For questions on how to correct the contracts show for questions an accepting and paying your insoler Thank you for using the Wiscowin ETF headth Insur Link to OW(she <u>Sety /Verforder</u> , up profine lead	re is more available. Proceeding on to m marke will be produced after we proce on an your invoice, please contact th r, please contact Contournet Service at rearce invoice System.	ns your transactions, and you will reve r Insurance Administration Burrea at (1	ve anienal prompting you to re	even and accept the new impice	n the invoice, please submit applications or terminations

The email address used is the one provided on the *Online Network for Employers Security Agreement* (ET-8928) when requesting access to the myETF Benefits system. The invoice charges premiums for the next calendar month on all health insurance contracts that will be active in that month as of the generation date. Any transactions entered after the invoice generation date will appear on the next invoice.

Note: Changes to an employee's or dependent's personal information, physician or other insurance information will not cause an adjustment to the invoice.

1501 B) Deadlines for Accepting Monthly Invoices

Once an invoice is generated by the myETF Benefits system, an authorized employer representative can accept that invoice at any time. This is done by accessing the myETF Benefits system and going to the *Health* drop-down and selecting *Premium, Employer Invoice*. If the invoice has not been accepted, on the 15th of every month the myETF Benefits system will send an email to the person authorized to accept the invoice to remind them that the employer invoice has not been accepted. An example of such an email is below.

RE MESA	4.4 -: 8		Institution of the state of the Automatic State (Control of the State St
ark- Delev	Any Rep Forest B More Al	Magenta Gallanage ⊡lans Brail √ 1mm Galleps & Deter. → Deats New Gallares	Character Charac
	ce Invoice Reminder for April 2	tem «noreply@etfmain 2014 - Anvets	-2008/CARAND-*
	DO NOT RESPOND TO THIS EMAIL		
	AR WALLER CAR IN LINES OF		
ou have not yet			you were warrent and pay your movice before the due date (2014-03-24). Adjustments to the innoise can still be made by submitting applications or terminate dion the due date (2014-03-24), and interest will be charged until your payment is movied.
ou have not ye wough the non	mail update process. 🖻 you do nor	take action, the invoke will be finalla	
ou have not yet wough the not of guestions or	mail spotste process. If you do nor r how to correct the contracts sho	take action, the invoke will be finalla	id on the due date (2014-293-24), and interest will be charged until your payment is interived. I insurance Administration Burnau et (608) 254-7900 (local Madison) or toll free 1-888-603-3952.
ou have not ye wough the non or guestions or or guestions ar	mail spotste process. If you do nor r how to correct the contracts sho	tale action, the invoke will be finally whon your invoke, please contact th o, please contact Custamer Service at	id on the due date (2014-293-24), and interest will be charged until your payment is interived. I insurance Administration Burnau et (608) 254-7900 (local Madison) or toll free 1-888-603-3952.

The latest date an employer must accept the invoice is the 24th of each month. If the employer invoice is not accepted by 5:45 p.m. on the 24th of each month, any unaccepted employer invoice will automatically be accepted by the myETF Benefits system. Refer to subchapter 1503 for more information on accepting and paying the monthly invoice and due dates.

1501 C) Viewing the Employer Monthly Invoice

To access the monthly employer invoice, authorized users log into the myETF Benefits system. Once logged in, the first screen displayed to the user will be the myEmployer Info screen.

 The user should then click on the '*Health*' tab. From the drop-down, move the mouse to the '*Premium*' button. Hover over the '*Premium*' button to display the '*Employer Invoice*' and '*Member Invoice*' buttons. Hover your mouse over '*Employer Invoice*' and click on that button. myETF Benefits will take the user to the next screen—*Employer E-mail Check*.



2) On this screen, the agent or authorized user can use this screen to view and update their individual email contact information by clicking on the *employer email address update* link. If the user is not updating their email contact information, click the 'Continue' button to move to the Health Insurance Invoice Summary screen.



3) The Health Insurance Invoice Summary screen provides the user with the ability to search for the invoice by coverage month and year. Users can review the current coverage month's invoice or previous invoices. This screen also provides employers with the invoice amount, invoice number, invoice date (last date the invoice generated or regenerated), accept date, accepted by, employee share field, initial payment late indicator, and interest amount. The employee share field is a field the employer will be required to complete once it is determined how much of the invoice amount is the employee share.

At the bottom of the Health Insurance Invoice Summary are the '*Invoice Detail*', '*Contract Activity*' and '*Accept*' buttons. The '*Invoice Detail*' and '*Contract Activity*' applications can be used in conjunction with the Premium Report to reconcile the invoice; both are discussed in subchapter 1402. The '*Accept*' button is used once the invoice has been reconciled and the employer is ready to accept the invoice and pay the invoice amount. Refer to subchapter 1503 for more information and instructions on accepting and paying your invoice.



1502 Reconciling Your Invoice

To ensure employers are accurately paying the premiums due for their employee's health insurance coverage, the invoice amount and invoice activity must be reconciled each month against the employer's payroll system. To reconcile the monthly invoice, employers have access to two reports, the 'Enrollment Report' and 'Premium Report'. In addition, employers have available to them the 'Invoice Detail' and 'Contract Activity' applications.

1502 A) Premium Report - Employer Premium Inquiry

Under Premium Report, the Employer Premium Inquiry application is the best application available in myETF Benefits for employer use in reconciling the monthly invoice. It provides ET-1144 Chapter 15 (REV 6/1/2022) Page **105** of **169** Back to Top
specific details on who an employer is paying for on an invoice for the coverage month being invoiced and any adjustments in previous months

for the current calendar year or previous calendar year. Access to the Employer Premium Inquiry application is gained under the '*Health*' tab.

 Upon logging in to myETF Benefits, hover over the *Health* tab. Adrop-down will appear with '*Inquiry*', '*Member Enrollment*', '*Premium*', and '*Termination of Coverage*' visible. Hover over *Inquiry* which will make available the options of *Enrollment Reports* and *Premium Reports* in a drop-down to the right. With your mouse, hover over *Premium Reports*. The '*Premium Inquiry*' tab will now be available. Hover over '*Premium Inquiry*' and click on that tab.

	Manufa and Manufa	teads tothers an	14/2	
Anne to deal	and have a second se	Topics Sec.	Description Record marcial advector	
Automatic art surgers	- Channel			
	April Carlant		Insurance Contact	
Renter	ADDRESS STATE	Name Higher	America Aurorate	
	Referenced Contact		Address https://doi.org	
_	anned states	*****	Mit is Advisible Bit His Bits Talls Helphan, an Istal And	
Totagilier		Agent Frank		
	DUITIN studies	tireda	te yene amateure allante subint a Designation of Agains'	

2) When the '*Premium Inquiry*' application opens, you will get the following screen. The user must set the search filters for coverage month and year, health plan and coverage type.

Retf		angi TF Benedits A	Contract of the second s	
	uar (a. (a.a.a)	Tradition former Tradition fo	Ent these times is readers the method is in reach disk up and by methy year. Inside team, and conserving type was year to not the region machiner to be sorther and	
		we with the year of the year o	a deser on tax against atax paysol system	

3) The following illustrates the results once the search filters are set and the user clicks '*Display*'. The results being displayed will provide the specific details of the employees for whom you are being billed or refunds are being generated on that coverage month's invoice by health plan and coverage type with the specific premium amount. A separate line will display for an adjustment that is refunding premiums to the employer for any month(s) in the current year or previous year and a separate line will display any adjustment that is charging premiums to the employer for any month(s) in the current year.

- 4) The user can click on '*Clear*' and set new filters from the drop-downs, then click '*Display*'. The user can also go directly to the drop-downs, select new filters, then click '*Display*' again without clearing the screen.
- 5) The 'Save As' button provides the user the ability to take the information being displayed and move it to an Excel spreadsheet. Using the Excel spreadsheet allows the user to sort however they wish and run it against their payroll system in their reconciliation effort.

otf					enefits Admin								
eg				Coployer Health In	munace Preaton legalry								
Antigoz utale anyNembers Health L	Dachtin	TWES OF	tas Besellts	Vaktivaanaa Bela	Log Off								
erielo anyficelosco fisedia L	e Diszlety	INFIS CO	Int Desellis	Varve sancer Prete	E Log CH								
k this dropdown to display up to 100 records per page.		Coverag Hos	(Number) or Group: pe Nootk Ma alth Plans - Al age Type: - Al	y • Year 201 L	FUNDS, DEPT OF +		- Click bas	e to export	mente to	Event		e this field ults by Me SSN or	mber ID
				Clear Display	Bow EIN Save As	•	COUR DEP	spreads		Excel :			
10 - entries											54	tarch CECCO	10
Prog Opt Surchg Code Cov Type	Empe Type ± SSN	Momber ID	Last Namo	First Name Cov E	Eff Date Cov Exp Date	Pres Cov Ex Date	p Prev Yr Adj Months e	Piev Yr Adj Premum	Cur Yr Adj Months o	Cur Yr Adj Premium		Gross Surg Amt	
dahing records formal		Grand Total					P	50.00	- 0	50.00	5289,626.00	\$3.00	5289 630
ing 6 to 6 of 6 entries (Blend from 221 sotal entr		Contra Tona						an an	- R	and see a	and the part of the	C. C. BROARD	nuruta
twee 30th Bage PE Horizon At 5015													
l li tz• di ⊨	FORMULAS DAT	a review view		performant organizers	ey 20100567 Labs Evinepatat	utup Magda] 1	langi					7	ere oue, t
8 ₩ ⁴ 2* ¹	- K K ==	A REVIEW VEV 중· 도마Wap 등 또 또 코benge	N Text	General -	ng 20149949 Labs gitterparts	mal	Ball Galoutation	Lood Eachte		Ren Doore	TR FIL	coue - A- Z Sur	
8 Li 12 di 14 Monte Instant Page Larout 15 cons Anix - L0	- K K ==	÷- ≣PWtop	N Text	General -	Conditional Remarkan Net	mal Khil	Bat	-2010/06/24			E Fil	coue - A- Z Sur	T 🔥
B B = ct IA HOME None PACE MY DATE MYOUT None Anix Monte N Monte N Monte For State For Monte For Monte For Monte For	$\cdot \mathbf{x} \mathbf{x} = =$ $\mathbf{a} \cdot \mathbf{A} \cdot \mathbf{a} = =$	 ⇒- EPWing ⇒ E E Venge Algement 	N Text e & Cester 1 to	Sereni - 5 - 5 + 13 J	Conditional Pormatian Reconditional Tables	mal 1014 114	Bat Calculation /41	-2010/06/24		han beee Git	E Fil	Chue - Av - Z Sur #* File	r & Faid & a * Select *
B L + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	$-\kappa \kappa = =$		N Text e & Center u D	Seneral - \$ -% * % # . Nankor = Coverage Type Coo	Conditional Formation Fee	mat ittel IV	Bad Calculation Att	834 Plan =	16 - HE/	ALTH S May ARD PL Cov Eff Da	ERVICE 2014 AN, Covies	S, DEP	M T OF
X cot Aria [10] M coty Aria [10] M constrainer 8 7 9 Gobort - Formati Famer For 13 - 1 X 4 A - - - -	$-\kappa \kappa = =$	 ⇒· =>Winp ⇒ = = =>Weige Algement C 	N Text e & Center u D	General – S – % s to di Nambar =	Conditional Formula A New Formulating Table	mat ittel IV	Bat Calculation H Health	834 Plan =	16 - HE/	ALTH S May ARD PL	ERVICE 2014 AN, Cov te Cov Exp	S, DEP	M T OF

6) In addition to the functionality of creating an Excel spreadsheet, employers have the ability to sort the data retrieved by each specific column without creating an Excel spreadsheet. This is accomplished by clicking on the arrow symbol (highlighted) just under each column name.



1502 B) Invoice Detail

Access to the Invoice Detail application is gained through the Health Insurance Invoice Summary screen. This is reached by clicking on Health, Premium, Employer Invoice as previously shown. Click on the '*Invoice Detail*' button to open the application.

v eu						-150	It's Insurance Inv	ts Admin		
J						-	in the draw of the			
off.wilgov							2			
nyEmaloyethini myWambara	Health	LIN	Litten Bity	MIRS	Other Besieling	Test Support	gell	Log Dit		
						Far Invoi	ce and Paym / EMPLOYEE T	RUST FUNDS. OF	Y PT CF	
					ince Contact is					
					erch by Coverage with	June 🗸		Year	2014 1	
						10	Summery for 3			
				in voice A in voice N in voice D Accepted Accepted	urshar ida ini		u 04			
				Employee	Shang		0.00			
				initial Per- Interest #	mant Lets? mount:		100			
						Ju	ne 2014 Premi	um Due: 0.00		
Click here to ac	cess the Im	voice Detail	Soreen	-	-	Invoice Detail	Contre	of Activity	Accept	

The information displayed is the total number of contracts being billed on the invoice and is broken down by health plan, employee type and coverage level. The application totals the contracts into one group total. This application does not provide specific employee information for whom the employer is being billed.

late		myETF Benefits Admin					
reij		Positi Wilkinson Incora listori	>				
ellender mysocial addresses intelli for South	n 1 300 Oter Secto Mancoore	les 0g0/	Number of contracts by	Premium	Total premiums for coverage type and number	Prior month adjustments by	Preinium total by carrier/
		Health insurance intoics for	Ame 2014 carrier/coverage lype	amount		carrier/coverage type.	coverag
Emailupe (Namiaer) Emailupe (Namia	ACCREDACY OF STATES (MACE			Inverse Samera	Contract Anturny		type
fragme the star jo option	. 992-(×201) · •• (
Server States of states of the Constant of States of Sta							199.57
NEAR PAR	SPECTOR OF LAND	Consequences	Enternio	Consultances Line L	Chreat Presses	Proc Marin Aspenieses	Table Press
	Reads Tiller Torgi		3		(41<71	3.00	1.574
5 BRCSTM	INTERPORT ROLL	2996.2	1	23.5		34	675
		Trail			4/5 4/	1.00	ers
	Distant Test Test 1				100.00	4.64	111
E BET BARRATE	EVYERALD TE RECEN	man P		447.00	er 13	1.07	-
e our average.	BALLING ALL REALLY	Tew			407 10	10	107
C 1007 30 HL219	NOT REPORT OF A COLOR	140.7	36	11414	Tenat	1.0	1001
		Tre		100.0	102740		* 22.4
	HEAD THE TONS				2, 122, 59	4.29	2,108
Dama Talat			3		4 322-48	1.0	- # 003
Dog A			4		4,92,45	100	+ 962
ngdayee kentualaan edin oonaana, daalaa ahaye nee				245	332		12
Indiviça						3.00	

***Note:** ERA Fee is not applicable to local employers and will not appear on this screen.

1502 C) Contract Activity

Access to the Contract Activity application is gained through the Health Insurance Invoice Summary screen. Click on the *'Contract Activity'* button to open the application.

eij	Health learnance Invoice Summary	
ngov Info myNembers Health Like Disability	Will 9 Other Denetities Text Support Help Log Off	
	Invoice and Payment Summary / EMACITE TRUST PURCE, DEPT OF	
	Insurance Contact s . Swarth by Coverage Venth: <u>Anne V</u> Year: [2014 V	
	Summary for June 2010	
Click here to access the Contract Activity	Inside Avount 0.10 Inside Number Inside Cala Accepte Dy:	
screen. This will display the adds, terms, and coverage level changes (as adds and terms)	Englogue Share 0.00 Initial Perspect Lote? Initials: Annual 0.10	
that occurred during the invoice period. This does NOT show all individuals who are on the employers invoice, only those with changes.	June 2014 Premium Due: 0.00	

This application has limited use in the reconciliation process. It does not identify for the employer all the employees included in the invoice amount. It only identifies which specific employee is being added to coverage or terminated/deleted from coverage and the retroactive premium adjustments being calculated. Activity is displayed by health plan and lists employee type, coverage type, the activity (ADD, TERM or DELETE), the date the activity was created, employee's Social Security number, employee's name, coverage effective date, coverage expiration date (if applicable), previous expiration date on a reinstatement, premium and adjustment for premium.

The adjustment indicates the amount being charged or refunded. There is a current year adjustment and previous year adjustment field that will indicate the number of months for which premiums are being charged or refunded. The '*Save As*' button provides the employer with the functionality to move this data to an Excel spreadsheet. From there, the data can be sorted however the employer wishes to in their reconciliation effort.

Diakita sete	Gener Bangelan	Activity for June, 201		Dice.	fairs to expect the		Trend
				arreader.			
Matual Beauty-meth	Voltageth 18	Carlo March Conceller	20		new root has use by	encional Bation	
VER TRUET FUNETA DEPT OF		A	Browing Barrenary	Western Detail	[[Reserved]		
		1					
Trem destroite	Autority Links	8010 3447-00	P.Bastiers	Passenet and	Capit officer Danse	-	Address
			(hate	Dene	in a second		
	Brats wired.	True Autority Mathematic		The property of the second sec	The second secon	Very Second Seco	The second secon

1502 D) Enrollment Reports – Enrollment Inquiry, Dependent Inquiry and Address Inquiry

Under Enrollment Reports, the "Enrollment Inquiry" application, "Dependent Inquiry" application and "Address Inquiry" application are available. The three enrollment reports are described in this chapter. The Enrollment Inquiry is very similar to the Premium Inquiry. This report will tell you specifically which employee has active coverage under the employer's group number on a specific coverage month. However, this application will not provide any information regarding previous months and previous year premium adjustments or current month premiums. The Premium Inquiry application is the best application available in myETF Benefits for employer use in reconciling the monthly invoice.

1503 Accepting and Paying Your Invoice

Automated Clearing House (ACH)

1503 A) Accepting the Invoice:

After viewing and reconciling the invoice, employers must accept the invoice:

- 1. Key in the Employee Share amount and then click the '*Accept*' button on the Invoice and Payment Summary screen.
- 2. On the next screen, review the invoice details and if everything is okay, click 'Confirm'. Employers will then receive an email acknowledging the acceptance of the invoice. Once an invoice has been accepted, no further changes can be made to it.
- 3. If an invoice has not been accepted by the due date, the system will automatically accept it on the employer's behalf that night. The employer will receive an email letting them know that the system has accepted the invoice and they need to submit a payment.
- 4. Accepting and confirming the invoice does not mean a payment has been initiated.

Note: To reduce timing related issues with acceptance of invoices, please do not accept invoices between the hours of 5:40pm and 8:15pm.

ETF may lock your invoice while making changes to it.

1503 B) Paying the Invoice:

ETF uses myETF Benefits as the system of record. The *invoice premium due* field is the amount owed to ETF. The invoice reflects what ETF will remit to the health plans on behalf of the employers.

Employers are set up to pay by Automated Clearing House (ACH).

Automated Clearing House (ACH):

For local employers, after confirming their invoice they will be automatically taken to the US Bank E-Payment Log In screen. They can Log In, Register, or Pay Without Registering.

Log In – User should select this option if they have already registered for an account. This is separate from ETF's Online Network for Employers (ONE) or myETF Benefits and uses a different User ID & Password.

Register – Simply follow the prompts to create an account. Registering allows users to save their contact and banking information. Registered users can also view their account information including prior and pending payments.

Pay Without Registering – This option allows a user to pay the invoice without having to log in to an account. The contact and banking information has to be keyed, but does not get saved for future use.

ABC Co.		Make life simple	Exi
	Welcome t	o the Electronic Payment System	
		er ID and Password and click Log In.	
	User ID	Forgot Your User ID?	
	Password	Eorgot Your Password2	
	Log In		
	Register		
	Pay Without Register	ing	
powered by			
		Oustomer Service Help Privacy Policy	Securi

Next will be the Make a Payment screen.

3C Co.	1.00	Make life simple	
Your last visit was Thu 10/03/2013 11:23	AM CDT	Make a Payment	My Account
Make a Payment			
My Payment			
Payment for Your Organization			
Amount Due	345.00		
Due Date	10/15/2013		
Account Number			
Payment Information			
Frequency	One Time 💌		
Payment Amount	\$45.00		
Payment Date	@ Pay now		
	C Pay on a future date		
Payment Method			
Saved Payment Methods	Select	Use a new payment acco	unt
Email Address	test.user@corp.com	1	
Continue Carcel			
Continue Cancel			

This will have 3 sections:

1. My Payment – This will show the Amount Due and Due Date

- 2. Payment Information This is where users will select their payment terms:
 - a. Frequency Select One Time.
 - b. Payment Date Select either Pay Now or Pay on a future date.
 - i. Selecting Pay on a future date allows the user to select the date the funds will be withdrawn. It can be any date in the future, but preferably on or before the due date.
 - c. If the user is not using a registered account, the user will get a Contact information Section to fill out.

First Name	Test	
Last Name	User	
Company	(Optional)	
Address 1	123 Str	eet
Address 2		
City	123 City	<i>.</i>
State	133 🔳	
Zip Code	12346	(Optional)
Phone Number	12312312	34
Email Address	test.user@	pcorp.com

- 3. Payment Method If a user is registered this will be the saved banking account.
 - a. If a user is paying without registering, the user will need to fill in the banking information.

1 A	Sample Check 1215 1215 Main St. 1215 Mytown, MO 12345 W/TO THE
Ĕ	123454780 1 000 1111111 * 001218 /
1	Bank Routing Bank Account Check Number Number Number
	Personal Check Business C
ank Routing Number	and the second se
NOUND CONTRACTOR OF	
Bank Routing Number Iank Account Number Bank Account Type	
ank Account Number	C Checking C Savings

Once all 3 sections are complete, click 'Continue'.

The Review Payment screen will appear. Verify that it's correct. If okay, user can click *'Continue'*.

Your last visit was Thu 09/19/2013 04:47 PM CDT	Make a Payment	My Account
Review Payment		
Please review the information below and select Confirm to process your paym to your payment.	ent. Select Back to return to the previous pa	e to make changes
Payment Details		
Description KR Corp Payment for Your Organization www.kroorp.com		
Payment Amount \$45.00		
Payment Date 09/19/2013		
Payment Due Date 09/30/2013		
Payment Method		
Account Nickname visa		
Payer Name Test User		
Card Number *1111		
Expiration Date Jul-2015		
Card Type Visa		
Confirmation Email test.user@corp.com		
Billing Address		
Address 11234 S. Main		
Address 2 Apt. 1234		
City 1234		
State - 1234		
Zip Code 12345		
Confirm Back		
bank		
D'ditk.	Customer Service Help Priv	acy Policy 🔒 Se

If successful, a printable Confirmation Page appears that will include a confirmation number. The user will also receive an email with the confirmation number and payment details.

Your last visit was The 09/19/2013 04:47 PM CDT	Make a Payment	My Account
Confirmation		
Thank you for your payment.		
Please keep a record of your Confirmation Number, or print this page for your records		
Confirmation Number KATABC000001513	13	
Payment Details		
Description KR Corp Payment for Your Organization www.krourp.com		
Payment Amount \$45.00		
Payment Date 09/19/2018		
Payment Due Date 09/30/2013		
Status PROCESSED		
Payment Method		
Account Nickname vias		
Payer Manne Tast User		
Cord Number "1111		
Card Type Vica		
Confirmation Email test.uscr@corp.com		
Billing Address		
Address 1 123 Street		
Address 2		
Caty 123 City		
State 123 State		
Zip Code 12345		
bank		
Contract (1997)	Justomer Service Held Priva	cy Policy 🔒 3

Upon successful completion, the payment will post to the employer's invoice at 11:00 a.m. on the payment date selected.

There is no direct link to the U.S. Bank E-Payment Service so if an employer exits before scheduling a payment they will need to log back into myETF Benefits. Instead of the '*Accept*' button, the employer will see a '*Pay*' button. Click '*Pay*' and then '*Confirm*' on the next screen. The '*Pay*' button is displayed until a payment has been posted to the invoice.

If a warning message displays stating that the invoice may have already been paid, employers should check their records. Here are four ways to check if payment has been previously made:

- 1. Check for print out of E-Payment Confirmation Page.
- 2. Check emails Employers would have received an email with the payment details and a confirmation number.
- 3. Call ETF using the phone number listed on the invoice Staff will be able to look up any scheduled payments.
- 4. Continue on to the US Bank E-Payment Service and Log In if they are a registered user.
 - a. Click on the '*My Account'* tab.

 Make a Payment
 My Account

 My Account
 My Profile

 My Profile
 Payment Methods
 Scheduled Payments
 Electronic Payment History

b. Go to **Scheduled Payments** – This will list any pending payments. It will remain here as pending until the payment date.

- i. If there is a pending payment, no further action is needed and the user can logout.
- ii. If there is no pending payment, the user should select the '*Make a Payment*' tab and complete the process to submit a payment.

1504 Late Interest Charge

Payment is due the 24th of every month, with exceptions being weekends and US Bank holidays. If a payment is received after the due date then a late payment interest charge will be applied to the employer's invoice based on the following calculation:

Interest Charge = Invoice Premium Due x Number of days late x 0.04%

The interest charge will be assessed after the payment has been submitted and should be paid as soon as possible. Employers paying by ACH will have to log in to myETF Benefits and select the invoice month and year that received the interest charge. There should be an outstanding amount due. Just click on '*Pay*' and it will take you through the normal ACH payment process via the US Bank E-Payment System.

Users have the ability to view other features in the 'My Account' tab.

1. My Profile – This is where a user's Contact Info and Log In Details are stored. Changes can be made here as needed.

ly Contact Information		
First Name	Test	
Last Name	User	
Company	(Optional)	
Address 1	123 Street	
Address 2	Apt. 123	
City	123 City	
State	123 🖃	
Zip Code	12345 (Optional)	
Phone Number	(123)123-1234	
Email Address	test.user@corp.com	
Login Details		
User ID	krtest1	
Password	Change my Password	
Security Question	What was the name of your childhood best friend?	2
Answer		
Security Question	What is your favorite sports team?	2
	Spartans	
Security Question	What is your mother's maiden name?	-
Answer	Lynn	

2. Payment Methods – This will list any saved banking accounts. If users need to update their banking information this is where they will need to go. They have the option to edit or delete an existing account and to add a new account by selecting Add a Payment Method.

My Account My Profile Paymer	t Int Methods	Schedyled Pa	merita	Bestronia	Payment History		
Saved Payment M	ethods						Add a Payment Method
Nickname	*	Method	\$	Туре	‡ Number	\$ Actions	
Test Visa		Credit		Visa	*1111	Edit Delete	

3. Electronic Payment History – This is where users can go to view past payments. Status will be marked as Processed. Data can be sorted by any of the columns and there is also a search filter.

My Account	thoda	1 Scheduled Pa	when	ty Hectr	onic Payment History			
Rectronic Payment His		1.62 - 423 - 221 2000						
how 25 2 entries	PLUT Y				Search Filter:			
Confirmation Number	t	Payment Date		Amount®	Payment Method	+	Status	8
		09/11/2013		\$45.00	*1111		PROCESSED	
		08/37/2013		\$45.00	*1113		PROCESSED	
		08/27/2011		\$60.20	*1111		PROCESSED	
		08/27/2013 08/19/2013		\$60.20	*1111		PROCESSED	

1505 Who to Contact for Assistance

For help accepting an invoice, paying an invoice, or logging into the US Bank E-Payment System please contact:

> Laura Vang: 1-608 261-0064 or <u>laura.vang@etf.wi.gov</u>. Rolanda Franklin: 1-608-266-0781 or <u>rolanda.franklin@etf.wi.gov</u>.

Chapter 16 — Terminating Employer Group Participation

- 1601 Duration of Participation Prior to Termination
- 1602 Partial Termination of Group not Permitted
- 1603 Employer Group Termination
- 1604 Disenrollment

1601 Duration of Participation Prior to Termination

Any EMPLOYER for whom the resolution to participate in the local group health insurance program resulted in coverage effective January 1, 1988 or after shall be required to remain in the program for a minimum of 12 months. Any EMPLOYER who files a resolution after December 20, 1990, and who offers a non-participating plan as required by 302 C) shall be required to remain in the program a minimum of three years. Any EMPLOYER who is assessed a surcharge as determined by the underwriting process shall be required to remain in the program a minimum of three years.

1602 Partial Termination of Group not Permitted

The EMPLOYER cannot have a group of employees, for example a bargaining unit, drop from this health insurance program and carry other coverage.

1603 Employer Group Termination

1603 A) The governing body of an EMPLOYER may terminate group health insurance under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7), for all PARTICIPANTS for whom rights to coverage were secured by the EMPLOYER'S participation by adopting a resolution in a form prescribed by the BOARD.

1603 B) A certified copy of the resolution in 1603 A must be received in ETF by October 15 for termination to be effective at the end of the calendar year.

1603 C) If the EMPLOYER fails to comply with 1603 A or B above, or if the EMPLOYER fails to maintain the required participation level in the program, ETF may impose enrollment restrictions on the EMPLOYER as it deems appropriate to preserve the integrity of the program. ETF may terminate the EMPLOYER'S participation in the program on the first of the month following notification to the EMPLOYER that it has violated the terms of the CONTRACT. ETF may also restrict the EMPLOYER'S re-enrollment in the program beyond the restrictions set forth in item (4) below.

1603 D) Any EMPLOYER who terminates participation under this section may again elect to participate with an EFFECTIVE DATE not earlier than three years after the date of termination. The EMPLOYER is responsible for notifying ANNUITANTS and CONTINUANTS of coverage termination.

1604 Disenrollment

If participation by an EMPLOYER is approved in accordance with 301 and 302 above, and the subsequent participation falls under the minimum requirement, the BOARD may terminate EMPLOYER participation at the end of the calendar year by notifying the EMPLOYER prior to October 1.

Chapter 17 — Glossary of Definitions

"ACCESS PLAN" means the nationwide health care benefit plan available to all PARTICIPANTS offered by the BOARD as provided by § 40.52 (1).

"ANNUITANT" means any currently insured retired EMPLOYEE of a participating EMPLOYER: receiving an immediate annuity under the Wisconsin Retirement System, or a disability retirement annuity under Wis. Stat. § 40.63, or a long-term disability benefit under Wis. Adm. Code § ETF 50.40, or a disability benefit under Wis. Stat § 40.65, or a person receiving an annuity through a program administered by ETF under Wis. Stat. § 40.19 (4) (a).

"BENEFITS" means the services that are paid for as part of your coverage under the State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Program.

"BOARD" means the Group Insurance Board.

"**CONTINUANT**" means any SUBSCRIBER enrolled under the federal or state continuation provisions as described in Article 2.9.

"CONTRACT" means this document which includes all attachments, supplements, endorsements or riders.

"DEPENDENT" means, as provided herein, the SUBSCRIBER'S:

- 1) Spouse.
- 2) Child.
- 3) Legal ward who becomes a permanent legal ward of the SUBSCRIBER or SUBSCRIBER'S spouse prior to age 19.
- 4) Adopted child when placed in the custody of the parent as provided by Wis. Stat. § 632.896.
- 5) Stepchild.
- 6) Grandchild if the parent is a DEPENDENT child.
 - a) A grandchild ceases to be a DEPENDENT at the end of the month in which the DEPENDENT child (parent) turns age 18.
 - b) A spouse and a stepchild cease to be DEPENDENTS at the end of the month in which a marriage is terminated by divorce or annulment.
 - c) All other children cease to be DEPENDENTS at the end of the month in which they turn 26 years of age, whichever occurs first, except that:
 - i. An unmarried dependent child who is incapable of self-support because of a physical or mental disability that can be expected to be of long-continued or indefinite duration of at least one year is an eligible DEPENDENT, regardless of age, as long as the child remains so disabled and he or she is dependent on the SUBSCRIBER (or the other parent) for at least 50% of the child's

support and maintenance as demonstrated by the support test for federal income tax purposes, whether or not the child is claimed. If the SUBSCRIBER should decease, the disabled adult DEPENDENT must still meet the remaining disabled criteria and be incapable of self-support. The HEALTH PLAN will monitor eligibility annually, notifying the EMPLOYER and ETF when terminating coverage prospectively upon determining the DEPENDENT is no longer so disabled and/or meets the support requirement. The HEALTH PLAN will assist ETF in making a final determination if the SUBSCRIBER disagrees with the HEALTH PLAN determination.

- ii. After attaining age 26, as required by Wis. Stat. § 632.885, a DEPENDENT includes a child that is a full-time student, regardless of age, who was called to federal active duty when the child was under the age of 27 years and while the child was attending, on a full-time basis, an institution of higher education.
- d) A child born outside of marriage becomes a DEPENDENT of the father on the date of the court order declaring paternity or on the date the acknowledgement of paternity is filed with the Department of Health Services (or equivalent if the birth was outside of Wisconsin) or the date of birth with a birth certificate listing the father's name. The EFFECTIVE DATE of coverage will be the date of birth if a statement or court order of paternity is filed within 60 days of the birth.
- e) A child who is considered a DEPENDENT ceases to be a DEPENDENT on the date the child becomes insured as an eligible EMPLOYEE.
- f) Any DEPENDENT eligible for BENEFITS who is not listed on an application for coverage will be provided BENEFITS based on the date of notification with coverage effective the first of the month following receipt of the subsequent application by the EMPLOYER, except as required under Wis. Stat. § 632.895 (5) and 632.896 and as specified in Article 503 D.

"EFFECTIVE DATE" means the date, as certified by ETF (or as shown on the records of the HEALTH PLAN for PARTICIPANTS who pay premium directly to the HEALTH PLAN) becomes enrolled and entitled to the BENEFITS specified in this CONTRACT.

"EMPLOYEE" means a person who is working for pay as an eligible EMPLOYEE as defined under Wis. Stats. § 40.02 (46) or 40.19 (4) (a), of an EMPLOYER as defined under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (28), other than the state, which has acted under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7), to make health care coverage available to its EMPLOYEES.

"**EMPLOYER**" means an employer who has acted under Wis. Stat. § 40.51 (7), to make health care coverage available to its EMPLOYEES.

"ETF" means the Department of Employee Trust Funds.

"FAMILY SUBSCRIBER" means a SUBSCRIBER who is enrolled for family coverage and whose DEPENDENTS are thus eligible for BENEFITS.

"HEALTH PLAN" means the licensed insurer that is under CONTRACT with the State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Program to provide BENEFITS and services to PARTICIPANTS.
 ET-1144 Chapter 17 (REV 12/18/2023)
 Page 120 of 169 Back to Top

"**INDIVIDUAL SUBSCRIBER**" means a SUBSCRIBER who is enrolled for personal coverage only and whose DEPENDENTS, if any, are thus not eligible for BENEFITS.

"INPATIENT" means a PARTICIPANT admitted as a bed patient to a health care facility or in 24-hour home care.

"IT'S YOUR-CHOICE" see OPEN ENROLLMENT>.

"LAYOFF" means the same as "leave of absence" as defined under Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (40).

"MINIMUM ESSENTIAL COVERAGE" means an insurance plan that meets the Affordable Care Act requirement for having health coverage. Minimum essential coverage is sometimes called qualifying health coverage.

"OPEN ENROLLMENT" means the yearly period referred to in ETF materials where all members may make changes to their HEALTH PLANS and/or coverage and also to eligible EMPLOYEES to enroll for coverage in any HEALTH PLAN offered in the Group Health Insurance Program. The dates for this time period are set each year by ETF and the Group Insurance BOARD.

"PARTICIPANT" means the SUBSCRIBER or any of his/her SUBSCRIBER'S DEPENDENTS who have been specified by ETF to the HEALTH PLAN for enrollment and are entitled to BENEFITS.

"**PREMIUM**" means the rates shown on Attachment A plus the pharmacy rate and administration fees required by the BOARD. Those rates may be revised by the HEALTH PLAN annually, effective on each succeeding January 1 following the effective date of this CONTRACT. The PREMIUM includes the amount paid by the EMPLOYER when the EMPLOYER contributes toward the PREMIUM.

"SUBSCRIBER" means an EMPLOYEE, ANNUITANT, or his or her surviving DEPENDENTS, who have been specified by ETF to the HEALTH PLAN for enrollment and who is entitled to BENEFITS.

Appendix A — Forms and Brochures

Document name	Form number	Link
WRS Administration Manual	ET-1127	/etf.wi.gov/resource/wisconsin-retirement-ystem- administration-manual
State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance Program Agreement	ET-1136	etf.wi.gov/resource/2022-state-wisconsin-group- health-insurance-program-agreement
WPE Standard PPO Plan Program Option 2 Booklet	ET-2131	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2131.pdf
WPE Standard PPO Plan Program Option 4 Booklet	ET-2162	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2162.pdf
WPE Standard PPO Plan HDHP Program Option 7 Booklet	ET-2170	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2170.pdf
Health Insurance Application/Change	ET-2301	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2301.pdf
Health Insurance Application/Change for Retirees & COBRA Continuants	ET-2331	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2331.pdf
COBRA Continuation Conversion Notice	ET-2311	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2311.docx
Rehired Annuitant Form	ET-2319	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2319.pdf
Converting Your Group Life Insurance to Pay for Health Insurance or Long Term Care Insurance Premiums	ET-2325	etf.wi.gov/publications/et2325.pdf
Group Health Insurance	ET-4112	etf.wi.gov/publications/et4112.pdf
Medicare Eligibility Statement	ET-4307	etf.wi.gov/publications/et4307.pdf
Local Employer Verification of Health Insurance Coverage	ET-4814	etf.wi.gov/publications/et4814.pdf

Appendix B — Codes

- B-1 Employee Type Codes
- B-2 Coverage Type Codes
- B-3 Individual Relationship Codes
- B-4 Program Option Codes
- B-5 Surcharge Codes
- B-6 Health Plan Codes

Code	Employee Coverage	Description
06	Local	Eligible local government employee.
09	Local Paid Annuitant	WRS annuitant whose former employer pays all or part of the monthly health insurance premium.
14	Local Annuitant	Retired employee who is eligible for health insurance.
15	Local Surviving Spouse/Dependent	Currently insured subscriber dies while carrying family health insurance coverage.
16	Local Continuant	ETF Use Only - Continuant
18	Local Fallen Officer Survivor	Survivors of Fallen Officers receiving health insurance
22	Local Annuitant Split	Retired employee who is eligible for health insurance and has selected two health plans.
24	Local Surviving Spouse/Dep Split	Used for survivors of currently insured subscriber who dies while carrying family health insurance coverage and has selected two health plans.
25	Local Paid Annuitant Split	WRS annuitant whose former employer pays all or part of the monthly health insurance premium and has selected two plans.
27	Local Continuant Split	Continuant who has selected two health plans.

B-1 Employee Type Codes

Code	Type of Coverage	Description					
01	Single	Coverage is for the subscriber (employee) only.					
02	Family	Coverage is for the subscriber (employee) and eligible dependent(s).					
05	Medicare - Single	Single coverage for annuitant or continuant subscriber with Medicare.					
06	Medicare Family – Some – Health Plan Med	Family coverage for annuitant or continuant subscriber; one or more persons with Medicare.					
07	Medicare Family - All	Family coverage for annuitant or continuant subscriber, subscriber and all dependents with Medicare.					
12	Medicare Family Some – Med Advantage	Family coverage for annuitant or continuant subscriber; one or more persons with Medicare. Two health plans selected and the Medicare plan is Medicare Advantage.					
22	Medicare Family Some – Med Plus	Family coverage for annuitant or continuant subscriber; one or more persons with Medicare. Two health plans selected and the Medicare plan is Medicare Plus.					

B-2 Coverage Type Codes

B-3 Individual Relationship Codes

Code	Definition
01	Spouse
03	Parent of Minor Dependent
15	Permanent Legal Ward
17	Stepchild
18	Self
19	Child
24	Dependent of a Minor Dependent

B-4 Program Option Codes

Code	Definition
PO2	Full pay HMO option paired with the Standard PPO
PO4	Deductible HMO option paired with Standard PPO
PO6	Coinsurance HMO option paired with Standard PPO
PO7	High Deductible Health Plan HMO paired with Standard PPO

B-5 Surcharge Codes

The surcharge code can be found in the myETF Benefits System (MEBS) on the Employer Info screen under the 'Health Insurance' tab. It is the second item in the first line. The surcharge code can also be found under the 'Health' button, under 'Member Enrollment'. On the member screen, under 'Employer' you will see the employer name, then the Program Option/Surcharge Code.

The surcharge code is assigned to large employers (50 or more employees) after the employer submits information to underwriting when enrolling in the Wisconsin Public Employers' (WPE) Group Health Insurance Program. Employers with 49 or less employees are not subject to a surcharge or underwriting.

The code for no surcharge is S01. All other surcharge codes designate a certain amount of surcharge. The surcharge is added to the premium for the health plan; the employer and employee shares are apportioned. The surcharge for an employer joining the WPE Group Health Insurance Program on January first will run for one year. Beginning the second year, the surcharge reduces by about half. Beginning the third year of participation, the surcharge reduces to zero and will be designated as S01.

B-6 Health Plan Codes 2024 CARRIER CODES FOR HEALTH INSURANCE

НМО	НМО	HDHP	HDHP	
Dental (Y)	Dental (N) (LAHP)	Dental (Y)	Dental (N)	HEALTH CARRIER NAME
04	OL	JL	XL	IYC ACCESS HP - DEAN
07	00	JO	хо	SMP - DEAN
08	OP	JP	ХР	MEDICARE PLUS - UHC
38	OS	JS	XS	COMMON GROUND
15	NC	HC	WC	DEAN HEALTH PLAN
17	ND	HD	WD	DEAN HP PREVEA360 EAST
24	OR	JR	XR	DEAN HP PREVEA360 WEST
18	OG	JG	XG	UHC MEDICARE ADVANTAGE
30	NG	HG	WG	GHC EC GREATER WI
31	ОТ	JT	хт	GHC EC RIVER REGION
35	NH	НН	WH	GHC-SCW DANE CHOICE
36	OX	JX	XX	GHC-SCW NEIGHBORS
63	NN	HN	WN	MEDICAL ASSOCIATES HEALTH PLAN
64	NO	НО	WO	MERCYCARE HEALTH PLAN
70	NP	НР	WP	NETWORK HEALTH
79	OV	VL	XV	SECURITY
85	NS	HS	WS	HEALTHPARTNERS WEST
19	OW	JW	XW	HEALTHPARTNERS SOUTHEAST
96	OC	JC	XC	QUARTZ-UW HEALTH
98	ОН	JH	ХН	ROBIN WITH HEALTHPARTNERS
25	OI	JI	XI	ASPIRUS HEALTH PLAN
91	OJ	JJ	LX	QUARTZ CENTRAL
99	ОК	JK	ХК	QUARTZ WEST

Appendix C — myETF Benefits

- C-1 How to Log Into myETF Benefits
- C-2 Add Coverage
- C-3 Add Dependent
- C-4 <u>Remove Dependent</u>
- C-5 Change Health Plans
- C-6 Change Coverage
- C-7 Termination of Coverage
- C-8 Pending Transactions
- C-9 Enrollment Inquiry
- C-10 Dependent Inquiry
- C-11 Address Inquiry
- C-12 Employer Premium Inquiry

C-1 How to Log into myETF Benefits

To get started in myETF Benefits you must first obtain access to the system by completing and submitting an *Online Access Security Agreement* (ET-8928) to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, on which you request access to myETF Benefits for Administrators for the following areas:

- Health Eligibility Inquiry
- Health Eligibility Update
- Health Premium Inquiry
- Health Premium Payment

1. Once access has been granted, go to etf.wi.gov.



2. Hover over Employers tab and click on Insurance Programs.



3. Click on MyETF Benefits Administrator.

myETF Benefits Administrator

The myETF Benefits Administrator (mEBS) Application for Employers allows employers to execute benefits transactions. These include, but are not limited to, viewing and updating individual member health insurance eligibility and demographic data, completing mass employee terminations, adding and deleting a dependent or domestic partner and updating health insurance enrollment data and personal contact information.



4. Enter your user ID and password.

	site provides access to the online services developed by the Department of loyee Trust Funds (ETF) for administrators.
If you a	Registered Users re already a registered user, enter your user ID and password, then click the login button. User ID:
	New Users

5. Enter your employer number and click Verify.

eff.wi.gov	myETF Benefits Admin Employer Info											
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help	Log Off	1		
	Employer Specific Function - Employer Number Required											
	Use this screen to specify the employer whose data you would like to access. You must provide the employer's seven digit employer number. You must have the authority to access the employer's data.											
	Please enter the seven digit Employer Number and click Verify Employer Number:											
	Verify											

6. You will be redirected to the EmployerInfo screen, which displays the employer's contact information. Click through the tabs to view your agency's participation in health insurance, income continuation insurance (ICI), and life insurance.

etf.wi.gov	2				Benefits Adr	nin
	Members Health	L	.ife Disabi	lity WRS	Other Benefit	s Reports
Employer Numbe	r:	0991-000) Em	ployer Name:	M	IADISON, CITY OF
Contact Info	Health Insurance	ICI	Life Insurance			
	Agent Contact			Insurance (Contact	
Name: Telephone:			Name: Telephone:			
	Retirement Contact			Address Info	ormation	
Name:			Address:			
Telephone:	_		Agent Email:	No agent emai	il available. <mark>More</mark>	Clear
		mvM	lembers Requests	New EIN		

7. Health Insurance tab - If an agency offers WPE Group Health Insurance, this tab will display the employer group number, health insurance program option number the agency offers to their employees, effective date of participation, and other health insurance details specific to the agency. If no information is displayed or a withdrawal date is posted, the agency is not enrolled in WPE Group Health Insurance.



8. Income Continuation Insurance (ICI) tab - If an agency participates in the Income Continuation Insurance (ICI) Program, this tab displays the coverage effective date and the code will display as shown below. If no information is displayed or a withdrawal date is posted, the agency does not participate in the ICI benefit program.

ICI			
Effective Date	Withdrawal Date	Percentage Part	Coverage Code
09/01/2014		1.00	3

- 9. Life Insurance tab If an agency participates in the Group Life Insurance Program, this tab will display the effective date(s) for each level of coverage the agency offers to their employees.
 - a. If no effective date, the agency does not offer that level of coverage. Additional information includes;
 - i. Identifying which life insurance coverage level(s) the employer pays a percentage of the employee premium and
 - ii. The life reduction percentage. If no information is displayed or there is a withdrawal date posted, the agency does not participate in the ICI Program.





C-2 Add Coverage

When a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) has been received for one of the Dependent reasons, all information on the form must be verified and the employer must complete the Employer Completes section, and any necessary documentation has been verified/approved. Refer to example below:

Employer Completes Coding instructions are in the Employer Health Insurance Administration Manual.							
EIN	Employe	r name		Payroll representative email			
0000-199	Cei	ntral Pay	roll		Jane. Doe @ central payroll. wi.go		
Group number	Employe	e type	Coverage type		Health plan name/su	ffix	
83900			🗌 Individual 🛛 Family		Pean		
Business Unit (if applicable)	Employment status of applicant				Employee deductions	S	
	🗹 Full time 🗌 Part time 🗌 LTE			LTE	Pre-tax 🗌 Post-tax		
			Employer receive	d date	Event date		Prospective coverage date
appointment began 2/4/19			212715	1019			5/1/2019
Are you a WRS-participa	ating em	ployer? 🔀 Ye	es 🗌 No				
Previous service check of			es 🗌 No				
Source of previous servi	ce chec	k? 🛛 🖾 Or	nline Network fo	r Employers	(ONE) 🗌 ETF		
Did employee participate in the WRS prior to being hired by you?							
Payroll representative signature				Phone numbe	er	Date :	signed
Jane Doe (608) 555-12					55-1234	1	3/1/2019

1. Log in to myETF Benefits. Before an employee can be enrolled in health coverage, their employer and demographic information must be entered. Select myMembers under the myMembers tab as shown below.



2. Enter the employee's ETF Member ID or SSN into the appropriate box and click the Search button. Or click Enter If an employee was or is a dependent or subscriber on another plan without WRS enrollment; they will have an ETF Member ID.

etf.wi.gov
Member Search
Member ID: OR Social Security Number:
Search Name Search Clear

3. An ETF member ID is required to create a health contract. If an employee does not yet have an ID in myETF Benefits, you will see the following message:

This member was not found. If you believe you have received this message in error please try again.
 Otherwise press the Add button to add this member to our database and assign them a member ID.

At this point, the employer can either:

- Enroll the employee in the WRS via ETF Web Applications for Employers at <u>etf.wi.gov/employers/wisconsin-retirement-system</u> to create an ETF Member ID, or
- b. Create an ETF Member ID in myETF Benefits
- 4. If no demographic information appears, click the Add button.

	Search	Name Search	Clear	Add
--	--------	-------------	-------	-----

5. Some of the demographic information is displayed on the myMembers screen. a. If demographic information appears, click edit

Edit	Print Member ID	
		Member Information
SSN: Name: Date of Birt Date of Dea Gender: Marital Stat Marital Stat Employer:	MALE us:	When an employee is enrolled in the WRS, this information will be displayed. If they are not enrolled in the WRS, this will be blank

6. Enter the employee's demographic information.

	oyee s demographic information.
	Member Information
Member ID:	
SSN:	(999999999)
Name	Select One V
(First/Middle/Last/S	
Date of Birth:	01/21/1980 (MM/DD/YYYY) If Marital Status is NOT
Gender:	FEMALE SINGLE, Marital Status
Marital Status:	
Marital Status Date	
Employer:	Select One
Employment Begin	Date: (MM/DD/YYYY)
	fits Online application) under another employer. New employer information be keyed and update under Health/Member Enrolment Screen .
Mailing Address:	
Country:	UNITED STATES - US
Address Line 1:	1234 5th ST
Address Line 2:	
City, State:	MADISON
Zip Code:	537151228 (only numbers are allowed)
Care of:	
Primary Phone:	6081234567 Ext. (only numbers are allowed)
After entering t	he required information, click Submit.
Submit	
	uracy and select the Finalist Address button if prompted. If no fina or the entered address is correct per the employee, click Entered nen Submit.
Select Address:	
O Entered Addres	ss 1882 E MAIN ST MADISON WI 53704 US
O Finalist Addres	s 1882 E MAIN ST

MADISON WI 53704-5288

Clear

Return to myMembers

Cancel Canges

Submit

Changes

O Finalist Address

Submit to Update

7.

Exit Edit Mode

(no update)

8. Click Confirm if correct or Cancel if you need to return to the previous page.

eff.wi.gov					m	I YETF Benefit Edit myMemi				
EmployerInfo myMembers Health	Life Di	isability WRS	Other Benefits	Report	Help	Log Off				
You have made the folk	owing changes. If	correct, please	e press the Co	Cance		ss the Cancel Confirm dat dditions wi	a enterec	I. Change		
Member Information								Spouse	Information	
etf.wi.gov						-	TF Benefits			
myEmployerInfo myMembers Hea	th Life	Disability	WRS Oth	er Benefits	Reports	Test Support	Help	Log Off		
						Health Ir Online Enrollm	nsurance ent Instructior	15		
	Employee: T	EST TEST					Me	mber ID: 1137-51	38	
Welcome to the myETF Benefits Online a quick and easy process through our d convenient method for you to research,	edicated and secure web	site, the Online Netwo	ork for Members. Her	e you will find	many different	resources (such as	the It's Your Choic	ce Decision Guide)	that will provide you v	
Internet Explorer 7		Internet Expl	orer 8			Fire Fox	3.0 (or higher)			
STEP 1 Home Page - Online Network for Men Go to <u>http://myETF.wi.qov/ONM.html</u> (O When you are ready to enroll in the hea STEP 2	nline Network for Membe				that can help yo	ou research and mak	e informed decisi	ons about your hea	alth care benefit cover	I
myldentity Verification (WAMS ID) Type your WAMS ID and Password. Cli	ck Login. If you need to s	et up a WAMS ID, clic	k Register Now.							
STEP 3 myldentity Verification (ETF Member Type your ETF Member ID (provided by		date. Click Verify to o	continue.							
STEP 4 myldentity Verification (Social Securi Type your Social Security Number witho		one-time event that on	y needs to be compl	eted the first	ime you log in.					
STEP 5 myETF Benefits - New Hire Enrollmer Click the Add Coverage button at the b		n making your health i	nsurance selections.							
							Return to myM	lembers		

Note: This is the confirmation page you see after adding a member into myETF Benefits who has never been covered by the program with any employer. This confirmation screen provides you the ETF Member ID for this employee, which they will need if they are enrolling through member self-service. The confirmation screen will look different if you are only updating information; that confirmation screen will show a summary of changes made and will have a print button in the upper right corner and a Return to myMembers button at the bottom of the page.

To print the confirmation page, click on the green Print button in the upper right corner.

 After you review myMembers, you can enroll an employee in the health insurance benefit program. Go to the Health tab and select Member Enrollment from the menu. You must have completed the employee's enrollment in the employer's payroll system or have the employee complete a *Group Health Insurance Application* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually).



10. Enter the member ETF Member ID or SSN and click Search.

eff.wi.gov	tf							myE
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help
			Mem	ber Searc	h			
Member I	D:		OR	Social Se	ecurity Nun	nber:		
)	Sea	Na	me Search	Clear			

11. The employee's Member ID, SSN, and name will appear below the Member Search bar. Click the Add Coverage button to begin the health enrollment.



12. New Enrollment - Start at the top of the screen. Select the appropriate Add Coverage Reason from the dropdown list.

etf.wi.gov	tf			
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability

Bypass Calculate C	overage Effective Date Edit	
Add Coverage Reason:	Select One IT'S YOUR CHOICE ENROLLMENT PERIOD	Event Date:
	ADOPTION/PLACEMENT FOR ADOPTION BIRTH	Employer Received Date:
	CHANGE EMPLOYEE TYPE	
	DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP	
	LIMITED TERM EMPLOYMENT	
	MANNAGE MEMBER/DEPENDENT LOSS OF OTHER COVERAGE/LOSS OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION	
	NATIONAL MEDICAL SUPPORT NOTICE	
	NEW HIRE	
	REINSTATEMENT	
	TRANSFER FROM ONE STATE AGENCY TO ANOTHER	
	WISCONSIN ACT 113	▶

13. Enter the Event Date (hire date or date of life event) and the Employer Received Date. The Event Date and the Employer Received Date determine the coverage effective date.



Note: Employer Received Date must be within 30 days of Event Date or the system will not process the enrollment.

- a. When the add coverage reason is NEW HIRE, the employee selects "as soon as possible" or "when my employer contributes to premium." This determines when coverage is effective.
 - If the option "As soon as possible" is selected, an effective date is automatically generated for the first of month on or after the date of hire.

, ,
I WANT MY COVERAGE TO BE EFFECTIVE: O When my employer contributes to premium Note: If you select coverage to be effective as soon as possible you may be responsible for the entire monthly premium.
If "When my employer contributes to premium" is selected, an employer can enter when coverage is effective. The employer will key the coverage begin date.
I WANT MY COVERAGE TO BE EFFECTIVE: O As soon as possible When my employer contributes to premium Note: If you select coverage to be effective as soon as possible you may be responsible for the entire monthly premium.

b. If NEW HIRE is not the Add Coverage reason, the system automatically generates a coverage effective date based on the event date and employer receive date.

14. Complete the Employment Details section. If it does not default to the correct employer, make the selection from the Employer dropdown. Employment Details:



15. Compete Coverage Selection section. If the effective date the system provides is not what the employer expected, the employer may need to call ETF to discuss.



- 16. Complete Contact Information section.
 - a. Select Yes to Updated Contact Information if something is changing. Select No if no contact information is changing.



17. When entering family coverage, review the employee's information and verify dependent information on the *Group Health Application/Change* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) form. By default, an employee's record is first to display. Key all detailed information for each person on the plan. See instructions below

Row	SSN	Name - First, MI, Last, Suffix								
1		CYNTHIA	K		~					
Insurance:	NO 🗸	Other Insurance Co:		Group No:						
Medicare:	NO 🗸	Medicare: Select			~					
	_									
	DOB	Gender	Re	elationship						
11	/17/1955	FEMALE V	SELF		~					
Poli	cy No:									
HIC Number:		MBI Number:		Med A Eff Dt:						
Marit	al Status	Marital Status Date	Tax Dep Disat	oled Physician	Add/Remove Row					
DIVORCE	~	12/22/2009	NO V NO	✓ NO ✓	0					
Med B Eff Dt:		Medicare Info Blank Reas	ons: Select		~					

- a. Complete the Insurance section for the dependent being added:
 - Select No if there is no other health insurance coverage listed on the application for the member.
 - Select Yes if there is other health insurance coverage listed on the application for the dependent. Enter any information provided about the other insurance in the appropriate fields, which open after Yes is selected.
- b. Complete the Medicare section for the dependent being added.
 - Select No if there is no Medicare coverage for the dependent.
 - Select Yes if there is Medicare coverage for the dependent. Complete the required Medicare information for the dependent in the appropriate fields, which open after Yes is selected.
- c. Complete the "Physician" section for the dependent being added
 - Select No if no Physician is listed on the application. Physician section can be left blank.
 - Select Yes if Physician is listed on the application and complete the fields.
- 18. To add additional member(s) to the family contract, scroll to the right and click on the green (+) button. Click Submit when all dependents listed on the application have been entered.



19. Verify the information entered is correct, check the box(es) and click Confirm.

By Confirming this request, I apply for or am ending the insurance under the indicated health insurance and agree to the <u>TERMS AND CONDITIONS and NONDISCRIMINATION DISCLOSURE</u>.

To the best of my knowledge, all statements and answers are completed and true. All information is t

Documentation is required to process this change. I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to provide the



Note: When a second check box displays, documentation is required to be submitted to ETF to be eligible for that add reason. The pending contract will go into "Waiting for ETF Approval" status until ETF receives a copy of the required documentation. Once the documentation has been received, reviewed and approved by ETF, then the transaction will be approved and processed overnight. If ETF does not approve the documentation, the employer will be contacted with the reason why and what, if any, additional documentation is needed for processing.

20. Employer Confirmation and Verification: *Print* a copy of the confirmation screen (if desired) by clicking on the green print button in the upper right hand corner of the screen. An employer can view the contract the following day under Health/Member Enrollment.

e	tf		myETF Benefits Admin Health Insurance Add Coverage							
ett.wi.gov	J								1	
Imployerinto	mylfembers:	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Ber	Hefts Test Su	uport Help	Log Off	
		ETF Member	и			55N: XXXX-XXX	kini -			Subscriber:
			Your request ha	s been submitted an	d will be pr	ocessed overnig	nt.			📑 Print
						Return to H	ealth Enrollmen	t Summary		
			Application Inf	ormation NEW H	IRE					
			Health Plan	Coverage	Level B	Segin Date En	d Date Emplo	yer		
				SINGLE						
			Covered Indivi	dual Detail Summa	n,					
			Name	DOB	Gender	Relationship	Marital Status	Marital Status Date	Begin Date	End Date
			1		MALE	SELF	SINGLE		04/01/2015	

Note: When a second check box displays, documentation is required to be submitted to ETF to be eligible for that add reason. The pending contract will go into "Waiting for ETF Approval" status until ETF receives a copy of the required documentation. Once the documentation has been received, reviewed, and approved by ETF, the transaction will be approved and processed overnight. If ETF does not approve the documentation, the employer will be contacted with the reason why and what, if any, additional documentation is needed for processing.

C-3 Add Dependent

When a *Health Insurance Application/Change* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) form has been received for one of the dependent reasons, all information on the form must be verified and the employer must complete the Employer Completes section. Any necessary documentation must be verified/approved. Refer to the example below:

Employer Completes Coding instructions are in the Employer Health Insurance Administration Manual.									
EIN	Employe	er name	1.		Payroll representative email				
0000-199	Central Payroll				Jane. Doe @ central payroll. wig				
Group number	Employe	e type	Coverage type		Health plan name/suffix				
83900			🗌 Individual 🛛 Family Dean			1			
Business Unit (if applicable)		Employment sta	itus of applicant		Employee deduction:	S			
	🗹 Full time	Part time	LTE	Pre-tax 🗌 Post-tax					
Hire date or date WRS-eligible	employm	ent or graduate	Employer receive	d date	Event date		Prospective coverage date		
appointment began 2/4/19			212712	1019		5/1/2019			
Are you a WRS-participa	ating em	ployer? 🛛 Ye	es 🗌 No		-				
Previous service check	complete		es 🗌 No						
Source of previous servi					(ONE) ETF				
Did employee participate in the WRS prior to being hired by you? Yes X No									
Payroll representative signature		Phone number		Date	signed				
Jane Doe		(605)5	55-1234	1.1	3/1/2014				

1. Verify the Member's demographic information is correct. Under the myMembers tab, select myMembers.

etf.wi.gov	etf.wi.gov										
myEmployerInfo	myMembers	Hea	alth	Life	Disability						
	myMembers		4								
	myMembers Requests										

- a. Click the Edit button on the bottom of the screen to update existing information.
- b. When an address is updated, the system will request USPS verification of the address. Always select the Finalist Address.
- c. Once edits are complete, click Submit.
- d. Review the data (all changes and additions will appear in red).
- e. Click Confirm if correct or Cancel to return to the previous screen.
- f. The confirmation page can be printed by clicking the green Print button.

2. **Enrollment Screen:** To enroll a dependent, select Member Enrollment from the dropdown list under the Health tab.

etf.wi.gov											
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life								
		Inquiry									
	\rightarrow	Member Enrollment									
	-	Premium									
		Termination of Co	verage								

3. Enter the member ETF Member ID or SSN and click Search.

etf etf.wi.gov						myE'
EmployerInfo myMembers Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help
	Member	Search				
Member ID:] OR So	cial Secu	rity Numbe	er:		
Sear	Name S	Search	Clear			

4. When an employee's record returns, click Edit on the line of the Active contract to begin the health enrollment process.

etf.wi.gov	tf			myETF Benefits Admin Health Insurance Enrollment Summary								
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help	Log Off			
									Member Se	earch		
	Member ID: OR Social Security Number:											
							S	earch Name Se	arch	d Individual Search	Clear	
				Member ID:				SSN:			Subscriber:	10000
		He	alth Plan			Coverage Level		Begin Dat	e	End Date	Status	Employer
View Edit						FAMILY		01/01/201	;		ACTIVE	MADISON, CITY OF - P14/S01 \$1627.08
View Edit						FAMILY		06/30/199	5	12/31/2015	ENDED	MADISON, CITY OF - P02/S01 \$1729.30

5. Check Add Dependent and click Continue.


6. Select the appropriate Reason for Adding Dependent from the dropdown.

Reason for Adding Dependent:	Select One
\rightarrow	IT'S YOUR CHOICE ENROLLMENT PERIOD ADOPTION/PLACEMENT FOR ADOPTION BIRTH CREATION OF DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP DISABLED DEPENDENT OVER AGE 26 ELIGIBLE DEPENDENT NOT REPORTED ON INITIAL ENROLLMENT LEGAL WARD LOSS OF OTHER COVERAGE/EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION MARRIAGE NATIONAL MEDICAL SUPPORT NOTICE

7. Complete the Event Date (date of qualifying life event) and Employer Received Date. The effective date will auto-populate based on the event and received dates entered.



8. Scroll down to the Identification section and enter the information from the health application.



- 9. Select Yes or No in the Other Health Insurance section.
 - Select No if there is no other health insurance coverage listed on the application for the dependent .
 - Select Yes if there is other health insurance coverage listed on the application for the dependent. Enter any information provided about the other insurance in the appropriate fields which open after Yes is selected.

10. Select Yes or No in the Medicare section for the dependent being added.

- Select No if there is no Medicare coverage for the member.
- Select Yes if there is Medicare coverage for the member. Complete the required Medicare information for the dependent in the appropriate fields, which open after Yes is selected.

- 11. Complete the Physician section for the dependent being added. The physician section can be left blank if physician information is not provided on application.
- 12. Click Submit.



13. Verify data entered, check the box(es) and click Confirm.

By Confirming this request, I apply for or am ending the insurance under the indicated health insurance and agree to the <u>TERMS AND CONDITIONS and NONDISCRIMINATION DISCLOSURE</u>.

To the best of my knowledge, all statements and answers are completed and true. All information is t

Documentation is required to process this change. I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to provide the



Note: When a second check box displays, documentation is required to be submitted to ETF to be eligible for that add reason. The contract will go into "Waiting for ETF Approval" status until ETF receives a copy of the required documentation. Once the documentation has been received, reviewed and approved by ETF, then the transaction will be approved and processed overnight. If ETF does not approve the documentation, the employer will be contacted with the reason why and what, if any, additional documentation is needed for processing.

14. Employer Confirmation and Verification: *Print* a copy of the confirmation screen (if desired) by clicking on the green print button in the upper right hand corner of the screen. An employer can view the contract the following day under Health/Member Enrollment.

EmployerInfo	myMembers He	ealth	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Maintenance	Help	Log Off				
Your res	quest has been submitte	ed and will be	processed over	might.										
			ETF Member								SSN:			Subscriber:
			Employ	ver: CENTRAL F	PAYROLL EMPLO	YEE TRUST FUN	0S - P01/S01 S	\$694.46			Health Plan:	GHC SOUTH CENTRAL WI		Coverage Level: SINGLE
							R	Return to Enrollment	t Summary R	eturn to Report En	nrollment Change Add	Additional Eligible Dependent	📑 Print	
							Reason for A	dding Dependent: AD				Event Date: 02/15/2020 mployer Received Date: 02/20/2020 Effective Date: 02/15/2020		
						BRENDA	N ALEXA NDEF	R						
							First Middle Last	SSN: Name: BRENDAN e Initial: S Name: Suffic: V niber ID:]	Date of Date of	Death:		
							Di Begi En	isabled: NO in Date: 02/15/2020 id Date:	>			rance: PRIMARY V onship: CHILD licator: NO V	~	
						Other Healt	h Insurance:N			Group Nu	imber:	Policy Number:		
						Medicare:N Medic	are Eligibility R HIC N	Reason: Select One lumber:		~	Medicare A Effective Medicare B Effective Medicare Info Blank Re	Date:		
						Physician:	National Provi	ider ID:	OR Phy	ysician Last/Clinic N	Name:	Physician First Name:		
	Return	to Ei	nrollme	ent Sun	nmary	Retu	rn to F	Report Ei	nrollme	nt Chan	ige Add	Additional Eligi	ble Deper	ndent
		rform		ction to p return ummary				Click to p another a				Click to Add ano dependent		

- 15. Click Return to Enrollment Summary to return to the active contract.
 - a. To perform an additional change (i.e. change health plan), click the Return to Report Enrollment Change button. Example of multiple changes: add Dependent and Change Health Plan, or Remove Dependent and Change Health Plan, must be keyed in myETF Benefits on the same day.
 - Add or Remove Dependent first and then Change Health Plan. If an employee is electing to Add or Remove and Change Health Plan because of a life event, *both* changes *must* be performed on the same day for the system to correctly process the changes under one life event reason (birth, marriage, divorce, etc.). If these steps are performed on two separate days, the change in health plan will not process.

C-4 Remove Dependent

When a *Health Insurance Application/Change* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) form has been received for one of the dependent reasons, all information on the form must be verified and the employer must complete the Employer Completes section. Any necessary documentation must be verified/approved. Refer to example below:

Employer Completes	Coding	instructions a	re in the Emplo	yer Health li	nsurance Administ	ration	Manual.	
EIN	Employe	er name	1.		Payroll representative email			
0000-199	Ce	ntral Pay	roll		Jane. Doe @ central payroll. wig			
Group number	Employee type Coverage type				Health plan name/su	ffix		
83900			Individual	🛛 Family	Pean			
Business Unit (if applicable)		Employment sta	itus of applicant		Employee deduction	S		
		🗹 Full time	Part time	LTE	🛛 Pre-tax 🛛	Pre-tax 🗌 Post-tax		
Hire date or date WRS-eligible		ent or graduate	Employer receive	ed date Event date			Prospective coverage date	
appointment began 2/4	119		212713	2019		•	5/1/2019	
Are you a WRS-participa	ating em							
Previous service check			es 🗌 No					
Source of previous servi					(ONE) CETF			
Did employee participate	e in the \	WRS prior to b	eing hired by yo	ou? 🗌 Yes	🔀 No			
Payroll representative signature	re			Phone number		Date :	signed	
Jane Doe				(605)5	55-1234	1.1	3/1/2014	

1. Verify the member's demographic information is correct. Under the myMembers tab, select myMembers.

etf.wi.gov	tf			
myEmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability
	myMembers			
	myMembers Requ	iests		T

- a. Click the Edit button on the bottom of the screen to update existing information.
- b. When an address is updated, the system will request USPS verification of the address. Always use the Finalist address.
- c. Once edits are complete, click Submit.
- d. Review the data (all changes and additions will appear in red).
- e. Click Confirm if correct or Cancel to return to the previous screen.
- f. The Confirmation Page can be printed by clicking the green Print button.

2. To remove a dependent from an existing contract, go to the Health tab and select Member Enrollment from the dropdown.



3. Enter the ETF Member ID or SSN and click Search.

eff.wi.gov	ţf							myE
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help
			Memt	ber Searcl	h			
Member	ID:		OR	Social Se	ecurity Nur	nber:		
		Sea	Na	me Search	Clear			

4. When the employee's record returns, click Edit on the line of the Active contract.

etf.wi.gov	tf								'F Benefits urance Enrollme			
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help	Log Off			
									Member Se	arch		
							Member ID:		OR Soci	al Security Number:		
							5	Search Name Se	arch	d Individual Search	Clear	
				Member ID:				SSN:			Subscriber:	1000
		Health P	lan		Co	verage Level		Begin Dat	e	End Date	Status	Employer
View Edit					FA	MILY		01/01/2016	5		ACTIVE	MADISON, CITY OF - P14/S01 \$1627
View Edit					FA	MILY		06/30/1996	5	12/31/2015	ENDED	MADISON, CITY OF - P02/S01 \$1729

5. On the next screen, select Remove Dependent and Continue.

I would like to: O ADD DEPENDENT @ O CHANGE HEALTH PLAN @

REMOVE DEPENDENT



6. Select a Reason to remove the dependent and check the box next to the dependent to be removed. Click Submit.

Reason for Removing Dependent: Select One CHANGE FAMILY TO SINGLE COVERAGE DEATH OF DEPENDENT DIVORCE ELIGIBLE FOR OTHER GROUP INSURANCE

7. Complete the Event Date (date of qualifying life event) and Employer Received Date (date application was received by employer).

Event Date: 01/13/2019 MM/DD/YYYY

Employer Received Date: 01/23/2020

 When Divorce is selected, an additional box will display for the Date of COBRA Notice. Enter the "Date Notice Provided" from the *Continuation – Conversion Notice* (ET-2311). This date determines the termination of coverage date for the former spouse and stepchildren.

Reason for Removing Dependent: DIVORCE	~	Event Date:	MM/DD/YYYY
Employer Received Date: MM/DD/YYYY	Date of COBRA Notice:		

a. When removing the spouse and stepchildren but maintaining family coverage, and the notification date is not within the same month as the divorce (event), the coverage will end at the end of the month of the COBRA (ET-2311) notification date or the date of the divorce, whichever is later.

Example: The divorce occurred on 1/21/2020, the ET-2301 was received by the employer on 2/3/2020. The ET-2311 notification date (the date the ET-2311 was sent to former spouse and stepchildren) is 2/5/2020. The health insurance coverage will term on 2/29/2020.

b. When changing the coverage level from family to single due to divorce, the reason selected in myETF Benefits will be Change from Family to Single Coverage – not Divorce). Coverage will end at the end of the month in which the divorce (event) occurred or the COBRA notification date, whichever is later.

Example: The divorce occurs 1/21/2020, ET-2301 received by employer on 1/27/2020, and the ET-2311 notification date (the date the ET-2311 was sent to the former spouse and stepchildren) is 1/27/2020. The health contract will terminate on 1/31/2020. The spouse and stepchildren cannot be removed until the divorce is finalized. They are sent COBRA information and applications when they are removed from the plan.

- 9. Check the box next to the dependent to be removed and click submit.
 - a. When the reason is Divorce, the system will automatically check the box next to the spouse and stepchildren.
 - b. When the reason is Change from Family to Single Coverage, the system will automatically check the boxes next to all dependents other than the subscriber.



10. Verify the information is correct, check the box(es), and click confirm.

By Confirming this request, I apply for or am ending the insurance under the indicated health insurance and agree to the <u>TERMS AND CONDITIONS and NONDISCRIMINATION DISCLOSURE</u>.

To the best of my knowledge, all statements and answers are completed and true. All information is t

Documentation is required to process this change. I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to provide the pro



Note: When a second check box displays, documentation is required to be submitted to ETF. The contract will go into "Waiting for ETF Approval" status until ETF receives a copy of the required documentation. Once the documentation has been received, reviewed and approved by ETF, then the transaction will be approved and processed overnight. If ETF does not approve the documentation, the employer will be contacted with the reason why and what, if any, additional documentation is needed for processing.

You must have the required documentation in hand, expect to receive it soon, or request it from the employee at that time and submit it to ETF for review and approval.

11. **Confirmation and Verification:** Verify the information entered is correct. The transaction will process overnight (or once ETF approves) and will transmit to the health plan via the nightly file. An employer can view the contract the following day. *Print* a copy of the confirmation screen (if desired) by clicking on the green Print button in the upper right hand corner of the screen.



- 12. Click Return to Enrollment Summary to return to the active contract.
 - a. To perform an additional change, click Return to Report Enrollment Change button. Example of multiple changes: Add Dependent and Change Health plan, or Remove Dependent and Change Health Plan, must be keyed in myETF Benefits on the same day.
 - Add or Remove Dependent first and then Change Health Plan. If an employee is
 electing to Add or Remove and Change Health Plan because of a life event, both
 changes must be performed on the same day for the system to correctly process
 the changes under one life event reason (birth, marriage, divorce, etc.). If these
 steps are performed on two separate days, the second change in health plan will
 not process.

C-5 Change Health Plans

When a *Health Insurance Application/Change* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually) form has been received for one of the Dependent reasons, all information on the form must be verified and the employer must complete the Employer Completes section. Any necessary documentation must be verified/approved. Refer to example below:

Employer Completes	Employer Completes Coding instructions are in the Employer Health Insurance Administration Manual.									
EIN	Employe	er name	L.		Payroll representativ	e email				
0000-199	Central Payroll				Jane. Doe @ central payroll. wi.					
Group number	Employe	Employee type Coverage type			Health plan name/su	Health plan name/suffix				
83900				🛛 Family	Dean					
Business Unit (if applicable)	tus of applicant		Employee deduction	S						
		🗹 Full time	Part time	🗌 LTE	Pre-tax	Post-f	tax			
Hire date or date WRS-eligible	employm	ent or graduate	Employer receive	ed date	Event date		Prospective coverage date			
appointment began 2/4	119		2127/2019 5/1/20							
Are you a WRS-participa	ating em	ployer? 🛛 Ye	es 🗌 No		-					
Previous service check	complete	ed? 🛛 Ye	es 🗌 No							
Source of previous servi	ice chec	k? 🛛 🖾 Or	line Network for	or Employers	(ONE) ETF					
Did employee participate			eing hired by y	ou? 🗍 Yes	🛛 No					
Payroll representative signatu	re			Phone number	er	Date	signed			
Jane Doe				(605)5	55-1234	1.1	3/1/2019			

1. Verify the Member's demographic information is correct. Under the myMembers tab, select myMembers

etf.wi.gov	tf			
myEmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability
	myMembers			
	myMembers Requ	iests		1

- a. Click the Edit button on the bottom of the screen to update existing information.
- b. When an address is updated, the system will request USPS verification of the address. Always select the Finalized address.
- c. Once edits are complete, click Submit.
- d. Review the data (all changes and additions will appear in red).
- e. Click Confirm if correct or Cancel to return to the previous screen.
- f. The Confirmation Page can be printed by clicking the green print button.

2. In myETF Benefits, hover over the myMembers tab and select myMembers from the dropdown menu.



3. Enter the ETF Member ID or SSN and click Search.

eff.wi.gov	C							myE
EmployerInfo m	yMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help
			Memb	ber Search	n			
Member ID:			OR	Social Se	curity Nun	nber:		
-	->	Sea	Na	me Search	Clear			

4. When the employee's record returns, click Edit on the line of the Active contract.

etf.wi.gov	tf							enefits Admin Enrollment Summary		
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS Other Benefits	Reports	Help Log	g Off		
							Me	mber Search		
						Member ID:	AO N	Social Security Number:		
						S	earch Name Search	Covered Individual Search	Clear	
				Member ID:			SSN:		Subscriber:	10000
		He	aith Plan		Coverage Level		Begin Date	End Date	Status	Employer
View Edit					FAMILY		01/01/2016		ACTIVE	MADISON, CITY OF - P14/S01 \$1627.0
View Edit					FAMILY		06/30/1996	12/31/2015	ENDED	MADISON, CITY OF - P02/S01 \$1729.3

5. On the next screen, select Change Health Plan and Continue.



6. Select the appropriate Reason for Changing Health Plan from the dropdown list.

 Reason for Changing Health Plan:
 Select One

 IT'S YOUR CHOICE ENROLLMENT PERIOD
 DUE TO ADOPTION/PLACEMENT FOR ADOPTION

 DUE TO BIRTH
 DUE TO CREATION OF DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP

 DUE TO MARRIAGE
 LOSS OF MEDICARE ELIGIBILITY

 MEDICARE ELIGIBLE
 MOVE FROM SERVICE AREA

 SUBSCRIBER LOSS OF OTHER COVERAGE/EMPR CONTRIBUTION

7. Complete the Event Date (date of qualifying life event) and Employer Received Date (date application was received by employer).

Event Date: 01/13/2019 MM/DD/YYYY

Employer Received Date: 01/23/2020 MM/DD/YYYY

8. If reason is move from service area, select the New Residential County from the dropdown menu. (There is an Out of State/NA option.) Select a health plan from the dropdown list.

Note: The End Date of the old health plan and the Begin Date for the new health plan automatically generate based on the Event Date and Employer Receive Date provided above.

	Healt	h Plan					
Current:			WEA TRU	ST FAST			
New:	Non-HDHP Hea		Dental Plan		TRAL WI IS WEA ATES HP ITH TH THPARTNERS T CHIPP VLY T MAYO CLIN	or the new hea	alth pla
	tically gene		d on the	Event Date pro	vided abov	e.	
	FAMILY FAMILY		01/31/2020	End Date is driven by Event Date			
driven	ealth Plan Eff by Event Date red Date					d Employer ceive Date	
•	ne member pdates, if n		ndent in	formation on the	e bottom of	the screen is o	correct

10. Click the Submit button



11. Verify the information is correct and click Confirm.

By Confirming this request, I apply for or am ending the insurance under the indicated health insurance and agree to the <u>TERMS AND CONDITIONS and NONDISCRIMINATION DISCLOSURE</u>.

To the best of my knowledge, all statements and answers are completed and true. All information is t

Documentation is required to process this change. I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to provide the



Note: When a second check box displays, documentation is required to be submitted to ETF. The pending contract will go into "Waiting for ETF Approval" status until ETF receives a copy of the required documentation. Once the documentation has been received, reviewed, and approved by ETF, then the transaction will be approved and processed overnight. If ETF does not approve the documentation, the employer will be contacted with the reason why and what, if any, additional documentation is needed for processing. You must have the required documentation in hand, expect to receive it soon, or request it from the employee at that time and submit it to ETF for review and approval.

12. Confirmation and Verification: Verify the information entered is correct. *Print* a copy of the confirmation screen (if desired) by clicking on the green Print button in the upper right hand corner of the screen.

EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS Other Ben	fits Reports	Maintenance Test Suppo	rt Help	Log Off		
		Member ID: 1000 Employer:	-1119				SSN Health Plan	XXX-XX-X561			Subscriber: Coverage Level: FAMILY
	Your request has been submitted and will be processed overright.										
Note: During it's Your Choice, you may also change member's coverage level by returning to the Report Change to Health Enrollment. To change to family coverage please select Add Dependent and it's Your Choice. To change from family to single coverage please select Remove Dependent.											
				D		/-	rn to Report Enrollment Chang	e Return to Enro	oliment Summary		
				Reason	or Changing Health Plan:	MOVE FROM SERVI	CE AREA				
				1	lealth Plan		Coverage Level	Begin	Date End Date	Employer	
				Current:	-		FAMILY	01/01/		And a second sec	
				New:			FAMILY	03/01/	2020	and the second second second	
							Covered Individua	Detail Summary			
						Name	DOB Gender	Relationship Be	gin Date End Date	,	
							08/25/1964 MALE	SELF 03/	01/2020		
							02/18/1996 MALE	CHILD 03/	01/2020		
				Return to	Report Enro	llment Cha	nge Return	to Enrollm	nent Sumn	nary	
				Click to anothe	o perforn er action	n	Click to active				

- 13. Click Return to Enrollment Summary to return to the active contract.
 - a. To perform an additional change, click Return to Report Enrollment Change. An example of multiple changes: Add Dependent and Change Health plan, or Remove Dependent and Change Health Plan, must be keyed in myETF Benefits on the same day.
 - Add or Remove Dependent first and then Change Health Plan. If an employee is
 electing to Add or Remove and Change Health Plan because of a life event, both
 changes must be performed on the same day for the system to correctly process
 the changes under one life event reason (birth, marriage, divorce, etc.). If these
 steps are performed on two separate days, the second request will not process.

C-6 Termination of Coverage

Termination of health insurance coverage can occur for multiple reasons. Some reasons require a *Health Insurance Application/Change Form* ((ET-2301) available on the ETF website and updated annually), such as a Cancel Coverage due to eligibility for other group insurance. The remaining reasons, Death of Subscriber, Disability Approval (Non-ICI), Retirement, and Termination of Employment do not require an application. In order to process the termination of a member's health insurance, you will need to follow the procedure listed below.

1. Hover over the Health tab and select Termination of Coverage from the dropdown.



2. Enter the member's SSN or ETF Member ID and tab over to the End Date field to enter the health contract termination date. Next, edit the Event Date and Received Date, if necessary. Leave the Begin date field blank. The begin date will autofill once a Reason is selected.

	embers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS 0	Other Benefits	Reports	Help		Log Off					
					Employer I	Number: 099100	⁰⁰ on	ll auto-fill ce Reaso selected		Emp	loyer Name	e: MADISON, CITY	OF		New E
	Note: <u>Ter</u> premium	rmination of Emp has been deduct	<u>bloyment</u> requires the ted pre tax they mus	nat the employer provi st have comparable co	de the subscribe verage to be elig	er and all eligible gible to voluntarily	dependents	anan sanan	our Choice p	ersion Noti period.	ce (ET-231	1) within 5 days of t	he qualifying event. In ac	dition, if a subscr	iber is <u>voluntarily canceli</u>
		Row	Member	SSN	Member ID	Contract Status	Begi Date		Event Date		eceived Date	End Date		Reason	
		1	1	OF	2	ACTIVE ¥		02/	18/2020	02/18/	2020	02/29/2020	Select One		~
			1	Enter Memb	er ID	3	Edit, if n	eeded		Submit	Clear	2	Enter End Date		
3.	Sele	ect the	Reasor	n for tern	ninatin	g the c	contra	act.							
	Report	ts	Help	Log Off											
)			Empl	oyer Name	: MADISON	N, CITY O	Se	lect th				New	EIN	
			Continuation-0 e It's Your Cho	Conversion Noti Nice period.	ce (ET-231	1) within 5 d	lays of th	e q	minati	ing th	e cor	ntract	voluntarily cance	ling coverag	e and the employee
		Begin Date	Even Date		eceived Date	En Dat					Rea	son		Coverage Level	Add/Remove Row
	01/01			02/18/	2020	02/29/202	20	CANCE	L COVE	O SPOI		-SPOUSE TRA	NSFER	FAMILY	0
	auctea:	Select One	•					L	INTARY						
				Submit	Clear			INVOLU			ATION				
								TERMIN	ATION (OF EMF	LOYME	INT			

4. When the reasons of Cancel Coverage or Cancel Due to Spouse to Spouse Transfer is selected, a "Premiums are deducted" dropdown menu will appear. Select the appropriate option.

Contract Status	Begin Date	Event Date	Received Date	End Date		Reason					
ACTIVE V	~										
Premiums are dedu	ACTIVE 01/01/2018 02/18/2020 02/18/2020 02/29/2020 CANCEL COVERAGE Premiums are deducted: Select One Post-tax. Coverage may be cancelled at any time. Pre-tax: I am terminating employment. Pre-tax: I am going on an unpaid leave of absence. Pre-tax: I am going to less than half-time employment. Pre-tax: I am going to less than half-time employment. Pre-tax: I dreprodents, if any) became eligible for and enrolled in other group coverage. Pre-tax: Annual Its Your Choice open enrollment period.										

- a. When the other Reasons are selected (i.e. Termination of Employment), the "Premiums are deducted" menu does not generate
- 5. Click Submit.



6. Verify the information and the termination dates are correct. Click Confirm.



7. To view the termination date on the contract, go to Health and then select Member Enrollment. Search with the Member ID. Employers will see a message in red stating that the **cancel request in Approved Not Applied** status.



C-7 Pending Transactions

myMembers Requests is home to several processing queues. The changes made to health contracts in myETF Benefits will post to a processing queue when pending ETF approval. If they do not need approval, they will go to a queue to wait for the overnight batch process. There nine queues.

1. To access myMembers Requests, go to myMembers and click on myMembers Requests from the dropdown.

myEmployerInfo	myMembers					
	myMembers					
	myMembers Requ	ests				

2. Enter your eight-digit employer number (e.g: 0991-000) and click Verify.

Please enter the seven digit

Employer Number and click Verify

Employer Number:



3. The Members Requests screen defaults to Request Status PENDING. Click down arrow to view all Request Status.

Employer Number: 0991000

```
Request
Status:
APPROVED - NOT APPLIED
APPROVED - PROCESSING ERROR
CANCELLED
DENIED
PENDING
PENDING SICK LEAVE/CONVERSION
REJECTED BY VALIDATION FILTER
SPLIT CONTRACT INCOMPLETE
WAITING ETF APPROVAL DISABLED
WAITING FOR FTE APPROVAL
```

Request Status Defined:

- Approved: Approved transactions that are processed and complete.
- **Approved Not Applied:** Transactions entered same day but do not require ETF approval or ETF has approved and they are pending the nightly batch processing run.
- **Approved Processing Error:** Transactions that failed the batch processing and may need to be reentered.
- **Canceled:** Transactions that either the employer or ETF canceled prior to the nightly batch run.

Employer Name: MADISON, CITY OF

- **Denied:** Transactions that failed to meet eligibility requirements or the documentation supplied was insufficient or incorrect.
- **Pending:** If a member (employee) requested a log-in and password and went in and keyed their own changes, then the transaction would go into the "Pending" queue. The Pending queue is the only queue in which the employer can approve a transaction.
- Waiting for ETF Approval Disabled: Transactions with a member adding an adult dependent older than age 26 who is disabled. The transaction will stay in this queue until the disability verification process has been completed and ETF has received a copy of the health plan disability approval letter from the health plan for the dependent.
- Waiting for ETF Approval: Transactions that require additional documentation prior to approval. If you had to check two boxes on the confirmation screen, it means that the transaction will go here until ETF receives and reviews the submitted documentation and thus approves the transaction.

Transactions that are in *Pending*, *Approved-Not Applied*, *Waiting for ETF Approval – Disabled* and *Waiting for ETF Approval* can be edited, if necessary. When Edit is selected, you are returned to the entry screen and you will follow the same submission procedures as before.

Note: Editing a contract does not always work. Sometimes editing a waiting contract instead of canceling and starting over causes more issues with contract Begin and Effective dates.

4. Select a Request Status (e.g Waiting for ETF Approval) from the dropdown list and click Search.



5. The transactions that fit the search criteria will generate. Click Select button to view the transaction you want to view or approve.

Show 10	✓ entries	-		May change the number of lines to display on the screen								
	Member Memi ID ≎		iber	Request Date ≎	Benefit Program ≎	Rec ≎	Can change the number of requests shown on each page					
Select				01/28/2020	HEALTH	ADD DEPEND	ENT					
Select		:	-	01/28/2020	HEALTH	CHANGE COV	RAGE LEVEL					

6. To Cancel a selected transaction (due to a keying error, incorrect date, etc.) in the Waiting for ETF Approval or Approved Not Applied queue, click Cancel Activity. Enter comments, check the cancel request box, and click Confirm.

Cancel Activit	Edit	Return to myMembersRequests	
Comments:	Keying er	ror	$\langle \rangle$

✓I would like to cancel this request



- a. Return to Health Member Enrollment to rekey the contract.
- 7. To Approve a selected transaction in the Pending queue:
 - a. Review and verify the information entered is correct:
 - i. Click the Approved button and it will automatically take you back out to the queue.
 - ii. Click Return to myMembers Requests if you are not ready to approve.
 - iii. All approved transactions will go to the Approved Not Applied queue to be processed in the nightly batch run.
 - iv. You can go in the following day to verify the transaction processed correctly by reviewing the employee's information on the Member Enrollment screen.
- 8. To Edit a selected transaction in the Pending queue:
 - Click the Edit button to update any information
 - Click the 'Cancel' button to cancel the transaction, in which case it will need to be re-entered by the member (employee).
 - Enter a reason for the cancellation in the Comments box.
 - Check the box next to "I would like to cancel this request."
 - Click the Confirm button.

- 9. To Deny a selected transaction in the Pending queue (a review discovered member was not eligible to make the requested change).
 - Click the Deny button.
 - Enter a reason for the denial in the Comments box.
 - Check the box next to "I would like to deny this request."
 - Click the Confirm button.

C-9 Enrollment Inquiry

The Enrollment Inquiry is a function of myETF Benefits where an employer can go to view a summary of all of their employees (subscribers) are enrolled in the State Group Health Insurance Program and entered in myETF Benefits. This is a monthly report based on available invoices. This query can either be very broad or broken down by a specific health plan and/or coverage type. To use this inquiry function, follow the procedures listed below.

1. To view an enrollment summary, hover to Health/Inquiry/Enrollment Reports and select Enrollment Inquiry.

etf.wi.gov	tf							
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health		Life	Disability	WRS	Oth	
		Accumulated Sick	Leave					
		Inquiry		Enrollmer	nt Reports	Enrollment Inquiry		
		Member Enrollment		Premium	Reports	Dependent Inquiry		
	Premium				Address Inquiry			
	Request Statu	Termination of Cov	erage	<u> </u>	\sim	AL	L	

2. Enter your eight-digit employer number (ex: 0991-000) and click Verify. Please enter the seven digit





3. Click the dropdown arrow to narrow to your search by month, year, health plan, relationship, and coverage type and then click Display.

Employer Number:	0991-000
Employer Group:	70991 - MADISON, CITY OF
Coverage Month:	January Vear: 2020 V
Health Plan:	- ALL
Relationship:	ALL
Coverage Type: - A	ALL 💙
Tax Dependent: AL	
Clear Display	Save As

- 4. The results of the query can be organized and sorted:
 - a. Select the number of entries to show on the screen at one time.

Show 10 🗸 entries

- b. Search for specific information (employee type, Member ID, SSN, last name, etc.).
- c. Skip to a page, next page, or last page.

FirsPrevious 1 2 3 4 5 NexLast

d. Sort by a specific column (small arrows).

				Search:								
Last Name	First Name	Birthdate	Gender	Coverage Effective	Coverage Expiration	Health Plan	Coverage Type					
	KIMBERLY	and the second second	F	2018-01-01		oc	02					
	KAITO		М	2018-01-01		OC	02					
•	BRIAN	1000	м	2018-01-01		oc	02					
	DAVID	100.00	м	2018-01-01		OC	02					
1	DONALD	-	м	2020-01-01		oc	01					

- 5. The results of the query can be exported to a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet.
 - a. Select Save As to export the results to Excel.

Clear Display New EIN	Save As
-----------------------	---------

b. Choose to open, save, or cancel the Excel spreadsheet.

Do you want to open or save HealthInsuranceListing_20200218.xls from web.etf.wi.gov?	Open	Save	-	Cancel	×	

c. Select Open. The query will display in the following format:

	A	B C	D	E	F	G	H		J K	L	M	N	
									- Employ		ie		
		February 2020 Health Plan = ALL, Coverage Type = ALL											
1							Healt	h Plan =	ALL, Co	verage	Type :	= ALL	
2	Employe	e Member I SSN	Last Nam	First Nam	Birth Date	Gender	Coverage C	overage Hea	Ith PlaCovera	age Type Co	de		
3	06		- 1	-		F	2018-01-01	OC	02				
4	06		-1 - 4		1	M	2018-01-01	OC	02				
5	06		1 1			M	2018-01-01	OC	02				
6	06		- 1 1		•	M	2018-01-01	OC	02				
7	06		2 1		-	М	2020-01-01	OC	01				
8	06		- H		1	М	2019-01-01	NC	02				
9	06		- P		•	F	2018-01-01	OC	02				
10	06		.2. /			M	2018-01-01	OC	02				

d. Choose to save the query or exit from Excel. It will not change your query in myETF Benefits.

C-10 **Dependent Inquiry**

The Dependent Inquiry is a function of myETF Benefits where an employer can go to view a summary of all of their employees (subscribers), and their dependents that are, or have been enrolled in, the group health insurance program and entered in myETF Benefits. This is a monthly report based on available invoices. This query can either be very broad or broken down by a specific health plan, coverage type, relationship, and tax dependency status. This query can be used to locate disabled dependents, employees turning age 65, and dependents who will be removed from a contract when they turn age 26.

To use this inquiry function, follow the procedures listed below.

1. To view Dependent summary, go to the Health tab, hover over Inquiry and then Enrollment Reports, then select Dependent Inquiry.

etf.wi.gov	tf							
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health		Life	Disability	w	RS	Oth
		Accumulated Sick	Leave					
		Inquiry		Enrollmer	t Reports	Enrollmen		
		Member Enrollmen	t	Premium	Reports	Dependent	t Inquiry	
		Premium				Address In	quiry	
	Request Statu	Termination of Cov	erage	ļ	~		AL	L

2. Click the dropdown arrows to narrow to your search by month, year, health plan, relationship, and coverage type and then click Display. The default is All.

					efits Admin Dependent Inquiry			
/Members	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	Help	Log Ot
Coverage Hea	er Group: 7099 e Month: Febru lith Plan: - tionship: - ALL 01 - \$ 03 - F 15 - L 17 - \$ 19 - (24 - [38 - [1 - MADISON, CIT Jary Year: PARENT OF MINC LEGAL WARD STEPCHILD CHILD DEPENDENT OF I	2020 CR DEPENDENT	ит 🗌 🔜	Coverage Ty Tax Depend	ent: ALL		
Clear	Display 2	Save As				Page 162 of 1	69 Back to T	οp

- 3. The results of the query can be organized and sorted:
 - a. Select the number of entries to show on the screen at one time.

Show 10 🗸 entries

- b. Search for specific information (employee type, Member ID, SSN, last name, etc.).
- c. Skip to a page, next page, or last page.

FirstPrevious 1 2 3 4 5 Nex Last

- d. Sort by a specific column (small arrows).
- 4. The results of the query can be exported to a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet.
 - a. Select Save As to export the results to Excel



b. Choose to open, save, or cancel the Excel spreadsheet.

	you	want to	open or save	e HealthIr	suranceL	isting_20200218.ാ	ds from web.	etf.wi.gov?			0	pen	Save	-	Cancel
		~ <	alact (Jnon	and t		vill oper	n in Excel.							
		<i>.</i> 0		pen	anu u	le query v	viii opei								
							XXXXX	- EMPLOYER NAME							
								IONTH YEAR							
						HEALTH PLA	N = HEALTH	H PLAN, COVERAGI	E TYPE :	FAMILY,					
1						RELATION	SHIP = ALL	TAX DEPENDENT	STATUS	= ALL					
2	Health	Coverage	Employee Type	Sub SSN	Sub Name	Dep SSN Dep	Dep Name	Dep DOB 1	Dep Gender D	ep Marital Status	Cov Eff Date	Cov Exp Date I	Rel Code Die	shied?	Tax Depe
3	XX	XX	XX	1000000000		200000000 20000000		CCYY-MM-DD 1		RA	CCYY MM DD		01 14	1000	Y
4.	XX	300	300		LAST, FIRST	2000000000 200000000		CCYY-MM-DD 1		6AR .	CCYY-MM-DO		01 N		Y
	XX.	XX	XX	XXXXXXXXXXXXX	LAST, FIRST	30000000X 30000000	LAST, FIRST	CCYY-MM-DD 1		GL	CCYY-MM-DD		01 N		Υ
6	XX	XX	XX	X00000000X	LAST, FIRST	1000000000 100000000	LAST, FIRST	CCYY-MM-DD /		-0L	CCYY-MM-DD		19 N	3	Υ
1	XX	XX	XX	XXXXXXXXXXXXX	LAST, FIRST	3000000000 30000000	LAST, FIRST	CCYY-MM-ED	F 15	KAL.	CCYY-MM-DD	3	ot N		Υ
8	XX	XXC	XX	X00000000X	LAST, FIRST	2000000000 200000000	LAST, FIRST	CCYY-MM-DD I	- N	IAR .	CCYY-MM-DO	(i) 🕴	10 N		Υ
	XX XX	XXX	300	XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	LAST, FIRST	3000000000 300000000	LAST, FIRST	CCYY-MM-DD 1	M N	MR.	CCYY-MM-DD	1	01 N		Y
- 9	XX.		XX	WWWWWWWWWW	LAST. FIRST	300000000 30000000	LADY CRIME	CCYY-MM-DD 1	14 10	42	COTY MM DO		19 N		

d. Choose to save the query or exit from Excel. It will not change your query in myETF Benefits.

C-11 Address Inquiry

The Address Inquiry is a function of myETF Benefits where an employer can go to view a summary of all subscriber addresses that have been updated. This query can look back 30, 60, or 90 days or can be run to look at all address changes that have been made.

1. To access Address Inquiry, go to the Health tab, hover over Inquiry and then Enrollment Reports and then click on Address Inquiry.

etf.wi.gov	tf						
Employerinfo	myMembers	Health		Life	Disability	WRS	Oth
		Accumulated Sick	Leave				
	- 1	Inquiry		Enrollmer	nt Reports	Enrollment Inquiry	
		Member Enrollmen	t	Premium	Reports	Dependent Inquiry	
		Premium				Address Inquiry	
	Request Statu	Termination of Cov	erage		~	A	LL

 Click the Display button to view all or select the number of days from the dropdown and click Display.
 Employer Number: 0991-000

Employer Group:	70991 - MADISON, CITY OF 🗸
Number of Days :	ALL 30 60 90
Clear Display	New EIN Save As

3. To search by individual member, enter the Member ID in the Search bar. To sort by name, click the down/up arrow.

Show 10 🗸 ent	ries							Search:		
n Member 1D ≎	SSN First, Middle, ↓ Last Name	€mpr No	Empr Grp No \$	Address Line 1	Line 2 ¢	City ≎	≎ State	¢Zip Code	Country Effe ≎ 0a	ctive ate
1	: A	0991000	70991				WI	537192353	US 2019 03	-09-
2	÷ /	0991000	70991	and the second se			WI	535349165	US 2018 02	-08-
3		0991000	70991			N	WI	535989131	US 2018 02	-03-
4		0991000	70991			(WI	539251590	US 2018 02	-01-
5 1	÷ 1	0991000	70991			1000	WI	539011644	US 2019 02	-07-
Showing 1 to 10 o	of 439 entries							FirsPrev	ious 1 2 3 4 5 N	

- 4. The results of the query can be organized and sorted:
 - a. Select the number of entries to show on the screen at one time.

Show 10 🗸 entries

- b. Search for specific information (employee type, Member ID, SSN, last name, etc.) by entering it in the search box.
- c. Skip to a page number, next page, or last page.

FirstPrevious 1 2 3 4 5 Nex Last

- d. Sort by a specific column header by clicking the small arrows.
- 5. The results of the query can be exported to a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet.
 - a. Select Save As to export the results to Excel.

Clear Display New EIN	Save As
-----------------------	---------

b. Choose to open, save, or cancel the Excel spreadsheet.

Do you want to open or save HealthInsuranceListing_20200218.xls from web.etf.wi.gov?	Open	Save 🖣	Cancel	×

c. Select Open and the query will open in Excel.

						Employ					= 09910 91 - MAC		, CITY OF
									Day	s = 30)		
Member ID	SSN	Last Name	Middle	Na First Nam	Employe	r Employer	Address	L Address I	City	State	Zip Code	Address I	Effective Date
-		Y			0991000	70991	2000	M	MADISON	WI	537045126	US	2020-02-06
	Ł	1			0991000	70991		4	VERONA	WI	535938447	US	2020-02-06
	1	1			0991000	70991	1	२	MADISON	WI	537131029	US	2020-02-06
	1	1 N	(0991000	70991		E	EDGERTO	WI	535341315	US	2016-06-02
	1	1			0991000	70991	1	J	MADISON	WI	537054737	US	2020-02-06
	1	1			0991000	70991		U	COLUMBU	WI	539259729	US	2020-02-06
	6	1	1	-	0991000	70991	1	Г	MADISON	WI	537183011	US	2020-02-06
		1	1		0001000	70001	7761	u.		MNI	81/2021133	119	30.50 05 06

d. Choose to save the query or exit from Excel. It will not change your query in myETF Benefits.

C-12 Employer Premium Inquiry

The Employer Premium Inquiry is a function of myETF Benefits where an employer can go to view a list the monthly premium amounts of all their employees (subscribers) enrolled in the group health insurance program and entered in myETF Benefits. This query can either be very broad or broken down by coverage month, a specific health plan, and coverage type.

1. To view the Employer Premium Inquiry, hover over the Health tab and then Inquiry and then Premium Reports. Select Employer Premium Inquiry.



 Click the dropdown arrows to narrow to your search by month, year, health plan, and coverage type and then click Display.
 Employer Number: 0991-000

70991 - MADISON, CITY OF	
February Vear: 2020	
ALL	
ALL	
● Summary ○ Detail	
Clear Display Save As	
	February Year: 2020 ALL ALL Summary Detail

3. A spreadsheet will generate with the information requested.

									Sea	rch:	
Last Name	First Name	Cov Eff Date	Cov Exp Date	Prev Cov Exp Date	Prev Yr Adj Months	Prev Yr Adj Premium	Cur Yr Adj Months	Cur Yr Adj Premium	Gross Premium	Gross Surg	Total ¢
	JOHN				0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$664.24	\$0.00	\$664.24
	FELIX				0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$664.24	\$0.00	\$664.24
1	PATRICK				0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$664.24	\$0.00	\$664.24
	RICHARD				0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$664.24	\$0.00	\$664.24
	ISABEL				0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$664.24	\$0.00	\$664.24
	<u> </u>										
	Grand Total:				-1	\$1,176.32	3	\$6,682.14	\$)	\$ 0.00	\$
							-		FirsPre	vious 1 2	2 3 4 5 Nex Last

- 4. The results of the query can be organized and sorted:
 - a. Select the number of entries to show on the screen at one time.

Show 10 🗸 entries

- b. Search for specific information (employee type, Member ID, SSN, last name, etc.) by entering it in the search box
- c. Skip to a page number, next page, or last page.

FirsPrevious 1 2 3 4 5 NexLast

- d. Sort by a specific column header by clicking the small arrows.
- 5. The results of the query can be exported to a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet.
 - a. Select Save As to export the results to Excel.



b. Choose to open, save, or cancel the Excel spreadsheet.

Do you want to open or save HealthInsuranceListing_20200218.xls from web.etf.wi.gov?	Open	Save 🔻	Cancel	×

c. Select Open and the query will open in Excel.

	70991 - MADISON, CITY OF 03/2020																		
Health Plan = ALL, Coverage Type = ALL																			
Employer	r Program	Surcharg	Health C	a Coverag	e Employee S	SSN	Member	l Last nam	First name	Cov Eff Da	Cov Exp [Prev Cov	Prev Year	Prev Y	fear Cur Year I	Cur Year	Gross Pr	e Gross Sur	Total Amount
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		1			2016-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		31		F	2019-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		81		F	2018-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		81	3	F	2017-06-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		71		/1	2019-07-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		11	and the second second	1 3	2019-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		11		5	2016-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		11		[2019-01-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24
70991	P14	S01	NC	01	06		11	(1	2018-07-01			0	0.00	0	0.00	664.24	0.00	664.24

d. Choose to save the query or exit from Excel. It will not change your query in myETF Benefits.

C-13. Running Reports

Sometimes an employer may want to run reports from MEBS to collect data from a specific time period, for a specific health plan, or some other characteristic. Some of the common methods follow:

- 1. Reports Drop-Down:
 - a. Hover your mouse over the "Reports" drop-down and select the report you want to view

etf.wi.gov	tf						myETF		ts Admi ployer Info
EmployerInfo	myMembers	Health	Life	Disability	WRS	Other Benefits	Reports	He	p
			,				Orphaned Contrac Needing Migration		
		Employer Num	ber:			0001-999	Monthly BPS/MEB Reconciliation	IS ^O	er Name:
	Contac	t Info Health	Insurance ICI	Life Insurance			Split Contracts Re Update		
							Contracts Due For Termination		
				A	gent Contact		Dependents Aging	Out	
			Name:	MAR	Y JO UNGER		Members With Due Coverage	al	
			Telephone:		264 - 9791		COB Report		
				Reti	rement Conta	ct	Split Contract Nor Medicare Half Rep		
							GASB 75		

- 2. Health Drop-Down:
 - a. Hover your mouse over the "Health" drop-down
 - b. Hover your mouse over the "Inquiry" drop-down
 - c. Hover your mouse over the "Enrollment Reports" drop-down
 - d. Select the report you want to run ("Dependent Inquiry" shown)

